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'I

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity, to enter
into Sole Source contracts with the contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed

$319,680 to provide foundational and enhanced case management services to Office of Refugee
Resettlement (ORR)-ellgible families, with the option to renew for up to one (1) additional year,
effective upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2025. 100% Federal
Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Concord, NH $159,680

Intemational Institute of

New England, Inc.
177551 Manchester, NH $160,000

Total: $319,680

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractors are the only two (2) qualified
providers that have an agreement with the United States Department of State to resettle the
federally vetted refugee families via the U.S. Refugee Admissions Program and have access to
refugee demographic information necessary to perform these services. The Contractors have
been project partners since the inception of the grant and collaborated with the Department and
other stakeholders to design and implement an effective service delivery model to address the
needs and existing service gaps of TANF- and Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible
families. Contracting with these entities would ensure continuity of care and services for these
specific refugee families. Additionally, the Contractors possesses the cultural and linguistic
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expertise needed to serve the various refugee populations eligible for services under the U.S.
Refugee Admissions Program.

The purpose of this request Is to provide enhanced case management services and
employment services to Office of Refugee Resettlement eligible families in New Hampshire. The
Contractors will provide resources to individuals to ensure they are able to obtain life skills needed
to become self -sufficient and to achieve sustained social and -economic wellbeing. The
Contractors will provide assistance and social services life skills through strengths-based
assessments and personal wellness plans, referrals to services for support and barrier removal,
goal development and coaching sessions.

The Contractors will provide foundational and enhanced case management and
employment services to these eligible refugee families including developing new employer
relationships and career pathways, with the goal of increasing self-sufficiency to achieve
sustained social and economic wellbeing.

Approximately 20 Office of Refugee Resettlement eligible families will be served through
September 30, 2025.

The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing programmatic reports and
case to ensure:

•  Participants receive an assessment and service plan.

•  80% successful participant job placement achievement.

•  A minimum of ten (10) new employer relationships and three (3) career pathways for
• advancement are established.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreements, the parlies have the option to
extend the agreements for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Office of Refugee
Resettlement eligible families will not haye access to enhanced case management and
customized economic support services, which will impact the ability of participants to obtain life
skills needed to become self-sufficient and achieve sustained social and economic wellbeing.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.583, FAIN #90RW0069

In the event tfiat the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respeotfully submitted.

saver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citieens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-095-095-950010-7209 Health and Social Services, Dept of Health and Human SVS HHS:
Commissioner's Office, Office of the Commissioner, Refugee Services

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year '
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070018 $99,680.00
2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070018 $60,000.00

Sub Total $159,680.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070018 $100,000.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070018 $60,000.00

Sub Total $160:000.00

Overall Total $319,680.00
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Subjwt: Wilson'Fish TANF CoUaboratioh SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-01
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

'Notice:
.../J

A'^y''^formation that is private, confidential or proprietary must
-  be clearlv identified to the apencv ianH flprptfiH fn in witihg prior to siting the cbhtract. '•

AGREEMEhnr"

_ree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS t

1. IDENTIFiCATiON. f. . •••

•  1 ri, State Agency Name , v •

New HamiDshife bep^ment of Health arid Human Services

1.2 .State Agency Address . ^

■  . -1 " . • .
129 Pleasant Street . '

Concord,NH'03301-3857. ; .. ', ,

1.3 Contractor Name.j',. •

Ascentria Gominuhity Services,'Inc. .

1.4 Cpntractor, Address

261 Sheep Davis Road, A1
Concord, NH 03301-,

1 ;5'•' Contractor Phone"

- Number

■  {603)410-3322 ' Z ' '

•1.6' Account Number. ~

TBD

1.7 Cornpletion Date •• '

9/3.b/2p2^- - -■ ■ ■
1.8 ' Price.Limitatibn

$159,680 ■ . ■

1;9 . Contracting Oilicer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore,; Director • •

.1.10 State AgericyTelephpneNumber

(603)271-9631 , ^ -
I'.ll; CoritractdfSigriatlire

Sig'ntd^ • ' . '

;-.9^^fi/2p'25. ,
1.12, ■NarnearidTitle''6fContractorSignat6ry ; , ■

-AhgeTa BbvilT '- '

.:i-, . Rresi.denti/CEO ; /. •
1.13 • State Agency Signature . / - - • - . •< .

'  • A,'"' Slg"n'»«l'^

-  ■ 1 P/^/2025 . .
1.14 ■ Name and Title of State Agency Sighatofy

ReubVri, Hampton ■ .

'  ■ Di rector, '.office of Health Equity
1.15 Approval by, the N.H.Departipent of Administration, Division of P^ersonnel/i/o/vj/f^^ " '

. -.By: Director, 6ri:' ^ '"^vr; ;■ ■

1.16- Apprpvalbythe,Attorney.Geheral(Fprm,SubstanceandExecution),///"aoD//caWe) . '

'. By:. ,. .^obijvC On: ' 1/27/2025 ■. ■, ■ '
r740734M4M140O...' '

1.17 Approval by the Governor Executive Council (if applicable) ' , .

, G&C item number G«&C Meeting.Date:

1 y-
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block,1.1
("State"), engages .contractor ; identified in, block 1.3
("Contractor") to peHbrm, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and, more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services"). . '

3. EFFiECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval -of the Gpverridr and
Executive Council of the State of New Hariipshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become-effective on ! the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this. Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreemeni
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date"). )
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior jo the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date'shall be, perfomied at'the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement dpes not become
effective, the State shall have.no liability to the Contractor,,
including without limitkion, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred .or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligationSr of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance.of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action, that reduces, eliminates. or, otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in.EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated futids. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or-
terminate the Services under this Agreerrient imimediately upon
giving the. Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be.required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

.5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ ,

PAYMENT.- '
•5.1,The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
•are identified and more particularly described in .EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expends, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for .the,Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price. .
5.3 The State reserves the right to..offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required p.r permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary,'and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
eyent shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder,-exceed the Price Limitation set forth" in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. •

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the'
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,-
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or ._duty upon the
Contractor; including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws! In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guideiines as the
State or the United States issue to, implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. .
6.2 During the term of this Agreement,-the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit,the State or United-States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders," and the covenants, terms and conditions of ,this
Agreement.

7:;PERS0NNEL. '
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licen^ and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6)'months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the" Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcohtractpr or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to Hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of. this-~ Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting .Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the eveiit of any
"dispute concerning, the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT QF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. •
8.1 Any one or more,of 'lhe followinjg acts or omissions of the
Contractor ishall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
ofDefault"): - .
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereutider; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement'.- • ' v'! "' ' , • ■

• 8.2 Uppn the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the followirig actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractpr'a written notice ̂ ecifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be'remedied within, in the absence of
a greater,or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement; effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of.termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, and suspending all payments to"be"made under this
Agreement .and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such-time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the.Contractor;
8,2.3,give ithe Contractor a written notice sisecifying theEvent of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor"any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or-. •
8.2.4 give'the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
'Default, treat- the Agrec'merit -as bfeacheii,' terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remediw at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failureby thc'State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard-to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default'shall •
be~deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce eaich and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

.9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph, 8, the State may, at.its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
iii part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event-of an early termination Of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the.
Contracting'Officer, not later th^ fifl^h (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copiw of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor,
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the .
Agreement.' •

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENtlALITV/
•PRESERVATION. -• - --'?;• • ••• '
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data'- shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained'during the . ^
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rcprdductionsj drawings,- analyses,'^phic
representations, computer programs, computer priritouts,'notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether "
finished or.unfinished. . ■ • : •

10.2 All data and.any property which has been received from
the State or purchas^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement^ shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reasoh.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be'governcd byN.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State. -

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in-all respects
an independent contractor, and Ms neither an agent , nor an
employee df the State! Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, ernpldyee^, agents qr.memberS'shaU have authority to
bind the Stafe or receive any benefits;^ workers' compensation "or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 the Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least.fifteen (15) days prior to .
the assignment, and a written consent of the'State. For purposes
oif. this paragraph, a Change of Control.'"shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control", means v-.(a) merger, /
consolidation, or a tr^saction or series of related transactions in
which a third psuty, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%)'or more of the
voting.^shares or-similar equity interests, or-combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
ofthe assets of the-Contractor." ' • . '

12.2 None-of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies.of &\] subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a .
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted bylaw,
the Contractor-shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employe^i from and against .any-and all claims,
liabilities and costs for aiiy personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright'infringement, or other claims assert^ against
the State, itsofficers or employees, which arise out of (of which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omis&ien-io&ithe
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Contractor," or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph ! 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be decmedto constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement. .

14. INSURANCE.'

14.1: The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall . require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtmn and maintain in force, the
following insurance:'
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not

less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14^1 herein §hall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New.Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insuratice, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer

• identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certiflcatefs) of
insur^ce for all insurance required under, this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfUcer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatc(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certiflcatc(s) of insurance and any

, renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference..

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and wariants that theContractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the.requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of .Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor.shall furnish theContracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his.or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in,the. manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A arid any applicable renewal(s) thereoif, which shall.be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any. Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or, any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice.by a party hereto to.thc pther party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the tithe
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

1.7. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an'instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or disch^ge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule.or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreemertt shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdictiori thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict,
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof; the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the .Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid iri the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this .
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the.remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings \vith respect to the subject matter
hereof.

•Initial
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N0W Hampshire Oepartmen^^^ Human Services ; ;i.
Wilson FishTANF Collaboriatibh ■ ^ ' / ̂ ^
'  EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Aqreisment Provisions

.1; . Revisions to Form PrST, General Provisions - ,

■  . 1,1: V Paragraph?3;^Effeclive;^ Services, is amended by- adding
'  • ■ • subparagraph 3.3 as'follows:- • ■ •

.3;3:' Cpnlractpr.must w all Semces by the Conipletion Date specified
■ : Iri' blpck''^^ parties may'extend the'Agreement-fdr up to'one (1).

^  ■ additjonal-yea'r frorn the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
v'v::- ■ ■ delivei7,vdfAservices:,\-available^funding,'agreeh^ of the parties, and
^  approval of the Govefripf arid.Executive Council.

1:2. Paragraph '12, Assighment/Delegation/Subeontracts; is amended by adding
subparagraph "12.Sas.follo'ws:.;'"

-  ■ -.■1.2.5. -iSubcontractors are;VSubjeqt',to the ^same contractual conditions , as the
,  ;;Cpntractbf; and the: ,Gontractor is. responsibleitd" ensure. subcontractdr

compliance .with those.sconditidns:': The .Cbntractpr/shall,. have written
;jagreemen}s.with ajrsubco'ptractprs, specifying the.work to be performed;
arid, if applicabteV'a'Bd^ in accordance with

.  - the.. Health.''^'^^^^^^ arid', Aeco'uritability - Act. ■ Written
-agreementS^snali'specify-hpw'c ; The

, . G.pntraclPnsh'a]l^rria^^^ pe.ijprmance on .an ongoing
.  .^,..;,.basis^:,an^ hecessai7..'The Contractor shall

ynnually'provide the State.w of.alT.'.s.ubcontractprs provided for
under;this ;Agreeriieri't .and ■ nd^^^ the . State of any . inadequate
subcbri'tractorperfdhTiaric '•

,  ' ■■ ■'.

i '- 'V . .• M.'i'

' . . I li . ,

SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-01 A-1.2 Contractor Initials
r • 1/21/2025

■ Ascentrla Community Services,Inc. Page 1 of 1 Date
. .7.14.23'. : • • .. T
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
. Wilson Fish TANF Collabpration: ^

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services -

1. Statement of Work

provide enhanced case -management and employment
services in this agreemeni to Office pf Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible
families in New Hampshire who: ■ .

Ir.i.l, .Are within the first 36 months of arrival into the United States;
1.1.2. . Are a two (2)-parent family .(for the purpose of this Agreement,

defined as "otherwise-Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF)Teligible families"); and

1.1.3. Have a child under age, 18 years old. / :

1.2. The Contractor must provide case rriariagernent ahd customized economic
support services that support.families' access to resources to obtain life skills
needed .to become self-sufficient and achieve sustained social and economic

.  .wellbeing,,including, butnotlimitedto:.--

1.2.1. Strerigths-based assessments and personal wellness plans directed
toward achieving self-sufficiency goals. :

_  1.2.2. Referrals to services for support and barrier removal.

1.2.3. Goal development, coaching^ and other in-person and tele-
conference case managerTient'services that increase household
efficacy, persistence and Success: ■ '

1.2.4. Monitoring of progress toward goal achievement.

1.2.5. Coaching sessions that are scheduled and conducted two (2) times
per month.

1.3. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to develop a culturally
and linguistically integrated program rriodel. The Contractor must:

1.3.1. , Develop partnerships with state and local agencies to share
culturally and linguistically appropriate services (CLAS) best ■
practices; and

-1.3.2. Develop a minimum often (10) new employer rielationships and three
(3) career pathways for advancement, or as otherwise determined
by the Department, in coordination with NH state workforce

. development , agencies and their partners and providers: The
Contractor must;

1.3.2.1. ■ . Conduct-ongoing labor trend research to' identify in
demand employment opportunities to focus outreach

. efforts to potential employers;

1.3.2.2. Establish new employer contacts, annually," rtfirough

SS-2025-OHE-,05-WILSO-01 , , 8-2.1 . ,, ContractorInili^ls
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. I V-' ■  , . outreach and .education which must include rnaklng
direct phone-calls and coordinating meetings with

. . v,i .perspective,empjoyers; p '\
. -.v- ■ V - '■ 1.3.2.3. - : . Maintain--.-vphgbing' relationships , ' with . existing.

.  ■■■■^:ernplpyers;=^;VrKi 9!; " - ■ ■■ - ■ " "

'1:3.2.4: ; DeVejdp pa^^^ with career pathway training
'  institutes th'at\-may includ are not lirnjted to ,

^  sphoo's, Gplleges and universities; and vocational
^ ^ .,9: ntrainirig:6rganizations/agehcies -

^Convene .individual ahd/.or'gVoup information sessions
between.i-potentiar'ertiployers and target pppulaiion

.  : _ . , v...which .include sitp'-yisits and informational sessions
;  .conducted,.a.r the eiTiplp'yer's. facility or Contractor's

■  -r• ' ..■"site.\..r ".• ... , . » . l-" - • ' N'.fr/ ' ,

■  1.4. :^ The-Cpntractorrnustfecruit, screenVenroll and m'aintain a minimum often (10)"
"otherwise JANF-eligible families" during the life of the.cohtract, in services that

.. include, bpt^a/e^ riot limjted.tp, go coaching and other wrap-;
■  : around sewicep .tjiat'combine daily with employrrieht goals to

'.incfease's'elf-T'suffibiency.s^^^^^ T
•.i:l4':1: -Utilize^^^'p^^ 'assessmerit- ■ tools; 'approved ' by the. ' .

"-\Depart;merii,' ;t^^^^^^^^ plans for all participants to reach
.  . ^ empldyrh'ent'goals and self-sufficiency; ■ ' .

1.4.2. Schedule and conduct two (2) coaching sessions per month, with all
participants; - :

• ••■' \ 1.4.3:''' - :Refe7ipaHicipants to appropriate supportive services including, but not
limited to:

■  i.4.3.1. ' English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL)
services".- ' ,

1:4.3.2. Vocational ESOL classes. ^

•  ,1.,4.3;3. Mental health'services. ,

1:4.3.4. . . Social services.

V... 1.4:3!5. . Legal services.. ... . )
1.4:3.6. Digital Literacy Training

•  1.4.4. 'Facilitate participant;Career exploration; pursuit of specific careers;
and advancenient within chosen career paths by: ■ ■ . '

:  ' . .1 ' . 1.4".4.'1.' ■ Conducting a .minimuni of one (i) career assessment
- and^expldratiori meeting with all participants. Y—initw .. .

.v" ■■ ■ . ■ ■ ■ .9' - . .: ■ - ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ^
, SS-2025-OHE:p5-VyiLSO-01 ' 6-2.1 Contractor Initials '
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,1.4.4.2. ;Developing career development plans with
participants;

1.4.4.3. Providing facilitation and guidance on the various
'pathways to career advancement including transitions
to postsecondary education and or vocational training,

.  .. .. as ..applicable . through referrals, opportunity
identification and informal connections ;

/  1.4.4.4. . Providing guidance on pursing specific careers and
.  advancement within chosen career paths; and

1,4.4.5. . Providing ongoing employment services to participants
including, but rvoi limited to: " .

1.4.4,5:1. , Artiefican vybrkplace orientation including
'  information on completing required Internal

Revenue Service tax payer forms, federal ,
employment law. workplace culture and
employer benefits , „

1.4.4.5.2. Resume writing assistance.

, 1.4.4.5.3. Interviewing skills training.

1.4.4.5.4. Transportation assistance including, but-not

limited to, transport to job training opportunities,
connecting with potential.employers and to job
interviews.

. 1.4.5. Schedule and facilitate job interviews, and .

.  1.4.6. Develop and deliver in-person and tele-conference job readiness
trainings. -

1.5. The Contractor ., must provide financial guidance to strengthen families'
-  knowledge of budgeting, savings, credit management loans, and debt by:

1.5.1. Conducting financial literacy assessments for each family;

-  1.5.2. Delivering financial literacy trainings at times and in venues
convenient to families;

1.5;3. Establishing relationships through outreach to build partnerships with .
local financial institutions' in order to promote financial independence;
and

1.5.4. Developing short and Iprtg-term financial plans with each adujt"
:  participant.

1.6., The Contraclof.must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

lib
SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-01 B-2.1 " Contractor Initials
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1.7. Reporting ' , ■ ' '

1.7.1. The Contractor must submit reports for reporting periods October 1
fyiajch 31.and April ,1 - Septem^

.  ; /end ;b,|.'eac^^^^
deli'verables.'which' include, but are riotliniite^^^^^

'  T:7.T.'1r'Totar*'humber of enfbljme'nts egeeighte

.  1.7. . Number of,Case niapagementpartici^^

1.7.1.3. Number of job placements, fu ll-time'(Ft)and.part-time (PT).
■  ,1/7.1.^. In'jo.b readiness. ,

.  .1-7.1.5; vNuniberof.adult's^pertjQipatingJn.English languagetraining.,

• 1:7.1.6/ '"NtiiTibefyd'dltVpaft^^^^ literacytraining.

17.1 .f7%|,;.l^umber ad^ infi.baricial literacy training.

1.7.1.8.: Nuhibef of adults pa11icipahts'on:TANF.

. \ Si:-:'./. ■ ■ • .1/7;1".9.' Number ofadults participants on'Refugee Cash Ass^

,  ..1,.7J.:'10,Number.of:.employ^^^
vv; .^/;^^v^-^;-.l;7^1v11;iAvefa!geihpudy;wage (RT andP

'  1.7-1/12. dualitative information'in harraj^^^^
.. 1:7.1-13.1.^Jndividualgpalsestabiished andachieved; .

^  . 1:7.1.13.2. Cornmunjty partnerships formed; and
'  ., ■ / ■/T;7.1.13.3.^Rf6gress ofvoc'ationalfraining
-  1-.8;1.TheCpntractbrmustenrollaminimum.of.ten (lO).eligiblefamilies.during

;  .the contract period, . . . . • ' •
1:8:2; The' Cpnffactor, must share" programmatic rep'orts^ and case .notes with

the bepartnient for review to ensure 100% of participants receive:
1.8.1.1. Assessment and service plan. ^

.  ; 1:8.1:2/Job readiness services."
v-'Vv'n'i - - •v

1.8.3.1. .Refer/particigantslo English for Speakers of Other :
■ Lahgua'gee(E§pL)/., .s^^

-1.8.1 ;4.- DigitaNiteracy training. ■■ ■

1.8.1:5."Financial/lileracy training.
/  . 1.8.1:6. Employment servicesj '/t-j. . -

y-

1.8.4. The Contractor shall achieve 80% successful participant job placement
.  j. __ ' • - ■ >• - •

•1.8.5. The Gbntractor'rriust estabiishV'nhinimum 6f-leri (10) hew e TiDtover

.SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-01 'B-2.1 Contractor Initials
• • -j ■ : • •• . 1/21/2025
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relationships and three (3) career pathways for advancement

1.9. Background Checks

1.9.1. ■ Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreisrheht, the Contractor rhust ensure that said individual has
undergone: '
1.9.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and

has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of
behavior'that could endanger individuals served under this
Agreement; •'

,  .1.9.1v2. . . A.name search, of the Department's Bureau of Adult and Aging
' Services (BAA'S) StateRegistry, pursuantto'RSA161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could; endanger
indiyidUajs served under this Agreement; and

1.9.1.3. A name search of the Department's Diyision for Children, Youth
and Faniilies (DGYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-
C:35, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could
endanger individuals served under this, Agreement.

1.10. Confidential Date .

1.10.1. The Contractor must , meet all information security , and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Information ; Security Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below.

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services-through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing

)  to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
, with federal and state laws, arid regulations and the Departnient's

Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have: a justifiable business need .to access
cpnfidentiai data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
bepa'rtrnent request..

1.11. Privacy impact Assessment

1.11.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PlA) of its
system(s)/applicatiori(s)/web ■ portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/appiicati6n(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally -Identifiable Infprniatidn (Pll). is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PlA the Contractor
must provide the Department access tb applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow The Department to assess, at
miniriium, the follovying:

1.11.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;
-initUI

SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-01 B-2.1 Contractor Initials
1/21/2025
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2:--^'■ : \A^"o-will'Have'acc^s^

\  ' - '1.11.1:3.' ^ Hpw:Plj^w^

'  ■• ■ • , ■ v.;!;:! and-revoked;

'  ,i.ii;l.5:;;> vfpriVacy/practic^
■  .ri-r-, - . \ ^ ^^^2' ■ jKW'pep^^ PIAs in .the.event there are

,  . -■'V / .^ithprsignifica;ntprpl:^^^^
^  ̂ , bpiiection,'^^^^^^^^

2. Exhibits Incorporated ; v \ ^ '
■  ; ;2;1.; '^:The Federal RequirementSi which-

y. are'attached .hereto ^ .
;■. 2.2-.'r';-Jh,e;Coritra.ctor rnust manage all-confidential data related to this Agreement in

,  accordance wi^^ .of, AExh|bit, E/'DHHS Inf^^ Security
'  Requlrementsv;;,.^^- c .vyv;:;...^y;y ytpj ^

2.3. , The.yCphtractpr>must.,u^;:apd;;4isclpse^;^^
y  : . y- -,^onlpllance with^ identiifiabl^'H^alth "

y. y: ~ -;:lnfor^ti6^:(^ivacy%
.  , y: ■ . of'^1996, - and in

C - '>?ccbrdancfe>^^ .
'  • •• y \ ybds been'execuied'by-th /' i :'y' - ''i.-- . ' • ,
3. Additional.Terms.. yiy; ; ■ : - ■ .> • 'u- ' ..s' ,. ■

3.1; ; lmpictis ResuItihg from Gciirt Orders or tied
3.i:i. The:Cpntfactor.agrees .that, toythe extent future.state or federal

legislatlpn pr court orders
y  , - vyy. ,y:3®?pf'b^cJ-herpiny;^p^Stete■ 'y; ■'i-'and-'expendlture fequlrgm^^^

compllahce.therevyith. ■ ^ m rv^-.. /, ■■•
'  3.2. Fedpral CiviiyRi^^^ CulturalVy and Linguistically

^ viy y

i3.2.i. The Contractor must submit:
:  _,;N, \ :.3.2:1. A, detailed descriptlpn of • tho 'langua^

■ ^ , ,%^'ces, within ten (10) d^^.. __-A'greemeWt',4p^ to ensued mWrilhgfulacce •.
> . ■ -■ ■■ y -C'; - . / to^pcQgrams^and/o.r.servjceMb'individuals'

. .. . ^nov-.y- , ,/: . ■ v .English.prpficiency;.- individuals:who are deaf P"r have
y'v'- ■ ' . ■ ' ^^■hearing;^lps>;^■individua|s whp-are blind or have"''tow

-,SS-2025-OHE^5-W]LSO-Oi ' ■. -8-2.1 ■ . CoritracloV inUials- - C- . . .
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,  . ■ .visipn: and; individuals who have speech challenges.

3.2.1.2. A \writlen attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date
of the Agreement and annually, thereafter, that all
personnel involved the provision; of- services to
individuals under this Agreement have complete;d,
within. the .last -12 .rtionths, 'the' .Contractor Required
Training Video on Civil. Rights-related Provisions, in
PHHS PTOCuremeht Propesses, which is accessible op
the.' ' Department's; -website
(https://www.dhhs'.nh.g6v/d6ihg-business-dhhs/civil- ' ,

■ fight-cpmpliance-dhhs-vendors): and ■>
'  ■ 3.2.1.3. The Department's Federal Civil Rights Compliance

Checklist within, ten (10) days of the Effective Date of
■  the Agreement.',The Federal Civil Rights .Compliance

Checklist must have been completed within the last 12
months and is accessible on the Department's website
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-

.  - right-co.mpliance-dhhs-vendors).

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
rnaterials prepared, during or resulting froln the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement,"The
preparatiori of this (reporl, ^document etd.) was'financed-under an

, Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by-the State of New
Haitipshire and/or such other fundirig sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Serviceis." ■ ' '

3.3.2. All rnaterials pr:oduced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior apprpyal^ from -the bepartment before, printing, production,
distribution or use.

,  3.3.3. The Department .must retain. copyright ownership for any and all
original materials, produced, iricjuding, but not limited to reports,

,  -protocols, guidelines, brochures, posters, drid resource directories.
3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any rriaterials produced under the

-  ~ ■ ■ . Agreementwithout p'rior written approval from the Department.
3.4. . Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulation

-  3.4.1; - In the operation of any facilities.for providing services, the Contractor
must comply-With all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state.

■  • ' county and municipal authorities and with any direction of an

SS-2025-OHE-05-W1LSO:01 .B-2.1 ■ ■ Contractor Initials
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Officer or officers, pursuant to laws which'must impose an order or
- -dutY.upgnihe cpntrptprw

,  ̂ . the prbyisTdn of the beryices ;at s
'  ; , .' ji^nseor^p^tnit'r^ forthd^er^idh'^^

. . ■ - v ■" vpr'tfie-pd^ma^j^
-  '^aid^licehse:b^pefmit;:and^w

. ,'5v ' ■ condifldhs'bf ^'each'-'such iicepse'^ with the
fpfegoingTequirehaerits;the;CbhtraCtof hef^bybpvebarits and.^

i . ■ ' tbdti during.the;termipfithis'Agre^^
.:.trri ^>pH rules, prders/Tegulatipns,. and.>reguirerripn^k^^^^

■  b. the Rce Marshahand thebdcar^^ must be in
conformance with . Ipcarbuildirig: and^.zoning ;Codes;;,-.by-lavvs and

;  regulations. — ^
3.5. Eligibility Determinations . '

3.5.1. The Ppntractor must make eligibility determinations in accordance
:  wlth,applicable federalarid.statelaws, .reguiations, orders, guidelines,

policies and procedures.

3.5.2., The Cpritfactor must .ensure ail applicants are permitted .to .fill out an
applicatioji fqrm'and musl notify each a

■ ' ■ ' ■b;,feir'heaYing.inbccqrdahce with New^
.  Department fegulatiohs. • • • .

4. Records

The Contractor hiust keep records that include, but are hot limited to: ■
'  , .4.1:1. Books, recorcls, documents arid other electronic or physical data

.  .evidencing and reflectihg oll. bOsts and other expenses incurred by the
Cpntractpr in thb performance of the Contract, and air incorrie received

^  , or collected by the Contractor.,
4.1.2. All 'records must be maintained in accordance: .with accounting

procedures and practibes, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, arid
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, -books, records, and original
evidence of cobts such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,

,  requisitions for materials,- inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions;
labor .time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or. required by
the Departrnerit.' - • ■ ; '

4'.-1.3. Statistical," enrpllrrient, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
.  services," which, records .must include, all records of application and

eligibility (including all fbrni.s;required:.to determine .eligibility for..eac
.such recipient), records, regarding the provision of services and all

-  , invoices submitted to the- .Department to obtain payment fpi^isuch .
■ ■ ■ ■ : " ' ' ' ■ '■  . SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-^ ' -B-2.1 , Contractor ihilials'V 1"
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services. •

4:1.4; MediCar records on each patleht/recipient of services.

4.2. -. During the term of.this Agreement and the-period for.retention h'ereunder, the
Department, the Uniled States Department of Health and Human Services, and

.  any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained ■;pursuant to. the. Agreement. for purposes , of audit,
examination.ieycerpts and transcripts. .

4.3. . If,-upon further review, the Department must disallo\w any expenses claimed.by.
the Contractor as costs' hefeuriderv the Department retains.the right, at its

. discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such surtis from the Contractor.

SS-i2025-OHE-05-WILSO-01- B-2.1 Contractor Initials
"  1/21/2025
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■  EXHIBIT C

.  Payment Terms ^ v - ' -
'.b' ' s!,-' vb'

1. This Agreement is funded by: r

1.1. 100% . Federal funds,. from . V\fl Fish TANF Collabbratibn . New
THampshirei^Equipe^ August 30, 2024; by the

. DHHSrlAdministration forGhildfen and Fmailes tof ALN^93;583, FAIN
.V - ■ -vb. ■

2. . For the purposes of this Agreement the Departmeri'tb

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, based on criteria specified in 2 CFR
200:331.

.. 2.i2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The Indirect Cost Rate: for this Agreement ]n- the attached Budget

■v ■ Sheets. ■'
3. Payhient'shall ;be on/.a. ,cost.. reimbursement basis for actuarallowable

expbriditur;es iricurred under this Agreernenl, and shall be in accordance with
;theWpprdved line item's, as "specified Budget.

4. The Contractor, shall subm the" p.epartrherit no, later than the
,, ^ 'v; fifteen|i^;:.!05th);;y^^ in-which the

" seVvide's'^we"fe:pVovlded:"'The-^^^^ shall ehsure'eacH Invoice:
4.1. . .Incjud^ Vendor Number issued, upon registering with

"New;HampS , v,
v, 4.2,;- isVsubmitted-in a-,f6rmat as;provided;'by'of otherwise acceptable to the

. .. b.bepahrrient;- . ^ ;■
4.3: Identifies'arid requests payment in accdrdahce with Section 3 above.
4.4. ■ Includes supporting docUrnentatiqn each invoice,.including, but not

.  limited to, proof of expenditures, iternized receipts for purchases, time
. sheetsVand payfoirfqcords-With positiofi o

4.5. Is completed, .dated and returned to the Department to initiate payment.
4.6. Is assigned an .^ electronic-; signature . and is emailed to

Laura.R.McdIashanfaidhhs.nh.aov or mailed to: . .

•  Finahcial. Manager b.
Department brHealth and Human Services > '
,129 Pleasant.Street \ .

,; -:; .Cc)rico.rd,NH 03301. ,
■  5. The- 'Departrhent' shali.^make payments to the. Contractor within thirty (30)

calendar days only upon receipt and approval of the submitted invoice and^
required supporting documentation.

.SS-2.025-OHE-P.5-WILSO-01 0-2.1 Contractor.hitials
.  1/21/2025

Ascentria Cpmmunity Seiyices, Inc. .- Page 1 of 3 • ' Dale' ' • • '



Oocusign Envelope ID; 42CB2C1^65A-4BAC-B397-889B191F810B

New Hampshire bepartrhent of.Health and Human Services
Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

EXHIBIT C

6. The final invoice and any required supporting documentation shall be due to
the Department ho later than forty (40) calendar days after the contract
corhpletion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Cpmpletioh Date.

.  . 7. Notwithstanding Pafagfaph 18 of the General Provisions. Form P-37, changes
.limjted'-tp adjusting.direct and indirect cost arnounls'within the. price limitation
between budget class lines, as well as adjusting encumbrances between Slate
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, rnay be made by written agreement of
both parties; without obtaining approval of the Goverhorand Executive Council,

/  ' if needed and justified. ;

8. Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
.any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor is subject to a Single Audit
pursuant to 2 CFR-200.501 Audit Requirements.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject, to audit pursuant to the
■ requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b."

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit.an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
"to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of .2 CFR Part 20.0, Subpart F..of. the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans.'The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implemehtation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B of Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an ind.ependept. CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. The Contractor, regardless of the funding 'source and/or whether
Conditions A, B, or C exist, may be required to submit annual financial ,
audits, performed by an independent CPA upon request by the

,  Department.

lb
SS-2025-OHE-05-WiLSO-01 C-2.1 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
■  .. Agreement, it i$ understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
^  ; and shall return, to' the Department all paymehts.made under the

. Agreement to Awhich exception has been taken,, or whidh have been
.  i'.v of such an exception, within sixty (6p).days.

^;9,._^|f applicadle^- thd:Cdn'tractor i^ustTeque^ from'the
department for any equipnienCas defined in 2 CFR 200.3^, purchased
usipy funds.; provided under this Agreement, .including information

.  techhology systerris; ■ ,' - • .

r'v,

Initial

SS-2p25:OHE-05-WILSO-01 ■.

Ascertria Cpmmunity Services, Inc.

C-2.1
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Exhibit C-1, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human.Servlces

Contractor Nameit-^s^jtna^^om^^ ' :' \ i.'
Budget Request for: Jr-i: =: :' 'H' '

Budget Period: ^
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) "'jj •

Unejtem "-'• • F^rogra.m Go^t-: Eund^
'  by:pJ;IHs1C^FY'24^

RrogramjX^osti; Funded'
"  by'pHHS;r;SBY^i$'•

1. Salary & Wages" . _

2; Fringe Benefits $10,878 $5;548

3. Consultants - .

4.. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix.lV to'2 CFR 200.

$961 $490

5.<a) .Supplies-Educational . -'r^sp V;$0
5.(b) Supplies- Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies- Pharmacy v.'-r

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 . .• •• • $0
5.(e) Supplies - Office r:-- ft':-v!r:.r;;r^^vi"'$750 "a:)- :<:.;;:-::rt::-.'.$500
6. Travel $1,175 . $411
7.' Software "."•$0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0 $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training T. jt: . -If.-:

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) .$0 $0
Other (please specify) Interpretation '*! v,$650

Other (please specify) Postage $85 $50

■Other (please specify) Telephone $8.1,6 "r-$8,1,6
Other (please specify) Audit . ' $304 $155
Other (please specify) Insurance :-:^r 7.7-:s^;;-?.^.-r'T:$304 :7i.^':,??;r"-$1'55

. Other (please specify) Client Allowance V  $3,680 • $4;500
Other (please specify) Occupancy -rr: $2,301

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $891637 ^;;"^$54^878

Total Indirect Costs r^: r .t; •r::n>:~$i;o:043 •L-.'>'"7:1C-^$5r122

Subtotals - -"":^S99;680 1 v:rr?r'r-' —• .:~:v$6o;ooo
;■ .. ' ,:V -.".t:.: ~"^-$.i:59;68o

-Initfal

Contractor Initiate:' -

Project ID # Date:
1/21/2025
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New HsirtipshireCDepartm^rit of.Health
.. 'Exhibit Fede^^^

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING-pRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractpr. identified'in Section i1;3;ofJhe GenerarProvisions'agre^§-to comply with'the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of;the"DrugrF/ee Workplace Act of-1988 (Pub: Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 etseq.j, and further.agrees to|have.the Contractbr;s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1^:12 of the Genera! Provisions execute .the foljowing Certification '

ALTERNAtlVEJ-.FQR'dONTF^CTORS bTHERTHAN ' ' > .'

.  ■ US PERARTMENT^QF'-HEALTH AND HUMAN SErWcES -CONTRACTORS ■
US DEPARTMENT OR EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENTb^^

(This certifipatipn is'Vequifed by the regu!ations:irnp[em"enting^ Drug-Free"
Workplace Act.of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, tltllV',''Subtitle D; 4i u'S.C, 701 s^.). the ,Jahuary.-;31,
-1989, regulations "were amended and published as. Part II of.the;May 25.199d:Federal Register (pages ■
. 21681-21591), and require certificaUon by corit'ract6rs;(and by inference, sub-'contractors), prior to - •
award.-that they will maintain a driigrfree .workplace. Section 30lt630(c) of the regulation p'rovides that
a, contractor (and by infererice,' sub-contractors) that'is a State may.elect to make one.certification to the

..Department in e^ year in lieu-of certificates for.each Agreemerit during the'federal fiscal
yeaV (»yered by the certification. The certificate set out beioyv: is a material representatlon.df^fact upon
which'reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreerhent. False'certification or violation of the -
certiflcation.shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension ortermination of Agreements, or.

•• .govemmeht wlId.p:'^gsp.ehsion or deb^atrnent. Gpnlractors'.usjng this, fonri 'shb.uld send it .to:, •"

;Cornmls8ionef ' ;
NH.pepartrnent of Health and Human Services • ■
129 Pleasant Street ' .

.  Concord..NH 03301-6505.

. 1. .TheCont'ractdrcertifiesthatitwilldrwili'cbhtihuetoprovide.adrug-freewOrkplace'by;

• ..1.1. Pubiishipg a statement notifying employees that the urilawful rbanufacture, distribution,
^ dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;.

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about .

■. ' 1.2.1. ' The dangers of drug abuse In.the workplace; •

.1.2.2. ..The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. - Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2:4. . The penalties that rnay be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

.  in the.workplace;

'  1.3; Making it a requirernent that each employee to be engaged in the perforrriance of the ■'
.Agrieement be given a 'copy of the statement required by.paragraph (a);

1.4.-Notifyihgrthe employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employrrient under the Agreement, the emiilpyee will
1.4.1. 'Abide by the.terms of the statement; and .
1.4.2'. Notify the employer in writing of his Or her conviction for a violation of .a criminal drug

'" . . statute occurring in the .workplace no later than fiye.calendar days after sucf^jyiction;
i: .. v16/23^, :'^Exhibit.b'.'/..' . Contractor's Initials ' ;• ^

.  ' "f v Federal Reqmrom^^ . Date^T^^TTU?^
Page.^1 .-pfi0 '
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Neyv Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services >
Exhibit p -Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days aftbr receiving notice under
subparagfaph 1.4.2 from an employee of otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract

.  - officer.on whose contract.activity the convicted employee was working, unless.the Federal >'
^  agency has designated a central point forthe receipt ofsuch notices. Notice shall include the

identification nurrib.er(s) of .each'affected Agreement: - • . ■ « • ^

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within' 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted ■

1.6.1. taking appropriate personnel action against such -an employee; up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements.of the Rehabilitation Act of.1973. as
amended; or .

1.6.1 Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for. such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implemeritation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,4.3. 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2: The'Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreerrient.

- Place of Performance {street address, city, county, stated zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

IniUil

v1 6/23 . . • Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements . DateHZHHEHZ
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New Hampshire;Bepartment of^Health and
vEkhibitD-Federal^

SECTION BijCERtlFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING' a- / - r

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
•of Sectioh-3i 9 of-Rublic Law;101-.12T,'Goyernrnent wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, . .
andiByitl.An^iili^bByjdg^^ 1352); andturther'.agrees to have the Contractor's

■ r#re^ntatlv^j''as-ldentlfi^ in ■S6ctj6hs-1;11«and i.1'2 of-the'O^rieral-.ProVjsldins fexiecute the'follbwing
Certifi^ibh^•;^':'^•^ --v

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES-CONTRACTORS '
, US DEPARTMENT OF EpUCAtlON-CONTF^CTORS ■

^  US DEPAR'TMENT.OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS . : .

programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
. ^Temporary Assistance to.Needy-Rarh^
'*Child.S'upport .Enfprcement Program; under Title IV-D •
•Social Seryices^Bldck Grant'PrPgram under Title XX. '■
•Medicaid Program,underfitle'XIX V
!Corhrhunity;S.efyices Block Grant

■  *bhild CaVe Development Block Grant underTltle IV ' , ' '

The undersigned certifies, to. the best of his or her knowledge.arid belief, that:

1. . Np'Federai appropriated'funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
.  any^perepri^fof Influencihg.'br-attempting tolnfluence ah officer or employee^df any agency
■■'MertiberfphCongfess," an pfficer bramployee of Congress, or an ■

. 'Opngress in cbpnectioriwiththe awarding of ahyFederal contract, cohtihuatibn,"renewal,
'amehdmenfj pfifhpdificatipn^'plP any;Federal contract, loan, or cbbperatlVe-agreemeht (and by
specific meritioh s ^ '

,  -2... if any funds other than Federa!;appr6priated funds have been paid or .will be, paid to ahy perSori for .
influencing'or.attempting to influence ah officer.or employee of any agency, a Member of^Cohgress,
an pfficerdremployeeof;G6ngres'Sv'or ah7ernployee:pf a Merhber of Congress in cb -
this Federal cPritfact; loah^oFcboperatiye agreement.(ahd by specific mention sub-'.cbritractdrj. the
Vndersign'ed shall cbniiplete.aridJsubmit-Stahdafd Form-LLL, (piscldsure.Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance wilb its Instfuctidns, 8e'e'https://omb':report/icr/26l0d9-0348-p22/d6c/20388401

3. the und.e^sigr].ed^sh.al! require .that the language of this certification be included in the award • .
documehtfor sub-ayvardsiatall,liens.(ihcludihg subcontracts, and contraCts Undergrants, loans, and

. cpopefative:agreenierits) and that ail sub-recipiehts shall certify and disclose accordingly. ''' - .

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transactipn waS made of entered into. SubrhisSion of this certification is a prerequisite for making or

•• enterihglnto this trahsaction irhposed"by 'Sectidh1352. Title 31, U.S. code.. Any.person who fails to file .
the fequired certificatioh shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $iOibOb and not friofe than

•-'$,lb0;0.b6fdf each such failure. ' , " '

y.) ■

.Vt;?/23:, ■ .Exhibit'D- Contractor's liiitlals
,  .'■= ;Federai'Requirements DateVf:^/^^^^

:• tW:.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D -Federal Requirements

SECTION C: CERTIFtCAtlON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Cdntractoridehtified in Sectjon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive,Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and .12689 and Part 76 regarding
Debafment. iSuspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following.
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
'l. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability, of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be cohsidered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human .Services' (DHHS) ;
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However,,failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction. . .. - -

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
vyhen DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant, knowingly rendered an erroneous certiification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
. whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary, participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. • ' -

5. The terrhs "covered trarisaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," ̂primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as.used in this clause, have the rneanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order .12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See"
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-voI1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

(6. The prospective primary participarit agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the.proposed
•  covered transaction.lje entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower, tier covered ,

transaction with a person who.is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposaLthat it-.will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lo\wer Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in al.l.lpWer tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. .

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred,, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to.' check the Nonprpcurement List (of excluded parties)
https://www.ePfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/part-513. ntlal

v16/23 . Exhibit D Contractor's Initials,,,, ̂
Federal Requirements Date^^TT/TU^
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9. Nothing chained ih thef6reg6lhg shall'befc;onstrbe^..to;require%^^ '/•
:  records In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

.. information^bf a participant is'npt requifed'tp-exceedlHat which isi ribrmallY'possessed by a prudent
• ;persoh ih the'ordinary course.of busin'e^.deaHngs. • ,

10." Except fdrtransactionseuthoriz urider paragraph 6. of these instructions, if a participant in a
coyered transactiph:knowingiy-iehtersfintO;a>lower;tier c6vered;trahsactio^ is" •

,suspended,-debarred/ineligible, or ybluntarily^eXcludedTrom^participatibh iri this transaction; in^
" additiph 'to other remedies available'to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this " ,

■ • • v'transactionTor-cause^orrdefaylt/A'^^ • !• v ••••• •

PRlfyi^R^-CI^FJE^ :
1.1. .the' prpspective pniria'iy; participant certifies' to th'e best of its'knowledge and belief. that 'itand its

; 11.1, , Are not pVesently.;debarred,, suspended, pVpppsed for deb'arment^.,declaf;ed ineligible; or
•V.voluntarily excliidedTfom covered transactioris by any Federal departmentbrage^^ .

11 .i2. Have not within a three-year period-preceding this proposal (Agreernent) been c'pnyicted of
.  '••.1 ■ . bnliad a ciyil judgment rendered'against them,f6i" com'm,ission'offraud.or a cVimiriatofferis^

.  . . :in-cp'nheCtipn with oBtainingVattemptin'gito obtain. onjperfp^^^^ (Federal, State or
'  ?;ibcal).transactipn pracontract'underapub!ic-transactiph;''Violatioh:o,f Federal or;State .

antitrust statutes pr-cornmission otembezzlement; theft, forgery, briberyi-'falsificatibh or
destruction of records, niakirig faIseistatements,>or receiving stbleh prpperty;- '■.<

. 11-3.^ . Are not presenjly.,indicted^ criminally^or ciyiily charged by a.goyernmental entity

more

^^i-yri'Vpublic trahsactiphs;{F;ederal,'State or1bcal).terminatedT6r:cause'or;default.^-/'^^^

12. Where the prospective primary participant is .unable" to certify.to any ofthestatemehts/in this ..
certification, such prospective participant shalf atlach ah explanation to this proposal (contract).

■ 'LbviERTj^cp^ b, , ';
13. 'By 'signing'and subrhitting'thisioWeV tik^ proposal (AgreemVnt),' the pro Ibwer'tief'^' • .

.  'iparticipariti- as"defined in 45 CFRiPart 76, cartifiesitp,the'best pf Its.khdwledge.and belief that it and
• its'-prihcipals: . .r- •
-13.1. Are^nptpresently debarred, suspended,'proposed.for:debarment, declared ineligible, or

. • y.9iU''^\?r.'iy'%9'!J^®dyrpm participatiori iii this^tra^^^
'''agency;'-.'

.13.2; , , vyhere the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify ;to.,any of the'above, "such
prospective.participant shall attach.an,explanation tpthis proposal (Agreement).' '

1  -na •r,

14. The prospective lower.tienparticipant further agrees by submitting :this proposal (Agreement) that it
wilMnclude,this clause entitled "Certification Regarding peb.arment, Suspension, Ineligibillty, and
yoluntarylEx'clusjph k LPwerTier Covered Transactions.awithoutirhpdification in alLlbwertier.covered
iransactiqnsjand in all solicitations for tower tier cbyered t^^ ■

'V- ' j • . vc, 4.'

n tia -

m
vl.6/23 •  v;-'Exhibit D " .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Extiibit P ̂ Federal Requirements

SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

■ The Contractor identified in Section T.3 of the'General Provisions agrees by signature of the"
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and. 1.12 of theGeneral Provisions. to execute
the following certification: .

The Coritractor will comply, and will.require.any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are notjimited to: - • .

1. Uniform Admlnistr^ative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200). . ; • .

■2. The Orrinibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S:C..Se'ction.3789d) which
fjfbhibits recipients of federal funding under this statute froni discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the; delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race,' color, religion, national
origin, and sex'. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity

• Plan;- , ' ' ' - , ,
3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts

,  -b'y reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients .of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discrirninating, either in.employment practices or in.the delivery of
services orbenefits, "on the basis .of race,- color,.religion, national origin, and sex! the Act includes
Equal Employrnent Opportunity Plan requirements; :

R'Qhts Act of 1964 (42 U-S.C. Section 2bO0cl, which'prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity)';

5.' The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;. . ■ ,

6. fhe.Americans withDisabilltles Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sectlohs 12131-34), Which.prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and
local government services, public accommodations. commercial.facilities,.and transportation; '

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C! Sections .1681, 16.83, 1685-86), which prohibits
: discrimination on the basis of sex in federallyiassisted education programs;

8. . The Age Discriminatiph Act of ,1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrirhinatibn on
the basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
emplpyhierit djscriminatipr);:

9. 28C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S.-Pepartment of Justice Regulations-OJJDR Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. -
.  ,42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; •

Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No, 13279 (equal protection of the laws for.faith-based
and commuriity organizations); Executive Order No. 13,559, which provide fundamental principles

■ and policy-making^criteria for partnerships with faith-b'ased and neighborhood organizations; •
10. -28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal trealrhent for Faith-Based

Organizations): and Whistleblower protections 41. U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
.  Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. .L. 112-239, enacted January.2, 2013) the Pilot

Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees agairist reprisal for certain whistle blowmg activities in connection with' federal grants
and contracts.

.T'?® Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671 q.) vyhich seeks to protect human, health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient: or outdoor air

———. . \ lno. ' .
■ Exhibitp Contractor's Initials j;—
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'12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic Structure for regulating
-•dischargesfoi:'pbllutantsjntp'the,waters;bfthe Uhjted'.State^^
surface waters. - ■

..13. 'Civilian'i^gency.Acquisition the Defense.Acquisitio'n'Reg^ (41
'  ■ ' U.S^cyi90B).wjiich est^bNshes administra^

conlractore" violate orb'reaVh contract terms;and provideTofi'uWsane : .
- - • 'I ;; : r. -'V /J''- . - ''i • .'i i' i. r l/-'. 'V' .• v"'

14'.''eppt7act!i^qfj<'Hom^ an(i''6^^^^
' conVacfe^awardeci.by t^nonrFederarehtjty^^

. ..,,,mechanicS;dr raborers^niust inciude^a^ 40 U.S.C; 3702 and, 3704, as '
supplemented dy'peparimentof Labor regulations (29,CF^^ . -~'v

'  15. Rightstp inventions Made.Under a Contract or Agreemeht 37 CF.R 1401.2 (a) which establishes
,  ' ithe^ecip'ent or subrecipie'ht wishes to enter into a^dntract'With a'Vmall. tju'sines
, ■ ' ..Prglniiatipn" regardmg'-tKe-substitutioh Of partieSp'-assignrneht brperfor

, . deyei6f)m,ehtal..pr.research work under that "funding agreement," the rpcipient'pf subre'cipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part'401, ."l^ights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit

.  .'.'Organizahbns:and Smail'BOisiness Fimis Urider Goyefrihlent Grahts;>Cbntrabts and Cooperati^^
.  ■ ^ Agi;eembnts," and 'ariyiipiplerhehtihg regulationslssued by thb awardirig'age . J .

The certihcate setput below js a material representation of fact uponwhich reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. Fajse.certification or.ylolatjon of-the certification shall be grounds for
'susp'ensidh 'of paymerlts, suspension or termination Of Agreements, or,government wide suspension or ,
deb'arment: ' . . . ■

In the eyerit'aFpdefarbr State cdurt or Federal or State administratiye agency makes a firiding of
- dlkcnmination afterp due process; hearing on the grounds of,rape, color,- religion,-national origin, or sex

against a recipient of funds',"the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to th'e Office for Ciyil. R.ights,
.tp-the abplicattle cphtracting^agency or division within the Department of Health and,Humari Services,

:  ' ; and tb.th'ebepartrhent of Health'ahd Human Seiyices Officepf the Ombudsman. ,;
. The Contractbrjdehtified ill Section 1.3 of the,General.Proyislons agrees by signature of the ..

- CoritrpctbrVrepresehtatiye as Identified jn Sections 1.1,1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, topxecute
the'fpllbw'ihg certific^^^^ ,•

'  ■ 1. ByeignihgandsubrnittingthisAgreement.theContractoragreestoco'mplywith'theprovisions
. . indicated above.

—W
,y1:6/23*7"''; I • ^ ExhibitD', • Contractor's Initials•v.fer'j, > , • , ' F.ederai Requirements : • ,DateHH5??EZ:'ivr* 1.-
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New Hampshire: Pepartm^nt of Health and Human Services
.  Exhibit b- Federal Requirements

SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law. 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smelling nbt be"p,ernhitted in any portion of any .indoor'TaciHty owned or leased
of contracted .for by an entity arid used routinely or regulafly for the provision oif health, day cafe,
education: of 'librarV seWices to'children under the age of 18", ifthe services are fuiided by Federal
programs either directly or through State or Ideal gbyernments, by Federal grant' coritrabt, loari',-br loan
guarantee, the law dpes npt apply.to children's services.provided in private residences, facilities .funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds; and portions of facilities used for inpkient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of'a civil .
fnonetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposltiori of an adrhlnistrgjive compliance order on

- the responsible entity. ' - . . .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions. to execute
the following certification; ... • -

1. By signing arid submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to rnake reasonable efforts .to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.

)•

v1 6/23 " Exhibit D Cbntractbr's Initials _ ^ ^
■ Federal Requirements . . Date^^TITTO^

ntb
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^Do<^sign.En\rej6F^ID;42CB2C19786W-48^^ J.' j . -;■ V- \ ' ■ /

New Hampshire;Q^ '
v;Exh*bitP^^^

SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The^Federal Funding Accountability, and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of "
individual Federal grants equal^^ greater than.$30,000 and awarde^. on or after October "1, 2010, to
report ori 'data.related to executive cornpensation and'«s'sociated first-tier:subTgrants;of:$3d,000 or
tTiqre.'Ifthe initial award is below $30,000 but SLibsequeht,grant modifications result in a total-award
equal tb or oven$30,0bbr the-award is subject tp.the FFATAreporting requirements,'as of the date oT
.theaward^ff'h 'r..-. -

..In,accordance with 2-CFR Part.170 (Reporting Subaward and'Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (PHH.S) rnust report the-following informatiori for=any
sub award or coritract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;.

. 1. Name of entity .

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency' :• , . ■ ; .

,4. ^NAIGS code for contracts/.CFDA program nurnber for gt^arits •

5. Program source . ,

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action .

7. Location of the entity ' • ' ' ' •
,  . V'

8. . Principle place pf.performance>

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total cdrhperisajipn and/iarTnes_.of,the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of arihuail gross revenues are from the Federai government, and those

revenues. Pre greater than ;$25M annually and , . , .
10.2. Compensation infomhation Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

•Prime gra'nt recipJents .iTiust^submit FFATA.required data by the end of themorith; plus 30
days, in'which the award or'award arhehdrrient is made.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Trarispafency Act, Public Law,109-282 arid.Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees, to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provislonsexecute the following Certification: . , ^

The below narned Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to compjy with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparericy Act.

Initial

to
y1 6/23 • I'Exhibit D. Contractors Initials

^Federal Requirements . . pate^^H^HEIZ
Rage 9. of 10



Oocusign Envelope ID: 42CB2C19^5A-4BAC-B397-889B191F810B

New Hampshire Department of Health and'Human Semces
Exhibit Federal Requirements

FORMA ■

As the. Grantee, identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions!' certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

ER64HRTRKFY3
1.. ..The'UEr{SAM;gov).number for your entity Is:: "

2. In your business or organization's.preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loaris, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,

• and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange'Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of theinternal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Narne:

Name:

Amount:

Amount; _

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

1/21/2025

Date:

Contractor Name: Ascentria care Alliance, inc

y—Slon«dby:

Ad^AOWC-ISIVe.- ̂  re-S
Name: Angel a Bovi 11
Title. President/CEO

ntlal

v1 6/23 Exhibit D

Federal Requirements
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Dowsign EnwtopeJD: 42CB2C^ ' ; . ; f ■ -

-  ̂ of Health and Human Services ;

PHHSJnfo^mati6n,S^BCuritY^Requirements: i

.  Definitions ;; v " ' • ■ • •

The following terms may be reflect,ed>n4 haye^the, descnb^^^^ meaning in this .document:.

+, . 4. •. "Breach"-., meane^ ^ loss.,,;of .!>, contrpi,:•• .cp.mprpmiseiiK.unauthp.rize /"disclosure,
■uunadthOrizsd-ra^^ ;.urialithorized^|access,'^^ Sjm.iiab-term referring, to

- S . situatjpnsjyvhere peispns;pthenfe^ aUthbrlzed
'  - "i/pOTPM 'have. access:pr.'potential-;access.4

::^y^hpthe.r,physicaJjOr;elect^^ information;"' Breach"
' shall have theeame meaning as the.term."Breach"rin section'164.402 of Title 4.5,

■ . ..Qodeof Federa.hRegulations. , '"Vc.;.' , ' .v ^ ' rr-: V" '-''
•-S- /i ■•••/' , fl-'" - J '0.' -y 'u"','. ' -.''-A ' ' ' • ' "

■ i 2- . ."ppmpufer- Security' Incident"rs^ballphave;the:.sarpevmeaning ^.'iGornputer.Security'
/■ '.pe,identj:m sectiQn..iyi/0;(2)-of;NIST5Publ 80pi6;i;,;£,Gomputer„Security Incident

'  -Handling',Guid.e, National Institute^of^Standards andTechnologyv-U.S/D.epart^^
Commerce. .>• ■

;3. . rConfideptial Ihfprrnation; means, all confidential . information -
discj,dspd>:by 9ne;.;-party;Jto:thei;o.then.puc^,as>all./n^^
#.sj.stancfe,behefitS,an.d;perspnaJJnfo^^^^ limitation.- Substance

.  . Abuse TreafmentRebord^^^^ ■
■  :^PersonallAld^tifiableiIhfpntiatidiT - ' 'ao-

. . Cdnfldehtidl .Information also includes.any and ail information pvyned;dr managed by
th^e'State of NH - created, received from ordh behajf of the Department of H'ealtKahd

■ ; Hunian'Seryjces (pHHS).oriacces$ed in the course/ofpeffofming^cdhtracted services
, ■ A fiojF, Which:/cdll^.ctipn^ disclosure;':pf'dtection;.-:andryispdSitidn or

-  ..federal law. ■or''regulatioh.VTh.is infofmation includes,'.but is nbt^^ Prbtected- ,
. Health:information (PHI), PerSoha| Infofrnatiop (PI), PersbnahFinancial Infofiriatidn

■  (PFI);;Federal TaxJnformatiori" (Ffl),;;s^^^^ Rayrnent'Card
j;-' 'Inddstfy.'tPC.I),' and Or other sensitiy^^^ -n ' 7

:• 4. v^tFbd:UseA';meahs;/anyvper'soh.. 'or.'e contractor,^.contractor's employee, ■
:  ■ ■ business-associate, subcontractor, other dpwhstream "user,ietc:) that receives DHHS

.  data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract. '

"HIPM" rrieans the Health Insurance Portability arid Accountability Act of 1996 arid
theregulationd'promdi^tedthereunder7-7- A
■"Iriddent"'mearis^^ act that potentially vidiates an-'explicit.brimplied security, policy,

-  • ■ ' whichinclti'de^ ^'ttempts-ielther-fall^ or sDcce^fu1).'tlp"''gaih 'uhaut'honzbd access to a-
'■ ^ ' r 'system dr'JtS'data, .unwanted 'di'sfOptioh or den'ial-of sert'icA'-the^'un'authpriz^ use .of

■  ■■ ;v -y-vd system'.fortheVprbcessirig br-stb>age'e^ ,
•  firmware, or "software characteristics ■withbutHh.e^whef'i^ kribwIed^e^instructi

consent: Incidents include the loss of data.thfpugh.thbft or device misplacement, loss
" 7 InltUI

■■v-.-'"'--.'/' ■ . Xphlractor Initials.. '

vi$.'Last u|^ale io/09/18". • . - • - -'. -1/21/2025
■..'.....i::-,'---':--- • Page'-l.-'of9 ■ , ^.'.Date' . • •;

5.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E '; *

DHHS Information Security Requirements

or mlsplacernent of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic,
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification brdestfuctloh.

7. "Open Wireless" Network" means any-network-br segment of a network that Is not
designated by the State of NewHampshire's Department of Inforniation Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for

'  , the transmission of unericrypted PI," PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data..

8. " "Personal Information" (or ."PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

'  ■ information aB-defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, eta,
alone, or When combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to'a specific individual,' such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name,"etc; " .

.9. '"Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health.
Ihformatibn at 45'G.F.R;. Parts-160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Humah Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning, as provided in the
■ definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F!r; §

'  160.103, ■

.  .11. "Security RUIe" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected.Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, arid amendments
thereto. .. . . '.

. , 12; "Unsecured Protected Health Inforpiatiori" means Protected Health Information that is
.  not secured by .a .technology stajid^rd. that renders Protected Health Information

unusable, unreadable, or.indecip.herablefo unauthorized individuals and is developed
or .endorsed.)by a standards developing organization-that is accredited by the
■American-National Standards Institute.- ■ ,

1. RESPONSiBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

.A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Infprmation.

•  1;. The Contractor..niust.npUuse,. disclose, maintai.n orjransmit Confidential Information
.  .. ,.-,.except as reaspnabjy riecessary as outlined under this Contract. Further^ Contractor,

.. ■i.riclud.lng,-.but'not .limited, to .all. Its. directors, officers, empioye.es. and agents,- must not
,  use, disc|o,se,.majritain orlrahsmitR^^ in any .manner that would constitute a-vlolation

of,the Privacy and Security Rule." . .

Contractor Initials

InltUI

V5. Last update 10/09/18 . • - , • . 1/21/2025
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New::Hampishjre"pepartrneh^^^

DHHS informatidhvSecurity. ,

::2. TheGphtriactorrmust .not dis'd any.Confidehtial lnformation in response to a request
.  ■'■^fqr;disclosure>dni'theibasis.that^ to a'-'subpdena, etc.,

witHoutfirst nbtlfylng.pHHS so that'.pHHS'.has'ao
'• . . • , -:.the''dlscl6sure.\.;:::f ...:

; V -.3; :';jf-iDHfHS;hotlfieV^^^ to'.be.bouhd'by ..additional
>■ ■ ^restriGtipris%er.jancliabbyeut^^ of PHl

•  - ■ ■ v Contractor must be .bound by such
.;■■■ tv-' violation of', such" additional .

■  .. 4:W.fhe GdhtraCtor'a^^ from.disclosed to an End
Useh mustibnly^.be used-Tp'ursuant-.to the terrhs ^

r  5.' :^heiG.6htractpragrees :pHHS;bata.Qbtained:under this Contract:m be used for
.  'any:other'purposef that are .

■ 6. The G6ntract.Qr^ agj^stp-grantac^ pf
DHHS ■•for-- tfie "purpose*bf-InspeWing'-to confix corrtpiiance'with 'theieriris of -this

; . \ ii/ , MEtrt6i3s:6^sEbii.RefRA^
1.- Appiicatjo,n..Encryption.Vif EndAUseV ii"'t^

■■ Data;^'be.^een applications; .the'Contractor :attests the .ap
. by^an;expert■.kn6)M^gea^ Jn""cyber >securi^' and' that "said applte^tloii.'s' •■Inciypiti .

-  capabilTtie's ensure'.secure transmission via the internet. • ' '
; ;End;Use.r may not use computer disks

■; as'a method.ofiransmitting DHHS

3. . Encrypted Email. .End User may only'employ emaii tp transmit Confidential Data* if email .
'S5:encrypted..and;;be being nar^iv^d hy email addresses "of persons

■..ai^bri^d^^r^iyp;;sLictiinf6mT^
. 4. Enciy'pted Web-Site; Iftnd^Usef is employing the'W^

. - secure.spcl<et layers fS.SL) must be used and the web site must be secure. ,SSL encrypts
•  data transmitted viaa-Web site. . nv . . .. ' ' , .. . •

■  > End.User'.may.hot use file hostingseryfcbs; such as .Drppbox or Gbbgle cipud^ Data. '
.6. ,^Ground,iyiail,Sei^ U,s'er rnay only transmit -Confidential. Data, via cert/f/ed.ground'

nia|l^t.iii.ir),^the 9Qntirier;\talLl/s.;an^ named .individual. • v
7. Ldptops'dnd'PDA;" If End User is employing'portable devices to^ransnhit Confidential Data

^  'said^devices'musf be encrypted and-password-protected.^^

■  ̂ I ■ ■' ' '
•  ■■ "'V . ■ . ••• ;'• • Contractor Initials S' ' -

ys.'Last u^ale 10/09/18. . . ' ';l/21/2d25
... -Pagers of 9 . . - - Date - i / •. .
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DHHS Informahon Security Requirements

8. Qpen Wireless Networks. End-User may hpt:;transmit! Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting yia an open wireless network: > ^ .-

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
• , , or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End

User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which inforrhation will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Prpto.cor(SFTP), also.khbwn as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP" tb -transniit Cbnfidentlal- bata.'^Ehd "User will structure the
Folder and access privileges'to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information. SFTP

.  folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion.cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will-be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF ibENtrFIABLE RECQRbS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
• Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract.-To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention . ~ . . - . \ ■

1 The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
cohriection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply,in the implernentation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup

'  data and Disaster, Recovery.;locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to'ehsure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that'can impact State'of NH systems and/or
Department confidential, information for .contractpr provided systems;

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness arid education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.' •

4. . The Contractpr agrees to retain'airelectrohic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in'a secdfe location andldentified ih'sectloh lV.''-A;2

5. The Gphtractof egrees Confidential - Data "stored in a. Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH cbrripllant sdiution and comply'with all,applicable statutes and
regulations regarding.the privacy arid security. All servers ,arid devices must have
currently:Supported and. !hard,ened . operating . systems, the./, .latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements^

■6. ■ the,Gontractor. agrees to and-ensurOs its .complete cooperation, with the State's
rv." •,JGhief lnformatioh;0ffieerin.the;detection'ofahy security.vulnerabilityofthehpsting

.infrastructure: ' ■ : ■ '- 'r

1., If the Cohtractor will maintain^any Confidential I nformation oh Its systems (or its siib-
/(^iitractbr:syeteniis)/jhte Contrac?tpi:"will .maintain' a ;dociumei:ited prQce$s_for .securely

- disppsing.,prsucb^3 cpntract-termii;iation:-'and will obtain written
: certification f6rahy:State of.NeW Hampshire data^d
&hy}>iibcoritraiilt6fsvas..a part-of-bngoing,^ emergency?.? arid .:op; disaster recoveiy

;  : . operteh's':"->Vyhen cnq" longer ih; use;:"-electfp^^^ containing State of New •
:  : V . ■ ;Hampshire\deta^<sheil.ibe;renderedbunrecp

. . . .. -r i'accotdahce:.with' :indUstlyraccepted:stahdards"for;s^^ and media'
.sahitization.iprdtherwise'physically destrpyinglhernediatfpr example, degaussing)

■ ■as"'described:iri NISt Special 'PubllcationjSOO-SS, Rev .l, Guidelines.for Media
.  . : . " ■ ;Sa'nitiiatibh;^Nati6ha!' instftUt^ Technology, urs., Departmerit of.

:  Gbmmer(;^.;--The'.C6Mra^^ iri^writing'^at time.of the,data
: A ^/destru^:ti6h^'^a"nd':w^)(p^dvide;^ request.

'bSen-UpdpSh^des^ ■■>dhd;i^valid^ed.-% :appliPable;':^--i;eguiatbry' and ■
"■'profeVsionalft^^^ for rietention requirements will'Be jointly "evaluated by the

State and Contractor prior to destruction. .'
.. . - . ,2. •i.,ynless:6theiwises[)e.cified, withinthirty>(3p) d .

.  .-^Gpntra^rpag'fe cppies..of Confidential Data using a secure
rhethod suchjas s^^^^ ; .vvu:.:.'

.  3. Unless dthefWise specified, withiri thirty!(30) days of the termination .of this Contract.
■  ■: '■ . . ■ ;epntra^or'agreWs''td'cd Confidential Data by means-

;  • "••' df^ata erasur^,'. also'known as se^^

Iv. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY ■

,'• 'a,.'Gontracto.r-agrees-to. safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, arid any
,  . derivative data""pr,fiies.as follbws: -

■l.^.The:eQntractorwiif^^ securitycdntrpls to protect Department confidential
-  • • ---::^jjj5fof^ti6n cbllebted, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted

services. .

2; The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protept.Department confidential
--informatipn \thr6ughout'-tRe. inforrriatibn lifecyde, where^applicable, ,(frbm creation,

■  transfoim;atibh;^.use; storage and secure destruction), regardless of "the media used, to
-store the data (I.e., tape,-disk, paper, etc.).

Contractor Initials

•InitUI .
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■ 3. .The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access , controls to
contractor,systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information"
where applicable. . . .

.4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information.for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness "and education for its End Users
■in support of protecting Departmentconfidential information. ■ . .

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting. any core .functions of the engagement
supporting the. services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the .Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The. Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
-  State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and

procedures, systems access forms,.and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access

. belrig .authorized. .

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45.
CFR .160.103; the Contractor .will execute a HIPAA" Business Associate Agreerrient
(BAA) with the Departrhent arid is responsible for- maintainind compliance with the
agreement.. :

The Contractor will \york with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey."The purpose of the survey is to. enable, the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any chariges In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the' life of the Contractor , engagement.. The survey will be ■ completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Departrnerit and the Contractor.changes.

10. The..Contractpr will .not store, knowingly or unkripwingly, any State of New Hampshire
,  . orPepar^ment ^ata offshore or outside theMundaries^:6fmeUnitec(:Statesunl'ess.prior

express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
• member within the Department.

11. Data .Security Breach,Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly..take measures to prevent .

'  . —InllUI
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■ "future breach.and'^mininriize any the breach. The State.
'  ;sh'allTecpvelTrom theVGontractbrall'Costs of-response'fand recovery frpni

.■ •'

. 12. .Cbntfactpr.:,must,Vcom ^with;.all /applicabte .'andje'gulations regarding.the .
-priyacyahd
■theKivacyahd ^curity 'df f I ahajPHIat Wje^di an "scdpe'ttatl^ notJess thari.the level •

van&'scbpepf reqajreipents applidabie"t6;f^^^ .
■=:-proVislon.s-bf the Ph^i-acS/'Actbf.-lbTA ^S'U/SiCVs 552a)

''■(4.5.G.F.R.V!§5b)vH.IP Privacy ahd:Security Rule^(4&^ 160 and ,164) that
govern .prOteOtions fbr^iindiyiduaily Identifiable^health- information and as-applicable \

,  ̂un'der State law. . • 'vC-S-• - • r.. ■

"Vs/Cpintfactdr'agreee.to establish abd.maihtaim^ and

W'l.

ij- '^-.uniiutbpdzed !use; oryaccess tojit. :The.;safegbard§' fnustyprovide a level .and scope of
-t ^;^u^ty^that-is-nbt^le theiJeyehahd.bboberOfis%urity;requiremehts^established

■>^^af^by:;the;]State:^^fi1)Je>^i:Haib^ Refer to
'' ; W.endor.^Resob at' 'https5//w^;hh..9dy^ the

. . 'Department'^vpf ^jhfor^^^^ policies, vguidelihesV standards,.' and .

.■14: Confractbragfee^^ notlficatlbri and ihciderit respohse
■'"'•■•prpCeS'S'' fMici. Cf'sfA'o CaAi triK«

' VI. .This ̂ includes- a.: cgnlideritial 'inforhfiatloh^bfeachi 'cpmputer-seb^^^^ "or
"tate of f^ew Hampshire

fS^dontrattbf^^ ..

' IS.-The GontractOT-must ensure that all End Users: "•
\. .. ■ :• . ■ '-V, - --V' ' u-j-: ::iv -'.V • • . : •>•

V  a. • .comply.^with such safeguardsas referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented

c  lO-.

frbni'lpss, theft of inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

.  c; ■ erisufe"tliat"^iaplops'and'''i>tfier electrphic 'devices/media cohfainirig PHI, PI, or
•  . V';lC.*iPn''2ira"an^K'/r\toH »ahrl r\-aeet«»/M'H_rNrAfar^oH • • • ' 'i.'

" VS.' Last uRd,ate;*16/0W18 . ■
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Exhibit E - ,

DHHS Information Security Requirements

• d. send emails containing Confidential !nformation only if encrypted and being sent

■ to and being received by. email.addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information. ' . . . " •

.. e. -limit disciosure.of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f.' Confidential Information received.underthis Contract and individually identifiable

.  data derived/rpm DHHS Data, rnust be stored in an area that is,physically and
•technologicaliy secure'frorn access by unauthorized, persons during duty hours

,  ,as well as hpn-duty hours (e.g., door locks; card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).
.. . g; only authorized End Users may-transmit .the Confidential'Data,; including any

.  ■ derivative files containing personally identifiable inforrhation, and in all 'cases,
such data must'be encrypted.at alL.times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section I.V above.

h. in all.pther Instances Confidentiaf Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
.  using appropriate safeguards," as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
. circumstances invplved. . . . ;

.  i. understand that .their-user credentials (user name and password) must not be
:  . . shared with anyone. • End Users will keep their credential information secure.

This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible.for .oversight and compliance of , their .End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct o.nsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy.and security requirements provided ln-herein,;HIPAA, and other
applicable jaws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed

.  , of in accordance with this Qontract..

V. LOSS REPORTING

. The .Contractor-must notify the .Staters Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
-  Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling-and Breach Notification
procedures, and in,accordance .with 42 C.F.p. .§§ 431..300 - 3db. In. addition to, and

_ .notwithstan dontractpr's ̂ mpliarice'^ith^-'ajl bVpl'Pable* obligations and' procedures, •
Contractor's'pfbcedufes must al^o .address howthe Cohtrac
1. Identify Incidehts; / .

2, Determine if personally identifiable information is invplved in Incidents;.

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as .required in this Exhibit'Or P-37;

Contractor Initials
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^jrlty Requiremeht;

'4. '^Identifyand66hyene\a'corerfespon^e.groupt6'fletermln;fetheTisklevelof"Incidentsarid'
! -deteimine'risk-basedYe^pon^^^^ ". ■ .■'•> ■• ' ■ ; •' .;■•■

A 5;;;7l^1ejminje:yy]i.etber6f:each "nptific^^^^^
!>riotifiwtlon 'methods, timing, .;s0urce,- and coptehts from.'amoh different options, ;,and

:• ; bear.costs asSdciated with the Breach notice as well ais any mitigatiori'measures. ,

I  ' ••

vi:

oin accordanGe?wit|i-NH RSA-359-C^^ \ ■■■:■•: . , '"r; fr.-, . ■ ■; -U

;pERsoisisTO'"c^ ■ T
A. DHHS Privacy Officer; - , - ■ '

'DHHS Security.Officer; ,.■: - ;

v.'"

V  ' . f . '

\  *

'j' ' ' .

.  ' .fp

I
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Exhibit F

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and. any. of Jts agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), aidefined herein, shall .be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire", Department of Health and Human Seryices; "Department", shall be .referred
tp-as the "Covered Entity,"Thb Contraictdr and the Department are collectively referred to as "the

■parties."

The partiesagree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, . the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Inforrnation, 45,CFR Parts 160, -162, and 164;(HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title.XIII,.
Subtitle D; Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestrhent-Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934!-
el sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulatioris may be amended from time to time.
(1) Definitions . .

a. The following terrtis shall have.the sarfie meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach," . "Desigriated Record Set,". "Data Aggregation," Designated Record
Set," . "Health Care OpeVafions," "HITECH. Act," "Individual," "Privacy Rule,".
"Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreehient, (BAA) means the.Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and' confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate

.. working with PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the. Covered Entity,
under the Agreement.

c. "Constructively Identifiable," meahs there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available

. information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the.Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health.information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Cbvered .Entity; and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below..

e. "Pkrt 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient
Identifying Information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. -"Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health iriformation. .
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and .Is
developed of endorsed by'a standards developing organization that Is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute; ^ .

(2) . Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services ■
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but-noti

Exhibit F

Contractor Initials ^Business Associate Agreement
. 1/21/2025

.V2.o: —



■■ .Doajsign EnwIopeJOi^CBaClWSA^^ -y . v..lign Enwjof ĵO: 42CB2C19:865A-4^C-B397-889B191F81 OB
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=v. ' •limits t6'airitsdirectpre;=officers; employees, and agents.-.shai! protect any PHI a^
■ re'qulred by HIPRA\an'd;42^^'e^ disclose,"rriaintaih, store, Or

. „ - transmit PHI in any.manner that would constitute.a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
\ Part 2.^

■ b! , Business Associate may use ordisclpse PHI,.as applicable:.

I. . For the proper management and administfatioh of the Business Associate;

v llyV'As r^ujred by law, according'^ the terms set forth In paragraph c. and d. below;
:  ̂ ■ lli;'V-'Acc6rdihgl6.the,HIPM minimurri necessary s^^ ■

IV; For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered

. or aggregated and relrialns construdiyely identifiable
'  . may not be used'fer any purpose outeide .the performance of the Agreem .

. c. To;the e)dept(Business/Associate is'.perm the. -or the. Agreernent to
..^djsclpse'PH.I^.|'430yJ!Mi^
-B,usiness;.!A^^^ .associate' agreement or .'other
:'agreement/withJ-the,W and/
^eJ^su■^i^s|that■||il/i;^ui^efnen^^^ as;
part\df this BAA*'with",tRe;poyered Entity,-are included in those business associate
agreerrients with the "third pahy or subcontractor.' /■

v .- / d. ■The ^Bu$ihess.;fe response ..to'^ recjue.st or
V- :3|^ub^ena1:)r cpurt.ofdehv^^ it ■'' T'\is2requlred.'biriaw,;wit^^

•  -;deterrhlrieih6w'it6 be^t'protecVthe;f^l''lf
•  ■ •' ythb5^Busihess'\'Assbciate/-agrees-Uo. refrain from ^ .

/;> . .-cppp^rateTwrt^^^ EntityNn.any.'effort the Govered-Ehtity'^uhd
■  ■ ' :Pphtest;the" request fpr-idiscldsu.rei's^^^^ applicable

felptihg to. Part 2-fecpfds, -theBusihPss'Associate sh'^ll resist
..:part 2 fecords:in,any.judicial proceeding. . '

(3) " Obliaatidns arid Activities of Business AssPPiate . .
-a. .._-,Busjrjbss. .)^^$ciate;. ! shall ..-Jmpjemeht; apprppriate .safeguards to prevent
' • u"nauthdrized,.use or,disclp with: Hi.pAA 'Privacy Rule

.and Security Rule \yith regarded electronic PH),'and Part" 2, as applicabje.,
b! Thef%usjhejb!.".J^s^ "notl^' th'e .Covered' .Entity's Privacy

,  ' . Officer'aflhelfeliowing ema^ after the
, 6usihess;^sspcjate^ has deteimin^'.that any^use .prdisclosure hot provided'for by

.  i^ contra^',v;incliudihg'ajiy'kh^^^ breach •
■ • -ha^'.'ocpurred'"potentiallye'xposi'hg or. .cdmprpmising. the"PHI., ' 'this includes■
■•inSdyefteht -br-adcidehtal u§e§. dr^'lscipsjjfes -or -breaches ofunsecured protected

"  • rhealth^infoiWation:--^^ -
c." . In the event of a breach', the Business Associate shall .comply with the terms of this

,  Business Associate Agreemeht, all applicable . state and federal laws and
■  ■'■■ reguratiohs aha^anyadditjoha^^

." d.' . ..tBpBusiness.Ass^^^^ a risk assessnient, based on the information '
V  ' available,'iat the trme jt" becpmesraw^^^ of,any ...known or .suspected privaey-li^i

'  r, * . ••Exhibit F ' ' ' ; T t-f?
,, • " . Contractor Initials
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. security,breach-as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk-assessment shall include, but not be limited^to:

I. The nature ahd exterit of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers'and the likelihood of re-identification;

II. . The unauthorized-person who. accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
,  protected, health: inforrnatibh;

III. \/yhether the protected health information was actually acquired orviewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
hasbeen mitigated. .

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a-written report to
the Covered Entity as soon" as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. . Business Associate shall make available all of its internal, policies and procedures,
bpoks'and records relating to the use and-disclosure of PHI received, from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf-of Covered Entity to the
US "Secretary of health and Hurnan Services;for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's, and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule,'and Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI .under the BAA to agree in writing to ,adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records,-books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI ;tp the Covered:Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to '
determine .Business Associate's.-compliahce with the terms of the BAA and -the
Agreement. • , ,

i. ■ Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request frorh Covered Entity,..
Busmess Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered. Entity, to ah individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164'524.-

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI.or a record about an indiyidual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI. available to Covered

,  Entity for arriendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Ehtity_to fuifiirits Qbilgatiohs;uhder45 CFR"'Section 1W.526-'

k. . Business Associate shall document any dJsclosures. otPHi and information related
to any disclpsures.as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
-a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such informatiori as Covered Entity rhay Vequire to fulfill .
its obligations , to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to ffflln'

ExhlbllF ,
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^■^ lNr.C/v^'aecordancewith-45'GF^^ :" .i" ■ ,,;. .• •.,.ir; -- • •• ; ■

air^jy^frb'i^/the'Bua^ tte 'Busing 'shalfrwithin fiv^(5) '
business days forward'sych rdquest'to'Cpvered Eptity. CoyereGl'Enlity shaH ^

\ fh A'rOCf^AP^Cf Klllf\/ ' i t ■ .•?^.^■!'•_'■ j^g tho'
Business'

.  , . .„ ., , - -'Busihess.  Assodate,shal|,instead respond td,the'jndividual^

^^' h. - \:VWtHirii"thirtyt(3pj''budness; daysVf termination'of the.Agreement;fohany re
Associate, all ^

-  -■. ■.. 9^ reSfjyed' byih^Business^A connection' \- A "with the Agreemini;'arid'sha^ copies;pii.backTdps.6f such> in any
.- . form or platform. .•-' ■ - >'••■;': .. ' ;

. Vl:;.,> if retjurn;ppdostrucfiQm^
■ v' - state.■ ' " • ■• ■ ■•. '.orlf^erar'jav^^ l^hail wntihuel^to^^^

.  of the Agreement, to such PHI and ilmit further'uses and disclbsu■  . ■ ; ■■ - -v ^''■ ;BrJHI}to;thoW.purptfses'th#ma^^ .
'  ■'••• •'V/jdn'g"'^S;the'BuslrfeSs"Assoeiate"m"a;ihtaihs-'^ Gdver^ 'Entity; In 'its

'"--sb||Vcjiscretidh/req
■ teWsihess Assodateehall certi^ -

•r'. - - '- , . ••:-destr^ed;v .v- 'V' . ' '' '

■  .;>v rv'-i: .
a- /Covered Enmy:sha!i post e current, version'of the Notice of the Privacy-Practices

on the Covered Entity'.s website: ' - ■ .;•■ ' . ■-

https://yvww.dhhs;nh,gov/p6s/hipaa/publications!htm iri accordance vvith'45 ■CFR
. . . jSectipn 164:520. . ' , . ' . ^ ' .V
b/ ■ ICoy.ered'Entity'.shaii prpmptiy...h^tify;.Busin^a^^^

revocatipri of perrnissibn^prPyidedloXpyered Entity byVdividuals whpse PHI -rnay.'
,  . ■ be used or disclosed by Business/Associate under this BAA. pursuant to 45 CFR .

, Section.lM50apr"45ppR^^^^ '
c.; ■ poyered entity,shall promptly,notify: Business Associate, of-any-Testrictions on the...

uSeor disclOsufe of-PHrthat-ppyered Entity'has agreed to
CFR 164.522, .to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's

.. use or disclosure of PHL' . ,

■  Terminetbn of Aareemfint^^^ . ^ V,..
-a; Iri addition tpthe ■General Provisions (Pt37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity.

■  -. may jmmddiately.tennlhate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Assoda^e of theBusiness Ass^OciateAgre

.  Cbvered';Eht[tyVmay:either.immediately
oppbrtunityVfpr.BusirtessAs^ cure the aiieged' breach wiihin a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity, , '

(6) Miscellaneous ^; ■ . "
.  v. .^a.,../ Definitions,. Laws,, and,,Regulatory;i^^^ All laws and. regulations fuse?'

.-.Vv" ■ ' : . . I 'Mt? '
■  v' 'V-.'^ ' ; ContractorInlHais.'^L' T—Busings Associate Agreement
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:herein, shall refer to those laws arid regulations as-amended from time to time. A
reference.: in the AgreemenVas amended, to^ inclu this . Business Associate
.Agreement, to a Sertiph in HIPAA or 42'Part,2Vmeans the ̂  as in effect or
as amended

b.

c.

d.

." . ^

Change in law- Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as ;is necessary, from tirne to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate

•/•tb comply .with-the chanbes.-in the requirerrients of-HIPAA; 42 CFR Part 2 other
;'applicable federal and state law.-,.- ;

Data Ownership -'The Business Associate acknowledges that it'has no ownership
); rights with.respect to the PHI .provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

'  Iriterpretatloh - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the. BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
tdbomply with HIPAa and 42 CFR'Part 2.

Seareqatlori - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circurnstance is held invalid, such invalidity shaHnot affect other "terms

.br cohdition's'whlch can be given effect vyith'out the invalid term'or conditioh; to this
end the terms and coriditionsbf this BAA-"are declared severable.

Survival - Provisioris in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, .extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and
(3) n.L. and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
' (P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS' WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement' > ••

Department of Health and Human Services

The State- ■

—Signddby:

Ascentria Care Alliance, inc

Name of the Contractor

Slgntd by:

A477A»006«U70

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Reuben Hampton

Name of Authorized Representative

Angela Bovill

. Name of Authorized Representative

bi rector, .p-ffice, of,:,Health. Equity .President/CEO

Title of Autho'rized Representative ■ " ' Title of Authorized Representative

1/21/2025

Date

1/21/2025
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Si^e'of IVe^ Ha^sliire

.  , ; ; ; , CERTliFICATE

'-.'■.Tl

./ ■■■■■ \'

i.-' . '.:i

j 'C.'

\  . ' I, David M. Scanlan/Secretary ofStateoflhe StateofNew-Hampshire, do hcrebycertlfy tKaitASCEN^
SERViCES/FNC. is a Massachusetts Nonjirofil Corporaiion register^ to transact business in New Hampshire* on June 13, 2011.1'
further, certify thk all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's oiffice have been received and is in good standing as
far as this ofTice is concerned.

■ 'iy ■ ■ • 'Ic- ■■■ ' . ■ . • 'f;

V;.Busin«sIp:^52i?7-^-'-"- . .I. f-u-

•■• "i.- -.-'v

Whi-i

5?
tta;

m
m

iSt

:  -I
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, . ,

,  1 hereto set my hand ahd cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of October A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State

I'- -r'n
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.  CERTIFICATE,OF AUTHORITY^

1. Tara F Rrnwnp ^ . hereby certify that:
•  .{Name of the elected Officer of the Cprporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of . Asrentria Cnmrnunity .Sprvirp*;. Inr .' '
'  • /(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held oh July 5 - 20 24 . at which a quorum of the.Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) ■ . ;

VOTED: That Angela-BovHI, President and CEO (may list more than one person)
- (Name arid Title of Contract Signatory).

is duly authorized on behalf of Ascentria Corhmunity Services jnc.to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC).

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and . all
documents,, agreements and other instrurhehts. and any aniendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgrhent be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been.amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract arnendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority-remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that;.the State of
New Hampshire will rely oh this certificate as .evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positioh(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in.contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such lirhitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_l/il^ • .
SigniTure of Elected Officer
Name: Tara E. Browne

.  Title: ' Corporate Clerk / Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



'•;THIS CERTIFICATE ISISSUED AS.AMATTER OF INFORMATION ONLYANDjCONFERS NQ RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLbER;>tyiS'^^t-?.- ' '
Z-CERTIFldATE-DOES NOT AFFIRMAflVELYOR NEGATIVELY AMEND,'^ENp'OR ALTER .THE COVERAGE AFFORDED B^ ,
.  '.BEL'OW/jTHjs'CERTIFl'CATE OF InSURaVcE DOES NOT CONSTITUtE'A CONTRACT BETVVEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S);'AUTHdRi2Eb -
' REPRESENTATIVE OR PR6bUCER;'AND THE CERJIF^ , • '/V-':";. - ■
IMPORTANT: ' If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) rnust be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to .
the t'e'fms and'cdnditio'iis of the pdicyl Mrta]n''p6llcre8 may require an endotsernerit.Asteterneht on this certificate does not confer rights, to the

■ •'certiflcate;holderln Ileu.of8uchendor8ement(s). .. v ;
PRODUCER-.:' ■ '

Brown 6 Brown Insurance. Seryic'es Inc. .

980 Hashi'ng^n-St. , Suite>32S..

Dedhaia'. ; MA ' -02026 '

.'Janet Walker

PHONE • - • . • . . .FAX. . ; .
(AK.NoFxtV ttJC.He): . •

Janet'.Walkergbbrdwn.coni

'•■v:"»,''^^lZ'--.'<-"''-'''iNSURERt8i'AFF0RmN0'cbv^^ 'v ■  - NAIC §

iNSURERA:Phliadelphia Indemnltv Insurance .Compar isosa' :
insured"'' ' •

Aacentria Care Alliance,..Inc. -
11-Shattuck St.

Worcester' -MA ■,pl605 ^•, , .

INSURERD: Zurich'American Insurance Conoanv of' It 27855

'INSURERC: • -i. • "" -' yl-

INSURERb: ' ''
INSURERE: '. j'-'.-Z- . -r' Vi"

INSURERF:

COVERAGES 'CERTIFICATE'NUMBER:24-25 .GL .:Aut6nuMBVwC;rProf:' •  » REVISION NUMBER:' Z
THIS IS-.TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICieS OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD .
indicated: notywthstanding any-requirement, term or condition of any Contract or other document with respect.to which this
CERTlFICATEMAYBElSSUEDbRMAYPERTAIN'.'THEINSURANCe'AFFORDEDBYTHEPOLICIESDESCRIBEDHEREINISSUBJECTTOALLTHET^RMS. .'.
EXCLUSIONS AND conditions OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS shown MAY HAVE BEEN reduced,BY PAID ClAIMS.>v,o v .-. Z .

INSR
LTR- .  TYPE oV INSURANCE ikDbL

IN^b
SUBft
WYB . 'policy NUMBER •

POLICY EFF
/MM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
muioorrrm LIMITS

'A-

X .COMMERCULOE NERAL LIABILITY '

e . 1 X 1 OCCUR
X PHPK2609012-020 . 10/1/2024 '10/1/202S

EACH OCCURRENCE $  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAD
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES fE8 oecurrencol ■ $  • . 100,000.

.. . MED EXP (Any OAO parton) $  , 25,000

PERSONAL'a'AOV INJURY ' ' (  1,000,000

GEML AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: . GENERAL AGGREGATE . t  3,000,000

X' POLlCTf 1_J 5*1^ .. L_J LOC, ,
.OTHER;

PFtOOUCTS • COMP/OPAGG $  3,000,000'

•
..-M'/';'- :•

A

AlTOMOBtLE LIASaiTY / '

'PKPK2609014-020 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

COMBINED SINGLE. LIMT .' $  .1,000,000

X" any'auto.
HEDULEO
TOS • • •
N-OWNEO
TOS

'^ILY-jNjURY.i(PeirpefMfi) ' ■»
■ ALL OWNED

AUTOS \ •

HlREDALnOS '

sc BODILY INJURY.'(Per t<^r>t)
NC PROPERTY DAMAGE '■ •

/Par fKxMftntl •'

5

A

.X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

'

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

Ptt0B883842-020 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

EACH CXJCURRENCe $  i6:o6b;ooo
AGGREGATE • . s  . lo'.ooo.bbo

OeO ' • RCTEKTION $ . 5

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND employers; Liability
ANY proprietofupartner/executive
officer/member excluded?. I
(Mmdatory In NH) '
If vM. d«$erP« undtr .
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A
HC 14is9B72 - 02 ' 12/1/2024 12/1/2025 '

Y PER 1 OTH-
*• STATUTE 1 ER -

•'E.L. EACH-accident'. . $  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE %  -1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMTT $  - i.000.000

A Professional .Liability' PBPk2609012-020' '

Ratrosetiv* Data: 1/1/2004

10/1/2024" 10/1/2025, EaehOocwranca ' $1,'000,000

AegragSa . ' . $3,000,000

DESCRIPnON OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACOROIoi. AddlUotulR«m«rt(s8ch*dult.ni«yi>««tUch*(l If mor*sp*c«Ur«quIr*<i) .
A'scentria Community Services, Inc. is included as a namad insured on the above policies as required by
written contract.
Stote of NH 'V
New'Baiiq>8hire. Department,of .Health .and Human .Services is' included as Additional Insured as'respects'
general liability where required by .written .contract;

CERTIFICATE'HOLDER CANCELLATION

state oflNH;..;- ' ' • •
New" 'Haji^shireJ>epartment of H

'-^'an'd - Human^Services.
- r'129-.'Plea'sant-vStreet., - '

Cohcbrd;>NH • :03301-3857.
•  ' '-vl ' ' •

.SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ■
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLKpY PROVIStONS. •

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTA-nVE ' ^ . ' ' . ' .

Owen' Ca^laghan/HCR'pSB-^
.• >. - . .-.'Lsv ..;®.l98^2p14-ACpRD CORP.pRATION. • All,rights reserved,

The ACPRO rianie and'logo are registered marks of ACORD •! '.i;'. .
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Ascentria
. C A R E ALLI-ANC-E

•• '■•I .

261 Sheep Davis Rpad,;Suite A-1, Concord, NH 0330-1
asceoiria.org r663.224.:81ii j 'lnfo@ascentrla.org

'  '"v's •

Mission statement:

Weare called tQ-strengthen commumties by empowering people to respond to_ life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has-the opportunity to achieve theirfull
potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leadersfor

. innovative community services. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities:

ErTip'owerlhg People. Stren^ Cpmrnunltles. '
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:  INpEPENDENTrAUDltOR^^^ .

Board of Directors •
.Ascentria Comrnuhity.'Services, Inc. and Subsidiary -i-r-Vi;! • :b i-"
Worcester, iMassachusetts •>j ^ ' . r

\Report on the Audit of the Ftnancia! Staterrients . .
■ Opinion . . ;• v'"' "''' ^ ^-'v

We" • have "audited' the .accdmpa'hyIhg^ ;oQrisolidated, fiKahcial -. statements'-"of • Ascehtria' C'ommuhity
.'-Sen/ices,-'Inc.-'and ,Subsidia'ry''(tHe .'Orgahizatidrisjy^which'/comprise "tHe^ statements "of
-finah'clai -ppsittp'h as'pf'dune 30152023 /and'2022; '"arid the related c6ns6lidat"ed 'statements of "activities,
'changes jn/het assets, •fuhctiorial 'experises,- 'and cashTflows'for-th'e;years theri'ended; ;arid- the related.

i^hotes to the corisplidated firianci'arstateni'entS'-'; " ■ ' ■

'"•••iin/olur.'pplrtlb.h; Ithe<c"ons6li8afedr'firiahclal'■stafe^merits;-referred• ta'aboye• present fairly;- in'all material .
■' '■re6pkets,''the']financial'-pbXi,tjpn\bf'A'sceritn^ j'uHe^3D,
"-'2023 .and .2d22p''and ith'e'^,rela1ed''cohspiidated..'s -actiyities/ changes'-in- -itS/'n .
' furicti.onai -experis'es ;arid .Its ..c'ash >flows'fpr 'the :'y.ears-.th"en-''ended'^In ■accofdarice'-with; acco'M

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. , .

Basis for Opinion . - /. '
, We conducted'our 'au^^ iri accdfdance with auditihg'Stahd'ards/gCnerally .a in the Urilted States,
of Amenca (G"M"S) ..arid .the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gqyemment Auditing

'■. Sfa/i^ands," iss'ue^ Comptroller'GeneVarof/the^U^ responsibilities^^
' Mandards are ■ further 'descVife^^ \the'; Auditors'' ^Respbnsibilities 'for the Audi^■, df 'the:;Fina^

I lie." and .Subsid ia.i^. and to meet our, other ethical ̂ responsibilities 'in '"apdofdahce .with- th'e relevant-ethical
requirements relating 'to 6ur,audits.'' We belieye that the, dudit. evidence we have obtai.ned Is. sufficient "
<snfi o'r\r\'r/->rtr!ifQ tA '«» K^eie Vrtr'/M ir ai t/Hit-rtrvinirtn - :-v ! !'■' " '

'^Change in Accduniihg Prihcipl^^^^ .
As;dlscussed in Note 1rtp the financial statements,' in 2023 the Organizations adopted new accounting

^ guidance for ,J.eaSes. The .guidance I regulres lessees.'.to ,recognize,, a nght-of-use. .asset "and.
■  .^responding I fPf.ail..P"p|e"i;ating and financeleases withVlease."te.rrViS";g^ tharf'phe:ye,ar. Qur
"opinion'is.'hot modifie^^^ res'pWct to this,matter. ' ' * ' '

•i-. ■.

CLAlCllfJonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network'member ofCLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/dlsclalmer.- -.C; 'VV'- -•
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Board of Directors

. Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible, for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated finaricial
statements, in accordance with'.accounting'principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, ahd for the design, implertientation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

■ preparation apd fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. . - ,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, rhanagement .is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, , that raise substantial, doubt about-Ascentria
Community Sen/ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date the consolidated financial statements.are available to be issued. • ^

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
..as a.whole are ifree from material misstatement,-whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes pur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not.absolute
assurance and therefore is.npt a guarantee that an audit c.on'ducted in accordance with GAAS and '
Govemment Auditing Standards will ajways detect a material misstatement when it exiBts. The risk of

- not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one .resulting from error, as^
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional ornissions, misrepresentations,, or-the override of
internal control.. Misstatements are considered ■ material If there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial staterhents. . . •

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Govemment Auditing Standards, we:

.. . • . Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
.  whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

riskl Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
,  , disclos.ures in the consolidated financial statements. .

.  • Obtain an understanding of internal cpntroLreleyant to. the audit in order to design :audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

. opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's, internal
.control. Accordingly, no. such opinion is expressed.

.  . • ; Evaluate the aRproprlaten'ess of accounting policies'used and the'reasonableness of significant
.  . accounting estimates rhade by management, as; well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements. . ' .

•  . Conclude whether, in our judgrhent, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantlal doubt about Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's ability to

; continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate'with.those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing.of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit; . . .

"  . . {2)
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- Other Matters : :
Other Information

■  'Odf audit.^as cbnducted^fpr the purpose offqrming an opinion on the consolidated.financial^statem
as^.:whble:;.J.h.e ^ page 27 is .pre^sented fer :pui^QSf¥;pf
anajysjs-asrequjredfby-'tfief/Vte^^ .

-and Is-^ fi nancial statements. tHe..schedjjjelgf a .
dfi 'federar awa^^^^ 2. U.S. Code ' of 'Fedemf Regu/af/ons Ipait

-  PrinciQies, and Audit Requirements for.^Federal Awards, Is also^
^p^'esented^^ and is not a reqCiired part of .the' basic cdnsolidated'

flhahclai/'stateme The supporting information required'by MAAP and thfeischedule'pf.expehditures of-
' federal-^awards;is;\hefre's'pdnsibility .of.management, and .were--derived from and relate directly' to the

"  .underlying accounting'and;:oth:er'recprds used to prepare.the consolidated financial statements. Such
information hes been subjected to-the auditing " procedures applied", in' the audit df the cohsdlidated
financial;35tatemehtsj_•and-"-.ceftajn ^additional procedures, including comparing arid recohciling ;;such
ihlfBrm^^ ^directjy^tb i^e} underlying" accountlrig .and other records used, to prepare the consolidated
financial consdildafed fi nancial, statements themselves]^' arid otheri'c.addifi .
prp!^]piiras'iri;a'cc6rdance; viith auditing standards generally accepted in the] ytiljtSd^;Siates.;of.'Am "
'ri,.P4fippiniori, the;inf^^^ is fairly stated, in all material respects,- in reiatioh lb" tfie^cq.ri.soiidated

■  .finaricjal Statbrn^ -rf - . ■ ■

, : Qtriay>]Re^pi$ing ^ ■ ] . . ■: , . ^ ^
•Ip^^ac^rdancei-yW^^ "wehave Valso vilssued.^our'.jrepprt -dated
Febru.aiy-.5i- 2024"; on •our".'consideration of'Ascentria -.Coinmunity Service's;dnc:-'s:interrial control over

.•fihaqjc,ial--repprting-^ari pur •tests..fbf Its -complialrice'.with-.certain prbyisions .of laws, regulations,
cori'tracts," ri ri d granf'^gfeernents and other matters. The purpose of that-'fepprt is.'s'dlely''tp"'descrilja*"the
scope- of our,'testing of Jhternal controhdver'-financlal reporting arid compllaricejand the] result of that
testlfiig, and ribtfq prpyjde an opinion on the .effectiveness of Inc. Internal control over^firi^nclal reporting

_■ pr^pn •cbmpljance. •ThatVepbrt is an integral, part of an.audit performed in accordance with Gdvemmerif
-.Aub/f/rig-Sfaricfarc/s;ip "Ascentria Community Services', Inc.'s inte/nal Coritrbl bvef financlai
fepprting.and complia^

CliftonLarsbnAlten LLP

Quincy, Massachusetts 4 .
February 5, 2024 '

•(3) - . • .
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash'arid Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net of Estirnated Uncollectible Accounts

Prepaid Expenses ' '
Vehicle lrivento|V^

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE .

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land ,

Building
Building Improvements . , .
Leasehold improvements
Furniture arid Equipment.
Vehicles

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

Total

Less: Accumulated Depreciation.
Total Property and Equipment

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

OTHER ASSETS

. Deposits . '
Right-of-Use Assete - Operating
Right-6f-Use Assets- Finance

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

■  2023 2022

$  1.322.647

i

$  2.025,602
8.525.896 7,645,413
123,912 77.315
'183,815 110.171

10.156.270 9.858.501

'  2,128,958. 2,677.292

45.314 .  45,314
85.798 .85,798

1,094,418 1,082,718

353,467 353,467
.,246.311 246,311
546.096 459,810

- 499,374

147.017 147.017

-  2.518.421 2.919.809
1,786,772 2.161.956

.. .731,649 ■  -757.853

,4,844,990 3;305,910

■y •.

85,885 88,885
357,966 -

101,735 .

545.586 88.885 .

$  18.407.453 $  16.688.441

See accompanying Notes.to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(4).
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. . .

...[•Recounts Payable'.",^^^^^ - ' . . ■
-Accrued Experi^^^^
pefejrred Revenu

-Dueto$tate;ofMaihe^ z,■,■■■■■ :
, ~;tease;Li^biIiti«^^ Operajing.jC.urrent Portion

'Lease-Liabilities-Tina^^
•  Total Current Liabilities • .

2023 2022
-  'I .'••■»' • • • "• ■ ■ ; '. :•, ■

$  ,^:il,4,68: $ ■_ .■ :38Xb28,
1.568,879;
1.76T602 . -.1,945.b29
2,297,411 ; 3.406,681

• V . 406.035"
3.19,795 , V :
43.363 ' ■

5,942.518 , .6.487^020

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities
'■i .

OTHER LONG-TERM UABILm^
Lease Liabilities - OpVating,: Ne of Current Maturities

-■ -Lease-Liab ,Finance;''Net;pf Current Maturities ^

■■ ■?>'v'total Liabiiities: \ ' - / *

; 357,609

24.808
59.494 V

6,384;429

368,864

6.855.884
*  -'t'. !

NET ASSETS; • .
.  'Without pohbr Restrictions";

jWith.ponor Restrictions ■; •
;^Total Net Assets

\T6taJ Liabilities and-NetAssets

9,803.241 . ■ ' .^.OOA.OOI
2.219.763 2.7.6T.576

12.023.024 • ; 9.832.557
•-.re.

$  18.407.453 :16.688.441

^ See.accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEWIENTS.OF.ACTIViTIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,:2023 AND 2022

2023 .  2022

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Grant and Contract Revenue .  $ 37,373,688 $, 36,431,238
Program Service Revenue . 5,389,567 ■ 4,573!932
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue 2,190,415 ■  -1749,085
Donated Vehicles:. ' \ . , 2,198,508 ■ 2,099;794
In-kind Donations ' 47,006 '36,H8
Other Income . 268,665 136,435
Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Operations 894,367 •  '•.

Total Revenues. 48,362,216 . 45,026,602

EXPENSES

Salaries and'Wages 22,537,703 . 20,143,580
•  Employee Benefits 4;912,418 .4,442,769
Occupancy Costs 1,768,191 1,977,762
Operating Supplies and Expenses, 415,412 .494,373
Professional Fees , 3,201,591 3,119,062

. Garage Expenses 560,375 581,563
Donated Vehicle Expenses . 865,540 .710,400
Client Support Expenses - 3,309,534' 3,483,4.88
Translation Expenses 685,530 . 669,554

.  Repairs and Maintenance 474,127 431,268
"Travel Expenses 905,440 840,137
Educational Events and Meetings 56,259 .■40,913
Management Fees . , 4,456,634 .  -.4,513,788
Taxes 433,488 542,826
Recruitment Advertising 5,485 1,968
Advertising 236,657 216,701
Licenses and Fees ■  5,513 ■  . 5,045
Insurance 299,695 259,805
Interest 27,107 39,525

.  Bad Debt Expenses . .. . . . ,  294,462' 383,195
Depreciation and Amortization 172,795 .  130,378

./Total Expenses . ' 45,623.956 43,028,100

OPERATING GAIN •  ̂ . 2,738,260
1

1,998,502

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY
Gain on Forgiveness'of Debt and Accrued Interest - ■  3,553,766

Total Nonoperating Activity 3,553.766

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR .  ,

RESTRICTIONS $  2.738.260 ■  $ 5.552.268

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiai Statements.
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;  .CONSOLIDAtro
.  . • ■ . ' • ' .-(.V: ».,•-,».>• • . •-. .».i^ .•• -v. '. •- •:• - .4--.- -, J. . -. VM •• • ,.-, ■ >, •. • ' ,• .

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
•  '

f*'" ^. /J 'r\■  .g::| j
r-' i _ -•• • i.

•  -k-/ • c •
■X ■ •".; V ■ '<■ ■ ■'• ••.i • !

Without Donor With Donor
"  ? kestriction . ' Restriction . "V; Tbta!

. ;BALANCEyJUNE 3P;202Vv

•  • ' Increase, in Net Assets With'out^bonbf Restriction

Change in'Beneficial lntefest in Net Assefe;.
• of Related Party . " ^

Change.'in. Net Assets.; . - " .

BALANCE - JUNE SO. 2022 ^ \ .

/ Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

.  .Change in Beneficial lntefest in Net Assets- .■
■  . .^:of (Related Partyy . ■ • ^

Y Release from Restrictions . . , ; •

.  , Cha.ngein'Net A^^ ■

i^v ; BAIJ^NCE VJUNE 30^ io23 0;/.

$ : .1i512,713 ; . $ . ,1,687,291 . $ : 2,600,004 •

,  5,552,268 ' . ■ V". ' yI;; '- .5,552,268.

1.680.285. .1.680.285

5.552.268 / 1:680.285 ; ■ 7.232:553 ■: ;

.7.064.981, ' 2,767.5t6, 9,832^551;^

2,738,260. .

k- .i' . • •

2,738.260^;] ...

346,574 { 346,5,7|..;:-; ;.v
(894,367) y (894.36/V

'  . 2.7-38.260 (547.793)' ■ 2.190,467;; j

$ •9.863.24-1 . .-$-•2.219.783 • •$'12.623.024:d-- -
■' ■ s.-.;. . I ■" • ''..-Xi- 'v j

V-

V. -.V>.

. ./See accompanying Notes' to ConsdIidated.Finariciarsiatemehts.
. ••y.y^y y--;; ^y ■•(7)



Docusign Envelope ID: 42CB2Cl9-865A-4BAC-B397-d89B191F810B

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30; 2023

Proflram Servtces

Disability Child

Transportation and. ' and Family In-Home Services For . Total
Services Mental Health .  Proflrams Services'- • New Americans" Program i

Salaries and Wages S  1,104,942 $  5,204,030 5  3,298,401 S  6,751,796 $  6,093,391 $ 22,452,560
Employee Benefits 265,040 1,368,696 717.198 1.392,899 1.156,053 .4,899,884-
Occupancy Costs 116,530 416,402 465,295 38,862 507,456 1.564.545
Operating Supplies and Expenses- " 16,365 110,504 79,519 -41,003 •156,588- 403,979 ■ '
Professional Fees •  60,392 332,487 1,211,284 50,000 1,444,532 3,098,695 :
Garage and Vehicle Expenses • 558,101 1,951 323 , 560,375
Donated Vehicle Expenses ' .865,540 . . _ . 865,540 . ̂
Client Support Expenses -  . 543 42,504 187,302 6 , 3,079,154 3:309,509 ■ .
Translation Expenses

. 9,007 1,108 . 675,415 685,530
-Repairs and Maintenance .  32,908 20,198 107,033 77,777 ■  225,354 463,270 ;
Travel Expenses • 291.730 173,849 149,072 .  27,329 261,108 . .  903,088 1
Educational Events and Meetings 1,321 1,187 26,854 9,226 13,332 51,920 1
Management Fees . . . . ,

Taxes . 424.835 . 397 .8,256. 433,488 '
Recruitment Advertising • 1,330 . 152 763. 3,040 5,285 i
Advertising - • . . .

Licenses and Fees •15 140 2,131 250 1,829 . 4,365
Insurance 8,382 85,675 57.273 54,672 90,362 296,364
.Interest _ . .

Bad Debt Expenses 78,909 6,874 8,177 200,502 • 294,482
' Total Before Depredation

and Amortization 3,402,048 8,198,339 6,331,517 ; 8,452,839 13,908.116 40,292,859

Depreciation and Amortization 56,154 18,439 83.492 6,868 7,842 172.795

Total Functional Expenses S  3 458 202 S  8 216 778 S  6.415 009 ' S 8459.707 % 13.915.958 . $ 40.465.654 -

Supportng Sefvlces

' Management

and General

$ ; 85.143
12,534

203.646

11.433

102,696

25

10.M7

2,352

4.339

4.456,634

200.

236,657

" 1,148'

3,331

27,107

5,158,302

:■ Fundraising

Total
Support
S^ces

Total
Expenses

■;$ . - 85,143 S 22,537.703^
•  12,534 4.912;418-

'  - 203.646 . .1,768,191
11.433 ' 415,412'

'102,896 3,201,591

* 1 560,375,;
.865,540 ,•

.  25- 3,309,534.1. - ..
685.530 , •

10,857 474,127 . -.i
.  ■ 2,352 905,440' V

'  • 4.339 56,259 • ■-
4,456.634 .  4,456,634.

'  - 433,488
200 5,485 ; ■

236,657 236,857 ■
•  1,148 5,513

3,331 299,695 -
27,107 27,107

- 294,482

5,158,302 ' 45,451,161 ■

. 172.795 -

S ' 5.158.302 S 45.623.9S6

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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.v Docusign Envelope ID: 42CB2C;i«65/y4BAC-B397^89B191F810B-

ASCENTRIA^COMMUNITY-SERVIGES, INC.
CONSOLipATECrSTS?f^r^f^^F^

; •-.- .

•> ■ •
... ...

*

• • • •» .. .. V, .*'? • r

>. -- • ■' . j '' •

'l •v • Program Services i: ..
.r. : '' : Disability . . Child . : . V..-. ; .i ."-.v. .
, '  Ti^sppi^tion: and Family. -, : '.''-.In-Horne- i .-.;Ser^ces For -  . • Total, v.

' Services • • - MentaiiHealth^i- •j.- .Programs -'Servfcw'l-. ' .' -■ New'/Vnericans-. '.. Program .

Salaries and W^es ' ■ " S  -"992!"151 .
.. •

S ■ ■ 5.78i;772t;" $-:.-t2le34,948 ' 5.751;947 " -S' 20:b82,389' '
- - -EiTipldyeeBCTefits; .213.795- , '. 'c'l .450.459^-3 ..X.-'.i-r'.ei 9,336': . '1,176',142.-. • •...x::;971';553, ••', : 4;43ir285-''

-  ... Occupancy,Costs■ ; ii2;i22o : - 572:325-;- ;-■•'kwios's '"-'•45;2M ■•,.f'? l-527,'1l'l. •■•-. •:'i.756;973 .
.Operayng.Supplies and Expenses. .  - • . 18.645 "  1'44,543'' '.74.512 • 33,588 • "".V.109,128. . ' 380,416

.  . jj. Professloriial Fees ■  .115,882 457,657 • ;  ;i,3S3,564 .  -1.137,011' 3,064,114
. '. Garage and Vehicle Expenses .  . 579,378 . *2,187- -  581,563
• Donated Vehide Ex^hses :  710.400 .  . . . '  i, ' 710,400.

■', •• • CiientSupport Expenses 447 32,623 245,546' 2,902 3,200.923 .3,482,441
Translatidn Expenses' -  . 18,157 4,989 .  . •646,408 .669,554
.Repairs and.i^intenance 27,565 -• 40,556 - - 91,753 60,301 192.189 . 412,354

. .Travel Expenses • . . . ' .223,453 - , 200,563 .139,486 25,324. •  245,901 .  834,727
.  ' < Edu^tionalEvehts.andMeetings •1,644 6,755 14,205 •  2,576 • 14,494. 39,674

. - .r Managemerit Fees '  ■ - .  •'. -  .

• . ■ Taxw 531,617 - 231 10,978 . 542,826
- . R'ecruitment'Advertising 323 232 1,232 . 181 1,968

•A'dvert)St\g. . . -  • -  .

- . .-Ucensesind Fees . -  160 .  2,576 258 .  1,051 4,045.
-  • Custc^iai'Fees . . . '  ' .  • 'x

Insurance .  9,741 .. 80,189' 49,147 47,975 : .  •; 67,997 '  255,049
'  Interest -  . • •  . .

Bad Debt Ei^nses . . .  3.690 . T.248 '. 1,838 - 0 ' V .• V/ : . . 376,419 383,195
'. -Total Before Depredation ' * .-r- •• . *

- r; a'rid'AmorUzation 3,009,332 9,321,043 6.033,414- * 7.157.255 . . .  -...12,111,939.- 37,632,983

- D^radatibn and Amor^tion ^.. 52.408 .  •.1,560■= - . .75,410 -.ri: '- 1,000 ;v - 130:378

.-'Total Functional Expenses S  .3.06'i740 s:--'6 iofi 8?4':i f • 7:157/^^:^ - - - -'
$i';12.112;939 •• . S i37 763'361 ••

./

r  ' ^ '
t- " '

T*

.' Supportihg ^n/ices"

Management.
• and Genera!"

.  . 18,904
.5,410
-1,239

4.5131788

216:701
i;6oo-

5.284,739

' Fiindraisino

: 61,191 '-$
11,484,; I's

•220:789 '
113,957'

54,948

1,047-

4,756
39,525

8  S.264.739 . $ ■

y  'Total -vr-. -
'  .Support

Ser^ciBe-

61.191.'.
.  r'i 1l','484y-
.  •- .22Q-7k9 •
.  113:957

-  54,948: .

•  . "■ 1,047.

18,904
5.4'10.
1.239,

4,5:13.788

.216,701
.  ■-1,000

4,756
'39,525

5,2M,739

:8 -5.264.739

•X'

■ ./•■..TotaJ .
Expenses V-'

■$ 20,143;580;,-.
'• . ;4:442,769;;■;.^•
: ' :^i.'977,762'^: '. '..

• •';.494l373;;
■. ■ 3lli9;M2'".^'-X •' -

•  : 58iVw3^;-bC:'---
'••7ip;400-.'/: Ic'

• .3'.483l488-':-' I'K' • ,V
.- 669i554-''' ":"v :

431,268>;-\^ „
•846,-r37'^'Ci-t I'X .■•

40,91,3%: ^X.'. : '
4.513j'788St '-•< . \

542:826\; : V.'.
, : ;1.96.8V:?-X-.: 'v' : "
•2^T70i:-^yt-;^----.

' 5;'645''":'- '■ ' '5;045:-

'."i

259;W5\% ;--;V .•-
39';5257

. - 383:'l9Sh. .

42,897,-722^, -J
-JX- '•

i30,378"'': 4" :
.  X-i-'iT-' -•'•

S- 43.028.100 ••• . -

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID; 42CB2C19-865/MBAC-B397-889B191F810B

. ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE ?(), 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
. Change in Net Assets. . ;
Adjustments to'Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:.
Depreciation
Amortization of Financing-Right of Use Assets
Adjustment Of ROU Assets - Operating, Net of Amortization
Bad Debts - .

Gain on Forgiveness pf Debt and Accrued Interest
Change in-Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable.

Prepaid Expenses
Deposits. . . ,
Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party
Vehicle Invento'ry

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
.  Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue .
Due to State of Maine

Net Cash Provided by-Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
. Purchases of Property and Equipment

. Net Cash Used by Investing Activities.

CASH FLOVyS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
; Payments on Finance Lease'Liabiiity . ■
Proceeds from Lorig-Term,Debt
Payments on Long-rterm Debt
Advanced from Related Parties. Net

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest . •

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH

FINANCING ACTIVITY

Forgiveness of Debt and Accrued Interest

2023 .  = 2022

$  2.190.467

'> »

$  7,232,553

124.192 130,378
48.603 _

(13.365) -

294.462 - 383,195

- (3.553.766)
(346,574) . (1.680.285)

(1,174.945) (2.834,968)
(46.597) 23,611

3.000 23,307
894,908 -

,(73.^) 23,557

1.221-532 . (53,525)
(244.327) 15,560

(1.109.270) 2,972,305
(400.035) (150.491)

1i368.407 2.531.431

(97,986) (106.860)

(97.986). : (106,860)

(47.481) . > •

- 380,000
(386,815).- -  . (33,892)

(1.539,080) .{5,126,041)
(1.973.376) (4,779,933)

.  . .(702,955) -  (2,355,362).

2.D25;602- .4.380.964

$  1.322.647 ■$ 2.025.602

$■■ 27107 . .  $ 39.525

$  3.553.766

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(10)
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.: • : ^ ^ -NbTEs-Td'rcoNsdiLib^^^
'ANDSUBSiDIARY

■^UNE^30/i202"3AN&^^^^

N0TE1 , . ._. ....

Organization .'' ■ ■ •■ .V-":."-
, y; /: A^^friaJ;!Gom^ .lria;:(Ac4); Asce^na'^6or^ lnc/.(ACC) '.  ■ •■ .;■ ■ ■;-='(colle^^^ c'orpp^atip'h^ 501(c)(3)-of. ■ ,

.  - r-' -aVpubilG'-^^h'arityl'-tfre 'QrgaWizatioP^^^^^^ ' ,.
■  ■■■? ■ ■' • sel^i5e;Kprograms(''tp"^ childreniicfamili^s;--:^^^^^ adults " '

thrbUghopt'Ne\w England. ACS is ;the sole.cbrporate'membeV'ofvACev-'As^^
- ; Anianceivinc.i=(Asceritna). is-a .sole corporate member of ACS and;ajs^^^^ >

•mariagement'agent.' ' • ' " ' ' '■■■' - • (
■ ■■ . >- -.vrV" .v -:■:■ ■ y.'' ': . ' ,-
- Xv j; ■:%^Thei,Qrgarilzati6ps;provid0th'efpH ,'■ ' . ,-y,-

• : _ . 'Tfanspp^ation^^eryice^\^_ .provides iow-incomp-iindividuais •yi(i^• transportatiph,.such 'as
'i ' '■ ■ pwnership;of dpnated yehjcies or access to.shared rides-providing these individuals with

.  ' , D/saib///fxarid/Wenfa/ ^/e^/^h -Disability ahd Merital'^
\  ' - ■ ^ prpgramS.thatehable.pprspns Who'-ahe

•  "• dpafness^.andvothedcKaiiehg^^^. ./■ /X- -•'>- /■'V^buccessful%dntnlJu^to'rV'to-.thbcbmmbnltTes'^^ •
. '■ - '■ ■.V, ', . ■;••* ;- -"':incJude^/Acc^ss/tp,;:medicat/.respurcesr/ifpersopaj^case
., • ■■■ ■ '■• ■'^ind'iwd0pj-'W&eds;>24/7^supe'r^

.  . \ djaghossd with-chrpni£;ahd-persistentvm^^^^
;, . \ ^diaghpsed withhiehtaljllness in.the cpm^^

•  ̂ X -V ^ ''■• '■ • V'"' 'f - ■-
,  ■. ■..■"■'J - />Gb//d^andiAa/h//y,Prag/;ams^ thrppghb'^^^^^

;  r i^^vipes ,rplated{tPittherapeutict:fpsterTPar.e,!;unaccpm^ /
f.Kopsing .for teen rhbthers and Ltheir'children/hPusingofphbp
^.semng . teenagers, •various, , support' services- ., and living accpmrhodations for

'  ■ . - /dpyelppmentaljy,;vphysicall^ and. p|her•■various social
■suppbrt/prdgrams/;'. . ^ ..'v; ' :-

-  . In-Home 'Se/y/cei" --Jn-Hppie.'Care:js.,-a licenced jMome^Mealth'Cafer^ 'that offers ; '
comprehensive, nonmedical persohal care seivices to horhebound individuals or those

.  , , . with a.disability/; irtTHbrneCare care^^
• apppintrrtents, recy^ipn'al ectivltfes./b'athlrig'and. person meals, and'.exerclse. •
Additional hpnmedical services, supervised by .a registered.nu,rse/

.  , , , y, ^ Seivices^^qr New Amehcans through :this.;program. to provide. " -
" Vi . -. .X l'^)9®!?j5tlem9nti;9'tiploi^.^^ent;'pase'm^^^ as a '■  becpn8'.-language classes,'-' .and•'other••'suppbrt"'siefvices;'to refugees;.'.Ssylees, • and

.  immigrantsr- v- • •• -v.-. ..
.r':v : - 'ui -vvii'.--.;'V, . c:.-,

^'^^nj.zaftdns prbvide\^rYicesRelated,t^■' V:; '■■a'nrtin|ernatidna^ adbptiohsV''';' "ri/'oiw-XKX-^- .!-• ■ - ■ : ; • u ■ .



Docuslgn Envelope ID:.42CB2C1^65A-4BAC-B397-889B19iF8lbB .

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY-SERVICES, INC; AND SUBSIDIARY
'NOTES.TO/CQNSQLiDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,: JUNE 30, 2023 AND;2022

N0TE1 ORGANIZATION AND.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED) :

Basis bf Consolidatibh , . ; , T "
w- The;accompanying,consolidated.financial, statements present the'consolidated financial

. • ,•position.. resMltSioif^.pR^ net assets, caish.flpws, and functional expenses
of.-,the. Organizations/-',Material.:;intercompany transactions and • balances, have been

- . elJiTiinated in consolidation. , . , , ..

: Method of Accounting

.The consolidated financial statements of-the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations

.  obtain the rights of ov/pership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
•■when the obligatidn-is incurred..

Cash and-Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all. short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash.equivalents. •

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable .'are recorded net of an allowance of expected Tosses. "The allowance is
estimated from, historical ,perfprrnance and projections of trends! Credit, is extended to

!  .customers and collateral is not required. .When .the accounts become, past due, historically,
■  the prganizatiohs have .riot charged interest to these accounts. , i.

Inventory

; .VehicIes;Tdentified for the purpose of.tieing delivered to program participants are valued
.-based'y'on. the-'average 'cdntract-reimbursernent rate for the reporting period which
•approximates the lower of cost or net "realized value.

-  Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all.vehicles sold during the reporting period. ■ ■ '

!  Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles -7 wholesale when the
.  vehicle is received.', ' p-' " .

,  . Property and Equipriierit
.  , ■ ' . Rrope^.'.and recorded 'at.cost. Assets with an estimated .useful "life of more

.  V thap,^6ne .anji • a Historical "cost In .excess of.$2;5d0" are ca'pitaiizedrThe Organizations
:  capitalize acquisitions and improvements, 'vvhile expenditures for.rnaintenanoe and repairs

that dp not e>dend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations, bdnated property
and.;eqy'ipmep.t" are..recorde,d;^t.ite fair; rharket value at. date,.pf .donation. Gifts of Ipng-lived
assets are reported as net assets withoui donor'restrictiori'^support.unress. donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets afe reported aerestrlcted support. . ■

■  V (12); ; ■ / "



pb(^3ignEnveib^lp:42GB2C1^^-4^C^39^ --r'';.' ^■ ■-S

.. ^ASGENTRiA'icbM^ V .V

^rjyNE30y;2023)\NP2022

N0TE1 .;ORGANIZATION ANDaSUMMARV OFSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLieiES ,
.■■(CONTINUED) .V.

ProDertv and Eduipment (Gontihued) v
■ •••Y- v-:"-"rAbs^^ht-;ex0llcjt 'd6norj:'stipulati6^-atiput.how lohgithose assets must be maintain^, expiration of,

.  . v- ;;dpnOr;restricti6nisVa?e_Tepo^^ or acquiredlohg-lived assets are placed Into .
»•? »: ^r$i^>:DeRre.cia^pft Cislhg' the •'straighWihei-'metho'd over the estimated useful life

T v::- ' .of the.assets:;:;;:,^^:: '• -'v • '

■  Related Party Loans.Receivable • . .. "

Theypr0anizatipris!>lM^ is:.cpmpriBed-on;pnsecured:re^^^ party'loans .receivable that .
are;nonihterest\bea.rlhg':and';.have nbffixedi.relpaym^ . '

. . . considered a. single portfolio class. Relatedjparty'ilpahs receivable^are Teco.rde'd net ,of .ah
allpwartc^.;forexpec^ losses.. (allpwahPe).:)rhe'Organizatib'ns'establish an aliowance as"

.  an estiniate of Inherent risk in the Organizati.ohs' loan portfolio.fAjthpugh.management believes '
j  ■/ . . . ;;the.aljpwancetp,be;ayequate4ujtimatelos^^ ■/ '

r* tha't Is "chained to.experise.
"■■■' • Loarilpsses are'-chargedoff'^galnst'th^'a Organizatiobsl;8et^rm

. balance to b.e uncollectible.Proceeds received on'previously charged off ampuhts^ recorded.
\.as,T!ecpye!y.ih:flie"^year.'Qf-'re(5ei^tv'TI;ip{0r^^^^ -ail related-party loans

;  - /redeiyable'are fullyVebllectible ai'bf June^SO- '2023''and-^^^
.  . ■ThefOrganizabohSvTeyiew .the'vadeq^ -including consideration pf- the •

, \ relevantrisks'ih the'loan' pprtfblip; current e^^^^^ ' ,
"  . .the;)?iOrgariiiatipriSr'lhtefnally related'-oparty '-borrovversH'to' .:;aSsess:ithe risk of .
.: .v . . . - :.nonpe.rfprmance;rthe ibrganizatiphS",d.etpfrh are . warranted baSed .on those., ^

;revie^,\the.allpvvance-is.;adjustedi'' v'-

All of .the prganization's Beneficial Interest in. Net Assets of Related Parties are measured.at
Level 3,-as outlined in Note.13;" . ' . T •

■NetAssets : • / ' -'v'-A'-- ■ .
•  ' - ^ ^ NeVaWets of the.Orgafiizatibns are classified arid reported asTollbws:
-  ■ ' . • ■ Net'Assets withdutV^ assets that.-afe not subject to.donor-i.mposed

stipuiatipnsr^"'* ^

.  . r;.; , ./VerAssefs/vv/Yh;pd/7oc-;Resfr7cf/bns.-^Net^assets..sub]ect to donor-imposed restrictions.
.  - «.;r,-jSbme,icignoi;Timpo.sed-.re§trictip^ nature,vSUCh-asTboset.hat"wiII.'be iiiet- ..

:gith.e>^iyvactibn.s-gt^e/OTganj2atiori^^ of.time.:Qther.;donor-iiTipbsbd ' •
r  'restn.ctiohs;::a.reV;.perpetual:^.in;>|nature.;^when,v.the,, be'

marntaine.d/ih):perpetu)tyv;,Doribr^irhposed ^restnctions.-are released jw-heh'a'restricb^
• .■.exp.i.res;;that,is, Jy^.h'en/J.he; Stjpulated time .has, e stipulated purpose for

. . . .which the resource vyas restricted has been fulfilled;-.pr;,both. Net-assets, with donor
.  . .; r"estrjctions consist pf $2,.128,-95.8 and.$2,'677,29i2 for beneficiai interest in. ne.t. assets of,

reiated'party.a.nd $.9Q,825''ahd $90,284 other-.prpgram restrictions forthe year's ehded
June 30,'2:023.and 2622, 'respecbvely^;There.\y'ere no neVassets invested ln.pe'rpetuity..
as.oM.Mne'SG, 2023 and 2^ ^ v, ' - ,
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY.SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSGUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

N0TE1 . ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contract and Grant Revenue . ^ ;; .•

The-brganizatioris-derive revenues through ;cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state xontracts and-grants, which are cohditlonal grants based on certain performance
-requirements-and/or.the Incurrence. of allowable qualifying'expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reportihg requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditure's in.compliance with
specific contract or grant, provisions. As bf June 30, 2023 and-2022. there was $10,926,595
ahd:$10,219,967, respectively, of.conditional contributions that haVe yet to be recognized in

- ■ the consolidated financial,statements.' ■ ,

Donated Services , ' - •

: Donated services are recognized in the cprisolidated financiar statements if the services
enhance,or create nbnfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by,
iri.dividuais, possessing those skills;,and would typically need to, be purchased if not provided

•. by donation., '

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle .revenue includes vehicle's that will be repaired" and delivered to program
participants! They are valued based on the average contract reimburserrient rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated Vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do riot
meet the needs of prograrii participants... These vehicles are sold ;at'auction and valued

, based On average proceeds for the reporting period. Vehicle auction revenue is recognized
,  at a point in time when the, item, is sold. As'of ,June 30, 2023: and;.2022, there was

$1,259,665 and $1,412,950, respectively, included in donated vehicles on, the consolidated
statement of activities.

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue ,

During. 2023 .arid .2022,. .the Organizatipns, received federal and state grants to provide
funding to respond to the COVlp-19, pandemic. The Organizations received payments from
the GAFFES Act, Provider Relief Fund,(pRF), which is administered by the U.S. Department
of Health and . Human Services (HHS). The Organizations received PRF payments and
recognized revenue in the amount of $-0- and $296,858 during fiscal year 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The revenues recognized-are, included in Federal arid State Relief Grant

- I'-"-;. Revenue. bn the consolidated statements of activities. -The PRF payrriehts have terms arid
; cbnditidris-.that the':Organizatio,nS''-afe required .to follow,'and, these furids are subject to
'reporting requirement and-audlt. The PRF payments are subject to potential recoupment by
HHS if it Is determiried that the funds were-not spent in accordance with the terms and

.• conditions.-Managerrient'believes the ambunts haVe been recognized appropriately as of
June 30, 2023 and.2022: ''': ^

(14)
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■AseENTftlA^GOMMUNiTYSERVlCES.vINC^^^^^^
■  ./^NdfESfbrcdNSdllDA'tEDFINANG

-• UdNE 30,'2023 AND 2022

IS

NOTE 1 -ORGANI^TION AND'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNHNG POLICIES •
(CONTINUED) '■

Federal and iState Relief GrantRevehue fContinuedlVv^'v- ^ y-;^
>  :^The';(brganizations'^Teceiyed New : Hampshire,.-w

vv > adiTiinisferedfbyrthe. Dlvis,loh1t)f^M,edicaid'Seivices^yirh^'orgahiza^^ of
■■■, ;$-i>i:'ahd^$2;427;0474'and(.rec6griized-vTev'ehue:^1nTtheiamouht",d

• V' ";.during>sthe;ifisca|i Y.ear.'e ^'and'32,622-4Yespectivelyr-the.'rreVenues -Y are
^  . Vlricluded! in.the;\Federal..:and State'Relief Grarit^^ of

;  • . • factiyities;rAmpuntsvreceived;but hpiy^^ included in defeTred^evenU on the
statementj 'of^fihancial:/pgsitidn^^The''[]:^ayrhe^^^ :cphditions. that the

■  ;pfganizati.ohs'afe/requiredto'foilow;\andi the.seifcnds^are^subjectto'r^
and'-audit. The.'payments are subject^itaVpotehtialv^ ••Department if, it is,
determined that the funds were hpt:^erit in •accordance' with" the terms, and conditions;

'  . ■ Management-beiieves:.the-amouhts'h^Ve'-been recognized appropfiately as of June 30.-2623
■ and-2P22. ■

The Orgahizatldhs .received payments from■the^■state;1Df Maine, which is adrriinistered by the
Office of Maine Care Services, the organizajo.n received payments of $-.6- arid $980,.509

.  Vartd xecbg^ of-.$263;84.9'and'-$716,660 theifiscal year end
,  '.2023/3118 ;i2^022,>re.spectiy^^^^ fecoghized are included ip/the-i^ :and

Estate .^Relief Grant^.Reven.ue/on^tlie consplidated ,statements; 6^^
'  butvfioV yearredognized'v^^^^^ deferred jeyenue^^^ of'financial

;pbsitiori) T;|iejp.ay.mp.o.t ^haye^terfnV^a.nd:cpnditib^;h^^ drgahizatidnsvare required to.
' fdjlpw,^!iand >the.s'eifun'ds;-are :Subject •to'reportihgtequiremen^^^^^^
;•-■subject tp;potenti.al[rec6uphientby.vthe;pepartmeht;lf it is.'deterrnihed that the funds were iiot

. : .spent.in\accQ/dahce.-w conditions.- Management believes the artiounts ha've
.bePn'fecoghlzedcapprppriately as'6f:June;36,'.,2023.aridi2p22i

Additipnally, the: Organizations recognized payments - from the Commohvyealth of
Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human .Services .(EOHHS) of;$359,730 and

. . . .\$8.8.,.;193'i.respectively,:as.reyepues 30^, 2023,arid 2021 The revenues recognized
•  : .'a|i4 included and Stete Relief Grant Revenue' bn,.,the;'conbpjidat;ed .statement of

,  '•'-t ; !;-aetivitie.s.t -••'t . . ."-'-' .yi - •,

^(15)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
■  - NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

■ JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Program Service Revenue

loJdetermine.-Tevehue'recogniticn for the arrangements that the-.Organizations considers
within, the;..scppe. pf.tTopic:.606, .-.the.•.Organizations performs'.the following five steps:
(1) identifyithe'contract(s) with;a custorner, (2)-identify, the performance pbllgation(s) in the
contract,' (3).determine the transaction, price, (4) allocate the ..transaction iprice. to the
perforrnance obligation(s) - inr the contract,- and (5) recognize revenue when the
Organizations satisfy a performance obligation. Program service revenue is from private pay
services, translation services', and; interpretation seivices. Program service, revenue is
recognized as customer .sen/ices are provided overtime. Payments received in advance of
seryices are reported as deferred-revenue. - .

The Organizations contract receivables related to exchange transactions were as follows:

Beginning Balance, Contract Receivables $ 1,384,711 $ 914,227
Ending Balance. Contract Receivables 793,200 1,384,711

*  . There were no contract liabilities related to exchange transactions as of June 30, 2023 and
2022.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
'  amounted to $188,312 .and $180,583 for the years ended June 30,-2023 and 2022,

— • • respectively. Contribution^ of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
. date of the cohtribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value oif $47,006 and $36,118 for the years^ended June-30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
■  generally accepted in the.Uhited States of America requires management to make estimates

and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities arid disclosure of
.contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financiai statements' and the
reported arhounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

\  could, differ frorn those estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and sen/ices are summarized bn.a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on . the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are hot directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

(16)
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■ VASGENTR®

,'iayNE 30/2023 AND'2022

-  -

N0TE1

(CONTINUED) •

Income Taxes . / ■ .

•  ' . Thf'OTg&nlzations^'aremoh^ in Section 5p1(c)(3)'bf"the IRC and./
•  - . afe^jpxe.mptrKfrprn^ii'federali/and' to"

.Cecti6n''5pi(a)'qnhe"JR&^^^^ •'''/••:: • • • •/• ;■ '■/.i/i:/', i; . .
'  \ .• •>-

Fair Value Measurements - / . ■ . , .
In'accordance, with.p^^^ standards, assets and liabilities measured ahd.recorded at fair

■  ' 'Value^ ai;e,iTeqUired'^^ bn'.the"iDriority of the
-  ' ■ mputsibthe''Valuation technique use^ ' •

. .. . .. . . in active ;markets for Identical
■  "assete or.-jjabillties- (Leverrljfand the •lowest"priority, to unobservable'.'inputs'vfLevel 3).". If the

inpiuts;used .In"the.deterfninatip'n: pf the';falr;yalue,,measurement fall within .different-levels-of the
-  hieVarchy,'^^^ Ipwest'ievel inpUt'thaVis'sighificant to, the fair

value'. mieasurement/ AsSe^^^ recorded at 'fair value by the
•  OrgahiiatiohbWr&'categbrized aVfolidws/'/'-" "^^ •

rhp.uTs-t^^^ in ^bctive'mai-kets'fe assets ■ ■
.  oriiabilibesthat ah entitv1ias^bG'abilitv.tb'ar.«»sR'''''''' -"^^

'  ■" ■/ ' ' . 'foKsirnHb^assey aridJiablllties'in active"rnarkets
.  ■ .. :aHd;\inpi;i^;jthatJli5B/ob^^ eittier directly or "'indirectly, for /

'  ' , VsuBstahtiaJly/he'fc
■  '' 'v^siimated -using%icihg rribdels, 'quoWd price'd of'securibes'with.&

'• ■d'scounted.cash.flovys. - . ' i "

£eye/^3^^^Jn^uts■^^hat;a^^^ liability/WKlch'are typically • '
■  based, on' an entify''s own'^alsu^m th'ere'ls'little, If anyi-"ifelated'rTVa'rket^ctivlty. • . .. .

lii instances where-.the dete/rnihatjon of the fairyalue'measuYement'is''based'6h Inputs
■■ differentlevels'bf-the fairwaiue;^ value>ierarchyyithin which the

■entireTair'walue'measuVement .fallS'is\based'bnThe lpwesneverinp'ut that-ls'significant to the
, fair value' niieasuremlent In" its'entirety. Valuatibh-lechniques used need to maximize the use of

observable ■InpUts^aM'minlmize'the use of|unbb§ervable inputs. There have been ho changes
: ■/: in yaluatiqh methodblogy'used;at:June30/2023 ahd-2022.' ■

.-• I. .

•.HfV.

• r ;^17)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDfARY
NOTES TO.CONSOLlbATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.  :JUNE:30,.2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES <
(CONTINUED)

•' Leases -

The Organizations determine if an arrangement is a lease.at inception. Operating leases are
included ln>:;right-of-use.(ROU) assets - operating,and lease liability - operating in the
consolidated statement of financial position' Finance leases are included in right-of-use
(ROU) asset financing and lease liability - financing on our consolidated statement of
financial position., -

RpU assets represent the Organizations' right to use an underiying, asset for the lease term,
and lease liabilities represent the Organizations' obligation to make'leiase. payments arising
from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on
the present vajue. of lease payments over the lease term using an appropriate risk-free
discount rate. . - , , .■ . ..

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the discount rate implicit in
•  the. lease. Therefore, the Organizations have! elected to use a risk-free discount rate

(applicable U.S. Department bf Treasury risk-free ,treasury rate) determined using a period
comparable with that of the lease term for, computing the present value bf lease liabilities.

.  Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when It is reasonably
certain that the Organizations will exercise that option.

:  Lease costs for operating lease, payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The Organizations have elected; not .to..separate,,non.lease components from
lease-components and lnsfead accourits for.each separate lease component and the
npniease corhponent as^'a single lease cbmpon®bt.^he drgahizatibns recognize payments
for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less as expense .as incurred.

During 2022, the Organizations fojiovyed the accounting .standards in effect at that time and
recorded rent expense on a constant periodic rate overthe term of the lease agreement.

Adoption of New Accountiha Standard . -

.  .. In February 2016,- the Financial; Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update .(AS.U);'2016-02, 'leases (Topic 842). The. new standard increases
transparency and comparability-among organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-
use:(ROU) assets.and,lease liabilities on-the consolidated statement offinancial position for
those leases classified as operating leases.; Under.-the standard, disclosures are required to
meet'the objective of enabling users offinancial statements to assess the amount, timing,
and uncertainty of cash flows arising frorri leases: .

The Organizations adopted the requirements.of the guidance effective July 1, 2022, and has
elected to apply the provisions of this standard to the beginning of'the period of adoption,
while continuing to present the comparative'period in accordance with the guidance under

•  the lease-Standard in.effect during that period. The Organizations have not elected to adopt
the package of practical expedients available in the year of. adoption nor the available
practical expedient to use hindsight , in determining the lease term and . in assessing
impairment of the'Organization's ROU assets.

;  ' . ' ■ ■ (18)
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'. yASCENtRIA eOMMUNITY SERVICES; rN6. AND SUBSIDIARY
!  'NbTEStO^CONSOl^lDATEDFINAN

SUUNESO, 2023 AND'i022 .

NOTE i ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING^POLIClSS -
(CONTINUED)

vSubseaueht Events "/r"

-'Hif'preparing 4hese-';'coVs^ the Qrgariizatipns iVave evaluated
" , V -^^eyents andyansactipnsJbr poteh^ FeBruaty 5, 2024, the

dBtethe bonsolidated fjhiahdal'statemehts wVre' aveiiable to be issued;' .

N0TE2 ASSETStliyilTEPASTOUSE

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Party '

The .Organizations record;b"erieflcia| interest.in assets that'are held by Ascehtria in the
$2,677,292 at June.30^;2023 and 2022, respectively.. For the

.  yeaTs;endetf'i/dn® 30,•'2023 and 2022,-the Organiz^^^^^ a'lpah payable,- included-.in
riaccijjed 'exj5ense's,^to;the 'furid totaling $34.0,524,T5r both' ye.arsie^ '2023 and.

•  '■'■^^■■ '2022:. Cori'tVibuted ^assets are transferred■ to.^Ascehtria. 'by either the 'donor. ;or the
. OrgBriizations with the-approval of Asoehtria; The donors did not grant variance power to

•  . Ascehtria. _

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY T^NSACTIONS;^ . ' - ' ' ' ; . ' ^
The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties:

•- • . -r^The GrganizatiOhs are charged annually^byiAycentria'for accounting,' management
^"V'; seivices, and'dverheadi'in rnbnthly^installme'nt"s.:,'eharges to operations for these

-  'services -totaled• appr6ximately..'$4,410,'^.63 and $4;432;496 for- the", years ended
June 30, .2023 and 2022,Respectively. These'expenses^have been'included on the"
consolidated staterhents of activities under the caption Manageioent Fees. In

-  addition,; Ascentria is the central contracting entity-for InsuranceicdVerage, and
•  •Jnsur'ance;cbsts,are then billed rhonthJy;tp the Organizations..

:  .i, - • •Tha/Qrganizatiphs*-ha've,..various office space rentals ;to and from related parties and
■  • .yehiclefentals from related parties': Rental -revenue from, related parties amounted to

. $140,012 and $123,10'i for the years ended June 30, 2023,and 2022, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $359,957 and $394,307 for

. the year ended June,30,v2623.and.2p22, respectively..<

•  Related; party loans .that-jbear no interest .and.have no-fixed-repayment terms, are
■  : ' as follows: -

'2623--' 2022 • '
''Due from Related Rart^^
■- 'Ascehtria Gare Aliiahce,-lnc, •

•  •• -v;';-iTotal- '-'^v ^
■ T$- '-■4."84y996"
'• $-•• ''4.844:990

'$ • 3.305.910
$  3.305 910

(19)
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rASCENTRlA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
■ ^ NOTES TO. CGNSGLIDAtED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 4 DERINED CdNtRIBUTIpN PENSION PLAN

The Organizations, participate in a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying, under IRC
Section 403(b) maintairied by Ascentria. The Plan permits discretionary employer
.cqntributiqiis .based, on a-Specified, percentage of annual compensation and employee
contributioris. . the Organizations had no pension .costs charged to operations or
cohtributions to the plan during the years ended June 30., 2023 and 2022,

NOTE S ACCOUNTS receivable

The accounts receivable balance"consisted of the following at June 30:

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less: 'Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

2023

9,201,902

(676.006)

2022

8,057,869

(412.456)
S  8.525.896 $ 7:645.413

NOTES CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK "

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
■  risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
-financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the yeari there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds-
federally insured limits.

Major Custorfier

. The brganizatioris receive .significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through.which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, arid
Maine. Approximately 86% and. 87% of the Organizations' revenue was received from state
and federal agencies directly of'via pass through for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022; respectively. , '••• .

Beneficial Iriterest In Net Assets'of. Related Party

The Organizations' unsecured.gifts, held by a related party, arnounted to $2,128,958 and
■$2,'677^'292 at June 30,-2023 and 2022, respecti'v^^^ . ' ^ '

Accounts Receivable

The Orgahizatidris extend unsecured credit.to its custorpers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $8,524,021." and $.7,643,538 at June 30, 2023 and 2022; respectively. 57% of the

:  Organization's-receivables at June 30, 2023 are.due from a relied party.

(20)
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•• • /SASeENTRIA^eOMfe^
'  ' :1?NGtESto:C^ ^

/  ; ' > : >UijNE;30>2623;AND2022

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

computing depreciation are:: ^ equiprn.ent for"purposes of c

-  '■ B'uilding;'Ruiiding jmprbydmen^ and Leasehold Improvements . . ■ -" S toUp^Years
EquipmehVFurniture arid Fi)dures;end yehiclesv,.. 3,t6'10 Years . '

\ Equipment'UrideKC^^^ . .3 to 5 Years ;
•  "CompufeEquipme^^^ " ^ - : . c"3 Years

. Depfecialibn ah'd/amortiz^^^ charged tb operations was $172,793 and $130,027
■v., ;!. y': "; fprjhe yeafs^ended ^ •

- ,x-., .

NOTES MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY^ ^

ACS provides sen/Ices for Medicaid eligible individuals under termV of costs^b'ased contracts
with'the'state, of Maihe. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of sbttlenriehts

■■"With, Medidajd:# a' IJbb detefmihed'-until'the'stateof M
■  ■' " "-aGce^pts "the/cbst'-re There was:h'o^ll.abjllty- due -to the state of MaineYbr' the year "ended.

;  jurie.,3p,'-,2p23-''-The^mbunt';0f=the;estimated ■liability was'appf^^^^ for the

•e)deht"hb.t-;previously rec year.the final settlement Information becomes available
to riianagemenV/r^

NOTES LONG-TERM;DEBT

The Orgahizations are liable'on long-term debt at June 30 as follows: -

■  DescriPtibri -'.;:y v. -'' • ' 2023 .. 2022 "

.  . NotePavabie ^ .
Term nqte^payablet'g.Cambridg^^ . ^ .
amount $380,000, due June 30, 2032, secure^
business assets, payable In rhbnthly payments of
principal plus .interest through maturity, commencing
July 29, 2022. Interest rate is.fixed at 5.27% annually. $ 369,077 $ 380,000

.  'Term note payable to Bank of America face amount •
• $350,066, ;due August 7,2033, secured by business
assets, payable in mprithly instalinients pf ^
onlyjhfbugh Augusti20p8 then monthly payments of •

I  principal plus mterest through maturity. Interest rate .
is fixed at 7.105% annually. ' ' - 146,737

(21).
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDiARY
NOTES TO. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTES LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

■  Description fCbntinued) 2023. . 2022

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,3.08, secured by .'real property owned by ACS at

•  ' two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and Interest payments of $2,670. . $.' • . - $ 229.155

Total Long-Terrh Debt .369,077 755,892

Less; Current Maturities - ■ (11.468) (387.028).

-Long-Term Debt, Net of Current. Maturities . $ 3^57.609 $ 368.864

In July 2022, the Organizations paid off the term note payable and mortgage payable to.
Bank of America.

The agreement with Cambridge.Trust Company includes, a covenant to rnaintain a debt
service coverage ratio, as defined in the agreement, of at least 1.10. The.Organization
believes that It has met the required ratio at June 30, 2023.

■ Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30. . Amount .

2024 $ 11,468 "
2025 12,150
2026 . , 12,815.
2027 13,517
2028 ■ . 14,210

Thereafter 304^917
Total $ 369.077 . ,

Interest charged to operations for the above lorig-term debt amourited to $24,300 and
$39,525 for the years, ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. ."
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'  ̂ ' :>^NbWES TO CONS^ financial statem^^

:.aUNEj30, '>2(i2Z Am^622

NOTE 10 Leases- Asc 842 , ^ '

■  ' '■ ■ i-'■' , K'/'y^he iOl'g^ ' equipment :under - fihan'ce -leases' and';;office .facilities under'
•, . .'mqy.. 'op^ratlrig-|eas;esy;r51:hdv^ lease • '

!-'■ •• ■ ".'Ji-A iagreements^and-'explreat v'aridus''dates threuqh-2d27A-'-;>K'^'^-i)'

,  The fQjlpwing table provides quantitative informatibh concerning the Organizatiohs")eases: ,

^easeiGbst:'^^ ^:'yyiy -^r-, A -"-'-Pv'' • ■ •-, -y:-'- '-'/-- .-.v. ;'. ^
,  yAmqftlzatibn'pfRightTdf-U^^ ^ N., $ .\ ^v'48;603 ,y

Interest oh Lease Liabilities ' 2.807
Operating Lease.Cps^ ■!694'.384 ■/

.  Total Lease Cost _ . ■ _|__^_745^79^ ,

,  • . OtherlnformatipnA
'  ■ • . Cash Paid for;Amounts included m /• ;

Me^uremeht of lease Liab^^^ ■ . ^
bpeTyafin^^ash'Ffbv^^^^^ - ;. $ 50,288.

'bperating'Cash^Rlbws from -'$ 707,747 , .
' RightrpfrUse Assets Obtained in Exchange for New'. ^
.  ̂ Finahce.Lease Liabilities- 'v-' v $ . 150,338 '

;  . RighNpf-rUseAssetspbtajried in Exc^^
•^Arto'rafinn'l o'aco'l 'iahiliHoe;  ;• ■ ■^Operatihglease^^^ T

I A'-
-' y. -'lP' ;,': .$, 1,035,930 ,

:  v .y ■P^Weighteb^A■\(e"^a'g^Rema^ ;
^  i;.-A^"Ri^nbe'!LpaSeS'ifllA^;n^('s!po;iyiT^ 2Pi8'Yeafs'''!^:

- . 'v •■Weigh'ted^verageRem'aih1ng-LieaseTerm>^^^ 'r J- ^•cA:;cpc-. • .A..^
- y. . .-Pbperatihg.leases; ''A:>v.:r.t,v/.'A •.-\0.77--Ye'arr.. -• •■,'• ..yP-

■ Weighted-AveraVpDiscpunt.,Rate-'FinanC^ •^','^^2;5^%.^.:
-  vWeightedrAyera'gVbiscount.Rate - Operatingl^^ • 2;61®/o.

'  A. - A •v:.>.;u.-.i;!rh;A ;y.
.-ulTh"^;'rprg'ahizati6hs^ uhdiscouhted/leas^ payments thal'are"'due.in the next 12
,  ••tgp'hth's'ias currehl;A-imatuh,ty-analysis bf a'nhual'uridi flow for. lease liabilities

.  : 'as'bf^Juhe 30,"2023Ms:as.T6llpws: ' .y 'V*o . .

Year Ehdind June 30. ■
:c:rv

.  '2025':- . -
2026 - . ,

-  , .-'.V- --uzu ' :• thereafter.',/..! .•
, . .. • , •Uhdiscpuhte^^^

/'.yV// Le^J.mpute^^^

Operating.... .. Finance '- . . ..Totals
■  . ■'$",r"/322,769' $:■". ■■• 45;360 ;'$ ■ 368,129

"22,890 •-. 'fe,606 59,696
2,100 '• : . 21.082 23,182

A  .oy y ,5.""-. :  . 2,9,85. . , 2,985

■;347,759 •  . .106,233,. •.;
;  .(3:376):!.t.;

:  . 453,992
•: (6,532)

.Tptel Present Value !$ - ^344.603.. $." .'102.857V- $ . ' 447:460

'.j; 5,-. ;'.-•!' •'•.• ■■ * • . •v- .'t , - . :
■  ' . , ' -Ay. ' -y y .yr-y) . -yj., : •-or y- ■

. ^-{23),
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY.SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 11 LEASES-ASC 840

The Organizations .elected,to apply the provisions of FASB ASG 842 at the beginning of the
per'iod .of adoption, through a cumulative effect adjustment^ with certain practical expedients
availal)!e. Lease disclosures for the year ended June 30, 2022 are made,under prior lease
guidance in FASB ASC 840. '

t,

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, , and rhotor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of one to three years. Total rent and related
expenses amounted to^l,061,974 for the year ended June 30, 2022. ,

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements were as follows:

Year Ending June 30. - Amount
-  2023

2024

2025 s

.  Total • .'

.$ 446,252

151,270

' 5.316
602:838

NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services ueirnbursable under Medic.aid programs. There are numerous healthcare
reform proposals being considered on-federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this'tirne whether any of these proposals , will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemehted, what effect such proposals would have on the'Organizations. ■

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived, from services reimbursable
under Medicaid prograrns. the Lase;year....cdsts utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject tp.audit which could resurt in^a^retrpactiye rate adjustment fpr.all-.years in which that
cost base was used in calculating'the ratesV It |s not possible at this time'to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

Effective, June- 2022, the''Organizations and subsidiaries, entered into a line of credit
agreement and a term note payable with a financial institute and paid off the previous.line of
credit balance." .' . .

The term note payable, has a balance of $1,680,000 and resides on the books of a related'
party as, of June'30, 202^ All borrowers are jointly.and severally liable for'payment of the
debt which"is due June 30, 2027. the note is, secured, by certain assets, payable in.monthly
payrnpnts of principal plus-interest through maturity, c'o'nirhencingVoh" July 29. 2022. Interest
rateJs fixed at 5:06% arinually.-The line of credit has a limit of $1,900,000 with a variable
rate of interest of the^Wall Street .-Journal published U.S. Prime Rate, with a floor of 3.25%.
The'rate was 8.25% at June 30, 2023. The line is collateralized by various business assets.
There was no balance on the line of credit at June 30,.,2023. The agreements include a
covenant to maintain a debt service coverage ratio, as defined in the agreement, of at least
'1.10. The Organization believes that it has itiet the required ratio at June 30, 2023.

(24)
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'  ■ CKiritF<^ TO^m Ih'AfFh'FlN ANftl^^NOTES T0!^C0NS0L1DATED FIN)5;NGIAL^STATEMENTS
. a^UNE 30,tid23.AND 2^

N0TE1Z PONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) ' . ^ ^ ; ■ ^;» ^ ;; >U., ' - ^

..;•■•'> ■\-'Th6 prganizatlon'is'subject tc'legalprobe^dings arid claims<that;arise"i^ course
:V: ':.rn;;' ; pf:1bVsinjesy;»'ln'(JlT^^^^^ of. tHe'iseamatters is not

.6xpecte(i»to:ha^^^ drganizaUon'sfinahclal-positlon/results of
■■^ ; ■>>''V;p^e^at:ip^:br:liguidi^;^ ;- * .r ■;.'^^/Hf ■; ' ^ .. ,■

^NOTE13 <FAIB VALOE-iyiEASUREME^ ^ -v

•' . .5' .'<>1 . . .. .... ,._.. , .. .- - -,
':• -■ ■ . assetsydhd iiabilfties^:tb,determine ;fair":va!ue'disclosures:* For additional; inform^ pn^how

.  thevpfgahiiatipn^ fair val.iie .refer. to.:Note -1 drganizatipn; and'.Summaiv.  . . SignificantAccp^^ ,p . . ^ '
. ■..; The fpljpwin^ present -the Organizations'^ fair Value,.hierarchy.for.; those;assets and

.  vliabilitie's measured at fair value on a recurring basis, as of'JuherSd: \ \ -

;^y:

•Total

Total.. -; ■ y;:. Level-1 'M ■i!Level.:2 !i-;! i: *" Level3

Jivi. V y f ' i . ' h ' 'y . ' '"

..$ 2;128,958.^^ -  :'$ .. . :  ,$:ii28.958
■ $ 2.128.958 $ 2.-128.958

'.•f t/*. . '* ■ ■■ i2d22' .
:'V'^ '• ,'S

■ ■ Total ' ;. .  Level 1 ■ . ' Level 2 Levels .

-$ i2.677.292 ■ ■$ ' $ 2.677.^292
$ 2,677,292 S 2.677.292

the.follpwingjabie provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'

• 2023 . • ' . ;2622 , '

Contfibutiohs. > ■ .$ 346,574 . $ .1,680,285 ;• •
-Payments .{894,908}' . . -

Since these furids are, held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
. related drganizatiph's assets, management has determined that the inputs are uripbservable
and "therefore, valued usjng a Level 3 methodolpgy. The principal valuation technique, is the

. fair. '^vaiue of -the underlying Investments" and' the unobservable Input is. the • term of
distributions. ! - - . ;
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Docusign Envelope ID: 42CB2C19-865A-4^C.B397-889B191F81()B

ASCENTRIA GOMMUNIty: SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO consolidated, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.  :JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 14 AVAIl^BLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

.  ■ . sithe Organization regularly monitors liquidity, required to meet its operating needs and other
/ . :^.:Cbmniitments. :Forpurppses..of .analyzing resources available .to meet,^eneral,-.expendltures

... - ove^'a■•12-month/period.:.the .Service considers all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well, as the services, undertaken to support those.activities to be
general expenditures. . ^ .
In . addition to financial assets available to, meet general expenditures oyer the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover .general expenditurei-not covered by donor-restricted resources. The

■ Organization considers the following to be available to meet cash needs, for general
expenditures: . •

2023 2022
CasH arid Cash Equivalents.
Accouhts Receivable, Net '■ . •

Total Financial Assets
ponor-jrnposed Restrictions

' Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs.
for General Expenditures Within One Year

$  ' 1,322,647 $  2,025,602
8:525.896 ■ . 7,645,413
9,848,543 9,671.015

.  (90.825) (90:284)

$  9.757.718 ■ .  $■ 9.580.731

(26)
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.ASCENTJ^IAIGOM^^^

YEAR.ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Agreement... Agreement

'V

.  h ■ .

Amount s. • Agreement Period . . Agreement Service< >jDepartment-.Office •:^;i;-Nu'mt^r

•DPS^.r -.W' ^ ' s 95,160 : ■ 7/1/2022"^-06/30/2023 . Rental Subsidy •
DPSr3/• •• •• •■ 'MH2-23.518 . 40,679 '- 7/1/2022.-.06/30/2023 •• •. bjhmUfii^/lntegfation

. . . . .iMH2-22i9qO 36,960 . 7/1/2021X06/30/^023' .

Agreement •; ; F^eral

■ ■ '

. disclosures: V . ~
a Single Audit?' . ,Yes:"7' X No:

Final

Final

Final

. Status ■'. Expenses

s'

•  "Slated. Agreement'
- Paynients E^nsea-

s.

27,179.. $ 27,179
-32:873' ■ ' 32,873

6,93:C. . . ..10,669
•7'7b;720

*• .V V** .

••r.-'in .

;v.-=

V-
- .. .,1 ••

I

I  .

^rT^

U-. ,. ...

• . .tvr.

"  •• .- -o 77 -

.  - ; (27),
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES^ INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Y^R ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

' RafuQM knd Entnnt Aisiitvw* SUM/RtplaMtncni
. OvslgnM AiMniMrtd Piegrims
RefuQM and EnnniAuistanea Stxa/Rspiacemam
Daaigne* AdrrMsercd Prognmi

Re(ug*e and Ennm Autetanca Stata/Raptaeameni
Oaalgnea Adndnlsurad Programs
Subtotal AL «93.S4«

Unaccampardad Alan CMdreo Program

MadMl Atiaistanea Program

Madeal Assistanca Program
' Subtotal ALf93^EDICAn}

' Refugaa and Entrant Asslttanea ViOsotVPIsh Program '

' Refugaa and Entrant Asiistanea Oitcrailottaty Grartts

Piovldar Mti Fund and Amatiean Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Olsbibutien

WeVara Reform Resaardi, Evakntions and Nadertal Studes

Total Department of Health and Hutnart Saruicat

DEPARTMENT OF AGRKULTURE
State AdmlnlstratK« Matching Grants for the .
. Supplemarital Nutrition Asststanea Program

State ef Vermont • Ori Demand Trarttpertatiw) lor Raach UP
Subtotal ALP lO.SNAP.

Farm to School Grant Program
Total Department ef Agrleidture

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Crfrna Victim Aselsunce

; Sarvlees fortraflleWng Vtabni
Total Departmant ef Justice

-DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Emergency Rental Asslstatea previsions (ERA2) ef me American Rescue
Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA)

-Total Departmant ef Treasury

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

U.S.'Refugee Admiaslens Program
.  • Total Daparbnent efStata

_C^ARTMENT OF EDUCATION
'•'"Adult Education • Basic Grants te States

-V'< RehabOtafien Scrvicas Vocational RehabOtaiion .
Grants to State

Total Dapartment of EdueaUen

Total Federal Awards

FedarM

Asilsianea

_U«th22*2!!S2^

9X566

9X566

9X566

93.676

93.MEDICAIO

93.MEDICAID

9X5S3

93.576

93.496

9X595

tO.$NAP

10.5NAP

Pass-Through
_Agenc]J02ntor

16.575

16J20

19JtO

64.002

64.126

CcmmetTwealth of Massactiusetta Oepanment of CNMran 6 FartdBet

Cemmenvtaaim ef Masaachuseos OfBca of Refugee wtd Invidgrants

State ef New HampsMri - OfSee ef HeaBh Equity

Church World Services; VERA Intthrle el Jusbce; Lumeran ImndgraSen
and RafugM Services

State ef New Hampshira

Stata of Mdne Home end ComrnunBy Based Services

State at New Hampshira - OfSca el HeaBh Eguby

Church World Services; Lutheran bnrTdgratron and Refuges Services

N/A

Adrrdrdsbadon lor Oiidren and FamSes

Cetnmermeslth of Mattaehusatia Department ofTransUonal
Assbtance

VT Oeparbrtent for ChUnn and Fairdes' Eeorwndc Satvieet OMsien

U.S. Department of Agricul&rra Feed and Nubiben Service

Massaehiiseits OfAea ef Victims Assistance

U.S. Deptctment ef Justice

New Hampshire Housing FInanct Auiherby

Various

Now HampsNra Department ef Education

' Massachusetts RchabBtallen Comndssien

Pass-Through
EntBylO

' Nurrber -

Varieut

Various

Various

NfA

NfA

WA

Various

NfA

90PE0060

WEL 44003064ASCEMTRIAA23

03440-10061-23

•  CN.f25J^20-PU4|ylM)1

V0(>2031ACSNOOOOOOCO.

2019.VT.ax-0107: 2021.VT.BX-0107

Various

projeeinTIOI

SCMRC2007ASCENFY1700

—■

Amounts
Fedaral Prevldad

Expendtturas to Subredoienl

S ' '< 1.694,029 ■  $

1.408.106 138,455

422.371
3,722.506 \H.4U

1.654.627 .

19.645 .

1630.685- .  .

•  . •

52.926

'  1.021,663
•

9X616

8.394,669 136,455

390.953 . ■
19 306

•

31 5X5 ,

441.794

' 134.026 .

343 000 < .

477,026

- 57 552

- 57.552
•

950 871

950.671 -. :

61.160

720 903-

263 083

6  10 604 196 %  1tt4SS

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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N0TE1 BAS|S,pFPRESENfATION

* i^cn sxpsnditCir^s^of fs^srsl, 3^*''^*''^'^

■ Sih^cluie ;is presentfe^^^ 2-CFR Part 200, '.Lirijforrh
.  ̂ AdminiM Cost Principles, and Aiidit Requirements for Federal Awards

(Uriifbrm' Gui^^^^ ScHeduje , presents only a selected .pdrtion of the
op^erajions of; It is hot.lptended to and does not present the financial position, .changes in net

'y . assets, or- cash-floWs of Ascentria Communi^,,Setvices, Inc. and .Subsidiary".' ' ■ ■,

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT accounting POLICIES

.  Expem Schefiule•ai:e."'>epdrted .on the. accruaj, basis-of.accounting.
i "" SucjiJexpe^^^^^ thp,'cost" principle's.xont^ ;jn' the Qnifqnm

.  npt'-^llpwa^

■  :'('m|^';iiTthe businessjp^ampuhts ^ pripr,years...
■  ■ t.Q-percent;de. ■'^minimis''ihdireCtcost'rate;a.s^^ ..-■ ■i v.- -, 'Mr' -,:'.' -"cv

^  itV .-. -

'•' . ' I '''j.'" ' *"• L>'' I ' '•' '
i'

i  ' . V ' C. ' ..

.-•• 0. :'V/' r'. I

- \ /•

'.'.•VVr*-
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piftonLarsonAllen LLP-
'  CLAconnect.com

, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND^OTHER MATTERS BASED ON ̂
•AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCdRDANCE
'  . WITH GOVERA/ME/Vr;^iUD/77N(S

Board of Directors';
. Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary ■■
Worcester, Massachusetts •

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
.ArnefiCa and the.standards applicable' to financiaraudits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by., the_ Cp.niptr6ller .'General" of the Onited'States, the 'cdhsolidaled finiricial" Statements of

" Ascerih-ia Community. seiyices, ;lnc. arid_SiibSiclia;ry, "which"-corriprise jhe'-consoiidated statement of
finahbial.position as of June 30, 2023, arid the related consolidated statements of activities, changes in
net assets, functional expenses, arid caSh flowsifor the year then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and.have issued our report thereon dated February 5,'2624.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing pur audit of the consolidated financial stateiVients, we considered Ascentria
Cpnirnunity Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control .over financiar reporting {internal control) as
a basis for desigriing.audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the.purpose of
expressing our opinion on the consolidated,financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness oif. Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.
Accordingly,-we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria.Community Services, Inc.
and Subsidiary's internal control. . . '

A deficiency in' intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow,
managerifient or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A, material weakness is a deficiency, or a
cdmbination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A.significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less "severe than a material weakness,, yet important enough.to merit attentioh'by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose :described in the first paragraph of this
section and" was, not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses of.signjficant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify,any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material Weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

CLA (OiftonlarsonAllen LLP) Is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAelobal-com/dlsdalmer.

'  . (30)
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'  ' Board, of Directors ̂ • >b-,' '
:  ■ - Ascehtria-eommunity SeiviceV, Inc. and S

•  • • • . -

Report on Compliance arid Piher.Matters.. v, V, ... . ..
- • . • ' : dO/i'i".}4^-.i-fVg-J. r; .> -v/-/.-- • , i-ji.U J
As part,of, obtajnlhgvjeas,qriabje^.assuranc.e,about,,wheth^ Services, Inc. and
Subsidlary's^cp^^^^^ fre^from.material-.m
' r^rtaln; provisions'^bf jawsT ̂fegu^ations-,..'contracts, arid • grant agreements,'
nonconipliance .'could have;-a direct- arid' materiaj .effect, on the consolidated, firiariclal
statements." Howb^^ an qpihion on corfipliance with those provisions was not an objective .of

• bur'audit,;'and-acc^^^ such ah opinion. The results of our.,testS;disclosed no,
.  ihstahces of- ribhcornpliance^or. .other' matters that,.are..j:eq,uired to be .-reported under ." Gpvemm^
Aud/f/ng.Sfanda'rr/i. • 'i'' V ..jir- '•

Purpose of This Repot^, ^ •/ !
The" purpose pf-this report :IS;LSplely to .de.scnbe The fscope .-.of oub/testipg rof intefnar" cbntroU;ahd
compliance and; the. results of,.that testing,' and not -to prbyide.^-an .ppinion^on .'the.neffectiveness-'pf^^e

. entity^'s internal control ob oh;cojbpiiance, This".-.rep^ audjt performed in
■*acc6rdancb ■with 'fepvem^ ' intemb! icbritrol arid

■,-,eiliftonLa.rc(^i^
Quincy, .Massachusetts '' ^•" '•
"February 5,2024-;: ' .v' •: . ;

.  I-' i; " v, . . . ' • - A :
•: . . '.v- ; - . "5" -;h.

', .'.-'-A. , '-'.f- •• :5v-\ Vj.-.. • ^

3. .

-'.1. -.'w r=;.>'v f-,... -' • . " i'- i. i"";.;". ' -
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-CiiftonLarsonAllen UP

CLAconneU.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON CdMPLlANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND report ON internal " =

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE ONIFORM GUIDANCE
.IV-.-'

Board of Directors' ' • - • . ;
AscOntria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary ■ . . - .
Worcester, Massachusetts'

Report on Compliahce for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program,
We'have audited Ascentria C^^ and Subsidiary's compliance with'the types of
compliance requirements Jdentjfi.ed as subject to audit in the 0MB Compiiance Supplement thai could
have a direct and material effecfon each of Ascentria Cbmmunity'Services, inc/and Subsidiary's rnajor
federal programs for. the year e,nded June. 30. 2023, Ascentria Community Services. Inc and
Subsidiary's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the
accorhpanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. • - >

In our opinion. Ascentria Community. Services. Inc. and Subsidiary complied, in all material respects
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
ofitsmajorfederalprograms fortheyearended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program ■ .
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment
Auditing Standards issued by the ComptroHer General of the United States; and the audit requirements
of. Tltle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Adm/n/sfraf/Ve Requirements Cosf
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniforrh Guidance). Our responsibilities under
those standards and the Uhifbrm Guidance are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required, to be independent of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary and to-meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We beNeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does hot provide a legal
determination of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the compliance

- requirements .referred to above.'.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and mainteriance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, ■ statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's federal programs.

CLA (aifjonlarsonAllen LLP) is an Independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAelobal.coin/dlsdalmer.

.  - • • (32)-
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,  . 'Board of ,
.  ' . Ascentrla Community SeNlcies,'Inc. 'and Subsidiary.:^ /• ( . li

Auditors! Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

absolute'assLiranceyahd'therefprOis^
■iGovernrhentAuditing'^Stahdarxis'ya^

,-Uhlfprm/,GuidancfeJwill:ialwaysAdetect-material.;honcornp^
rn.aterial'honcompljance resultingiifrpm:ifraud;.is higher^t^
ihvblye col|usio.n; fprgeiy), intentipnal omissionsrrnisre^ override ofjnternal confrbl.

?Subsldiairy!s compliance"with.the;repulrements of each;ma]6rfederal program.as'a,whole;* . ' ,
\  \r.- . -1 v 'i. m,.

;;ln perfprming.;.an a in.aecprdance.-with GAAS, 6ovemmenf;^ud/Y/ng-Sfanda/ds, andLtheiUniform

•  lucimiy^diiu^addeda. iiie iiarv.a ui i.iiciicncii nuiluunipiiciiiuc, wiieuici uuc lu ' iiduu ui t^nui, diiu

'  - V' ■ ' 9es,ign''-and- p'fbcedureSilhc^^^
■ ■|^jn^"' :exarninin^^^^ e'qmmuhit^

■  .''Sudsjdia|y?s'^cbmpl|a^^^ to 'abd^':and p^^
; 'such, other-p^ as,we' considered necessary in the circumsfances,.' ; ' * ' "

:pBtaih'::ahv, uhderstahdihg^^^ iric;-.' ahd-^SiJbsidia.ry's Internal
cpjfiVor -pver. cpnipliarice ^relevant-} t6*:^tKe::audlf' in^lorder to!}de'sigh %U(dit=-prb'cedur^s' that"^ are
appropriate in the. circumstances and tpHest-'ahd •rppoct-bn'internal"control.'over'cpmpliande in

■■ , accordance With"the but hpt-fpr thcpurpose.of expressing""a qpiniphon the.
effedtivWness'bf' As6Vhtria-' Cpmmuhity":Servicesr.:in'c. arid Subsidiary's-infe^^

■ •bompliarice^Accordirigly.'nojsUch'opinidn'is%xpressed. ' 'i - s : .'.vv.:

-yVe.are required;t6 cpmrnurilcate vylth thQse.charged wlthigpyernance regarding; among other matters,
the planned,scope ahd'tlrnihg .of--the audit and any significant deficiencies and..material Weaknessesin

.  internal,control over,cpmpliance that We identified during the audit!
J-" ; ' -'n';'!- ' • " '■ .• *.-pfrier-Maffers \

The results of our auditing-prpcedures disc!psed,!instances of .noncprnpIlance,\which,'-are required to be
reported in accordeince with .the Uniform". Guidance and which -are described in -the accompanying,
schedule ;bf findirigs. and questione'd costs as iterns 2023-002. Our opinion on each rriajor federal
program1snot:nio.d^fied with'respect tothese matters. . . ■..-..v. . .
Government Auditing Standards, requires the; auditor to perform limited procedures bh Ascentria

. Gornmunity Services, Inc.' 'and Subsidiary's response to the noricompliance findings identified, in pur
cbmpliarice audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 4uestibnied Costs. Ascentria
Comrriuhity Services, lnc. : and Subsidiary's, response was pot Subjected.itp/jthe•.other auditing
procedures applied In the audit of bompliance arid, accprdirigiyi we express np bpihiqri.lpri, the
response. • " • '
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,  Board of Directors

Asceritria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on internal Control Over Compliance v ,• j , v . . <
Our consideration of jnternal control over, compliance was for the .limited purpose described in the
Auditors'- Responsibilities for, the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identifyrall .
deficiencies; in internal control over, compliance^ that might be material weaknesses or significant

: deficiencies in . internal control oyer , compliance and .therefore, material weaknesses: on.'significant
deficiencies may .exist-that weremot identified.^ We^did not.-identify any deficiencies .in. internal control

.:OYer.:com'pliance that-<we consider to be material weaknesses. However^- as" discussed below,'we did
identify' certain a deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant
.deficiency. . • • .

A deficiency in internal-control over compliance .e)^\sis when the design or operation of a control over
compliance do^s"not allow management or employees, in.the, normal course of performing their
assigned functions,, to. prevent; or detect and. correct, noncompliance with a.;type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis; A maten'al weakness in internal control over
'cdmpliahce.is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance', such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompiliance with a type'of corhpliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency 'In Internal cdntforover "pomplianc&'is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control.over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than, a material weakness.in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by, those charged.with governance. We consider.the deficiency in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-
.001 to be mkerial weakness.

Our audit was npt.designed for the purpose of expressing an.opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control oyer compliance, Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. -

. Government . Auditing .Standards reciukes the, auditor to perform limited, procedures, on Ascentria

.community Services, Inc. ̂and Subsidiary's response to the-internal control over compliance findings
identified in our audit described in :the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's response was not subjected to the other auditing

• procedures applied in the audit of compliance and; accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

The purpose of this repprt on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the sCope of pur
testing, of internal.control ovbr compliance arid the results of that testing based ori theVequirements of
the Uniform Guidance: Accordingly, this report is riot suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAilen LLP

rduiricy,. Massachusetts
February 5, 2024
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-IrVfeAR'ESbE^

Section r-':Sum^

.;•' ^Financiai-Statemehts'''',;^^^ v • ., • ■ ••■- •'-. •. ■ ," ;;•'•• • •• •

/Type pfauditbrsV-repoit ;, Unmodified

crridi ooiuipi.ov^i,riiidripidiyiAep^ning. v< -.a-,- ,

• ,Materialweakness(es) ldentified^^ - ' - . yes X no .

• Significahtdeficlency(ies) ideiitified/.-- /i,:.;- ; r .■ TaS *
. that are not considered,to be ;

■, matenalweaknessXes)? ''.yes' X none reboriod

NoricorTipliance;maferial to financial
stateifierils noied? ^ ^ ' • - ves 'X no -', ■"T---- Jf'; - .

Federal Awards a'.;.

fnteVnal control/pyer major progfarris;-v. ;T^:- ... /

■""•■''MatenarweW^^^ ■^:^'X-b:!";vOs' V '■' ■ ho''"'' "' -y-ft;!-".!*'.

^ WIHI 1111 wCtI 11-Uw IIVIWI I wy V w i IvIdlLlllwVJ . 1 - ■ t • • , '

that arje:npt.consjde/ed to be. .^ i 'Vr. •
'  ■'ntaferiafweaime^s^^^^ ' "" . - .vOs X , 'none reported !
•Typ,e;0f;auditpi;'srr;ep6rtj^ued ph.cornpjjanc ; • . ^

•  fprmOjonpro^^^^ ; . .Unmodi^ed- ■ .
. . Any audit-findings disclosed that are " .

tobeTepOrted in'accordancewith" . , .
-2 CFR-'20p:51^ - X yes _np ' , - ,

Identification.of Major Federal Programs .

.  .10,SNAP; . \ , Supplemental NUtritiori Assistarice.'Prograrh : •
.  <0 . .. V. , ^P.3pcpmpanied Alien Ch^^ - ''  '.'93j;'57j6Y' . a- ••''V -• RefugVe ahd.Entfant'Assistancebi^^^^^

.  -b-M-' - ■ " . Grants "' '

tyfie'Aiahd type Bprbgra^'sif/ - tsd.odo ... ' , 1. ,* [ ■
Auditee qualified.as lq;w-ris.k<audite^ ;uX- -"--.".:ves .

*. ■»>'
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VASGENTRIA COMMUNITY.,SERYICES,.INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND.QUESTIdNED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE-30, 2023 •

Section II-r Financial Statemeht Findings '

Our au(dit.did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance vi/\{h.Government Auditing
Standards.

Section III ̂  Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Prograrhs

2023-001 . .

Federal agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Federal program title: Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants

Assistance Listing Number: 93.576

Pass-Through Agency: Church World Services; Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Services,

Pass-Through Number(s): Various

. Award Period: 1/1/2023-9/29/2023 .

Type of Finding: Material Weakness on Internal Cohtrol over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement; The Organization is required to maintain records of the time spent
■ on each federal award on a rrionthly basis. The records must reflect the total activity for which each
employee is compensated and the percentage of their time that is .spent on each federal award. The
records must be. sigried by the employee or a responsible supervisor and must be certified by ari
authorized official gf.the organization; The records must be maintained for a ,period of three yeiirs from
the date of submissidri of the finalexpencliture report.

Condition: During: our Testing, it was noted that the. prganization did not have Internal controls
designed to ensure employees time arid" effort spent on-the above reference program was properly
documented,.

Questioned Costs: $4,992

Context: The.Organization did not have timesheets or the proper approvals to support the payroll costs
•that were charged to the federal program.. >

Cause: The Organizafion did not have a process or controls in place to document tirine spent on each
federal avyard. on .a .rnonthly basiis. •' •

Effect: .Thg prgarii^atlqn is not In dpmpliahoe.with federal law and time and effort reporting as required
under Unifdrm'G'uidance

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Organjzatiph design controls to ensure tirtie and 'effprt
spent on programs are properly dbcurhented in accbrdarice with Uniform Guidance. '.

Views of responsible officials: There Is no disagreement with the audif finding. . -

;,{3.6)
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'  ̂SCENTRIA pqiiflMUfSllTy

, - Secti6h lll -' FJhdings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Programs (Coritlnued)

■FedeVal agfenpy; b.S. Departrherit of health, and Human-Services
Federal program title: unaccompanied Alien Children Program
Assistance Listing Number:.93;676^ • ' '

. Pass-Th'roughiNumbef(0:-;356r22-^^^ • •
"■ AwaWPeri^:;1Aip^ '

Type'bf Finding: Internal C6ntbrpye>,Com

Criteyia of spe'clflp requirement:! Expenses must be-.supported by' source documentation, sUch.as
receipts, invoices, of-cancelb^^^ ' /■

" . Condition: puri.ng.ou'r teStlngi we rioted that the Orgariizatiori did hot haye adequate .controls to ensure

Que.stipriedCosts:- y.^ •... , / .. '■

Context: The brganjzato d.pcunfientatjon to support, one of the. sixteen expenses
■  . that were se|ected:fpr testlngT - • ; • • - ' .■■ • 1'.

Cause: the obntrolsT.ihfplace' were odt operating effectively -to ensure expehses are supported with the
prpperddcumentation..' . ■ T
Effect: The auditor noted one Instance of nohconipliance and. a lack of intefnar controls over these
cdmpliance requirements. ; ^ -

Repeat Fmdirig: No • ' -. , ^

Recpmmendatiph: It is recomtoerided that the' Organization design controls to ensure expenses are
supported by source docurnentation. ■ ^ '

Views pfrespbnsjble officials: There is no disagreeiTient with the audit finding.'
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BtJ-

Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

Board of Directors 2024*25

Last Name First Name Tltle(s) Corporate Officers

{current only)
Board & Cmte Officers

(current only)

Goodman- Ross Director Board Chair

Cowlagi Ashish Director ' Vice Chair and Board Secretary^

Bartholomew Alexander Director Finance Co-Chair & Board'Fin Sec'y •

Robertson ■Keith Director Governance Cd-Chair"'"

Mayo, William Director Immediate Past President

Campbell Marybeth Director

Gibbs. Brain Director

Jackson Debora • Director

Schrhidt Peter Director

Bovill Angela CEO

Director
President i

Kelly April Chief of Staff and

VP. of real Estate
Executive Vice
President"

Hahsconi Kristine'

Chief Fin Officer
Executive Vice

President

Tappan Christine Chief of
CommunityrBased
Services and

Advancement

Executive Vice
President

O'Neil Gary Chief Social

Innovation Officer
Executive Vice

President

Meegan Nancy Chief Human -

Resources Officer

Sousa Nicholas EA'Community .
Svcs & Operations

Assistant Clerk/
Secretary

Browne . Tar a Manager of Exec.
Assistants

Corporate Clerk/
Secretary

Russo Nicholas Senior Director of

Treasury
Treasurer

11 Shattuck Street. Worcester, MA 01605
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IRAQ VETERAN, MANAGER OF PEOPLE AND PROCESSES THROUGH CONTINUOUS PROCESS IMPROVEMENT

, . .-■'^Strategjc/leader^and-manager^wjthii^ EProcessv • Improvement^ VproTessiohal ^wlthj '
•  pr6fitabil|^through:ley(J]|r?W^^^^ . .'nearly' IP ' years^'of"-''ej^erl^

R.espected;for helpih^organizatioos^ cbmpjex, mu'ltlslte"'pperatlbns^t^
.;Strongbacl^Vound.asprgahlMt^^^ grant writer with: awards .over-

■ business efficiehaes'and'lMd revenue inltlabves^nd.createTuhding.mbdelsand.strategles^^ S6MM. ; • - ; -

SERVICE BEFORE SELF

GORE COMPETENCIES'

EXCELLENCE IN ALL WE DO

• B iis j n es's'Prpte a n'a'ge m en ]'.'
■Cpn^ihuous jmprpy^^^ •
•Fiscal.Cornpiiahce -\v'' i
•GrantAnocatibn-Prbcedures . - j

'  'ihternal/ExterriaLCqrisulting^•VGqaLBb^'d'KPJIrtiprbvem^
-Tactical Jmplernentatibn Business Process Improvement

.WEACHiNG-NARRATIVEg^Lc^'';; ?
• > Instru'^cted'twbqlas'seVbf SS.studeh^.each'fo.r^^ - • > - ' .'
• • Maintain'adasssyl|abus, assignment lbg,ahdadditibnal.mateH

• 'Participate In'weelcly meetings vyith faculty to discus^depaiirnentargoals ah
'• Builtandled asynchrbnoVsjeaVnfn'g.djs'cu'ssiqnSjpnJme^th ■
>-PJanlectures,'assigh'men^^^^^ in-field,experiencesto.c^^ with'necessarycbursecurricuiuni.

I >Adjuh.ct'Profess aKd Marketing/i ■ Computer systems Institute
>AdjunctProfessoi:rBb'sjness ^ • ' v"^-- •

;  ■'.v;^ /Wg 2019-July 2020
-Mar 2019-Gurfent'^-

GAREERlNARR'AtlVE i!23E3
revenue•;Geherated.'$;i7IK ih increasedannualperformanw $1MM in ri

• .SJgnlficaht!y !qnhanced;placementrates by-5^^^ In'creasing monthly .
;reyenue|rbm'$62K'to*$ipiKi5y;^^ ■

^■•.Improved cash flpwJ.B'y'cr^ating'a new in lost dollars •
'-•^Built. bn-dte crederidal prdgram'.foy'.^Ca^^ "tpariaging five .sites as training center by deyelbping
r  "Strategic partneYships thrpugh'bqilabbratiqns with%aining o/ganiz^ and workiiig s'trategTcally.vvith employers. . .
• In Ha^ord.CT:frRegistered'.40d+'students into.the'e^^ iOZgraduates exVeedihg goal by 118% . , .
•. Created. Curriculum for 4;;'8r' and ri2-week Career Planning courses at the Associate)-BbcKelbf/ahd Master level for Mohroe

•. -jGollege, Delta Gp!ie'ge,Cincoln Tech'.ahd Ge'heral.Assembly as well as .the Job pevelopef Training Course

I >3usinessConsul,tam^^^^ .yV v.'v-ri^Y/fi/iili^i-CTOsiSectpr .■ -'or-oi/j'--
>Cpnsu|tarit ahd. lrnplementatibn Specialist ^ . r M^S.SHIRE South Shore Massachusetts
> NpnTProfit"Execdd Directpr (Part Tirne) . , -6jack'stpne.ya||ey Educa
>Executive Director MASSHIRE Metro South/West . , Career TEAM LLC /MSWETA
>Prograni Managei;V^lpA:Cpmpliance . \ ; CareerTEAM.LLC
> Director of Career Services;^;, . Empire Education Corporation
>Supervisor Multiple Work Stream Operations.. . 'jP Morgan&Chase
>National Sales Manager . . Wizard World Conventions'
>C,areer,.Sefvice'Advisor-

. ^ Staffj.Weather p
SEDUGATION -
M.B;A/Management'/''^h^^=^
A.A. BusinessManagement
,B.A, .Liberal Arts'- ! V; .'../.--Y,/
A.A^ Applied Sciences and. lyiathematlcs

The.Art Institute:'

Feb 2020

Mar^2bl9
Jun 201? ■
Feb.2017
Fbb 2015

Mar20i3
Dec 2011

ApriOll-
Jan 20,10-
No'viobS

-Current-

-Current

- Apr 2020
-Apr2019 ^
- Jun 2018 .

-Jan'2015
-Dec 2012

-Dec 2011

-Apr 2011
-Nov'2b09• > S United-States Air Force-l.V

a?&

ilNDERENDENT WORK!^^v^-^^V::^I

i 'New York/'NY-
Berkeley .College j.New York, NY
ThoniasEdisonStateCoi.iege.j Trenton,NJ

.Cbmmuni.lYiqllege-^ j US Air Force -

Apr. 2014
Mar 2013

Sep 2012
A'ug 20.6.6"

^• ■'ItO.Pl^^^htatiph Consujtaht.; . '. --• ;'..YBpuhce USA/Austr^^^^^
-•;Wl6ACase Manager Course ..- 'M .• -' Author fbrWorkforce 180° ,

"7:. •Ti •

Sep;.2P.19 - Current '
May 2019
APR 26i6
Feb 2015.: T: .-' .

V - '>-..1 '0 i- - E- -.ii: •..•^•,■>■2^' .S-n. ■■'•••jl.'.-.'.V/.-Cj' i' .i»v.



-;:;pocusjgn Envelop jb;^42^ ^ ' ■,*. "

'. Vt

•J' ; ..i
•-.i

'_»•.• ' '''7 ' s-v'

Profe'sslbnal Experience

WorkiPprce Development Program Manager

o  • Responsible for providing effective leadership to progrann staff and ensuring
quality services to the individuals served.
• Responsible for training programs to ensure all program staff are adequately
trained in all internally and externally required areas.
• Develop prograrh staff.including supervising, coaching and,rnentpring.
• Interview, hire,.orient, supervise and evaluate program staff. ,

•• Manage program staff remotely as required.
. • Perform a variety of complicated tasks that require decision-making, judgment
. and confidentiality.

Partner Relations, Coordination and Community Outreach
• Prepare local community partners, service providers, and key stakeholders, etc:
for the resettlement of refugee populations. . :

,  • Network, develop and maintain relationships with external partners, including
. funders, service providers, state and national agencies, landlords/vendors,

employers, educational institutions, community groups and faith groups
• Coordinate vyith partners ph mutual .clients or rnutual interests.
• Represent Asceritria and SNA externally;
• Provide and/or promote educational offerings to social service organizations
regarding culturally and linguistically appropriate services. •. - ■
• Promote the pfograrn through'community networking and providing •
presentations; develop and maintain relationships with key stakeholders and
partners. . ..
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Employment Counselor. • / s ' s

■May 2019-November 2022"': .v,
.  ' x * *'

Career couhselprl'take a person's education level, work history,.personality, interests and skills
intplaccQuht and;s,uggest-careers that.match his or het; background and abilities. TheipgpaMs to.^V. . . . . . ... . 1

I iiaLyi I pcypic. vv III 9 'C.gl Cd ICdt^Udldl ILC I IMd I lUldl. pdyUM dllU JUU"- -

,  :;;satisfacti6n. ,|nyadd.jtiph to helping people who are just entering the WO . ,• .
• V counselo'rs'help'people whb hav^ are between jobs, unhappy with.their career

•  Documents and manages case files in accordance with'contractual regulations
.■ •" Maintain clientdataBase and case records, including case notes and filing reports .

according to program procedures.
•  Preparing reports.as require - .
• : . -Assist'refugeevtb.iive as self;Sufficiently.>aspbssible.a'nd,to.lntegrate into the community.

Providing translation^ interpretations, and .transportation to .clients as appropriate.

.March 201&'--May 2019O,;' , \ '

Senior Case Manager o - . ^ /

. Ascentria ba.re Alliance, Services, Services for New American's Prograrp; Worcester, MA .x

/ •. Documents and .rnanages.case-filesm accordance:With .contractual regulations
• • ..Maintain client database.and case records, including ease notes and filing reports •

according to.pro'gram procedures'. . .•' a. ; , , x - , ^
'  . • Preparing reportsias required. .

I . ''
.mdhitoringarid dvers'being client's^partidpatioh'ih refugee program.- - '

•  Assist refugee to jjve as seifrsufficieritly as possible and to integrate into the community.

. Providing translation, interpretations, and transportation to dients.as appropriate.

•; Vl -
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May 2013-Present Case.Manager

:Lutheran Community Services, Services for New Americans Program, Worcester, MA

;• • I'rovldes core resettlement services to newly-arriving refugees

•  Responsible for Insuflng safeand successful transition to hew community ■

• - Documents and manages case files In accordance with contractual regulations

D2/20l2-pfesent Department Manager, Electronics

Walmart, Worcester, MA ■ . .

• Managed Inventory for department

• Managed staff recruitment, hiring, training, and scheduling

•  Consistently schleved sales and other department goals

May 201-August 2011 Case Manager

Lutheran Comrnunity Services, Services for New Americans Program, Worcester, MA

•  . Provided core services, including referrals to other social services, agencies,

•  Conducted home visits and assisted clients with emergency situations

•  Maintained files and case notes file maintenance

October 2009-February 2011 Volunteer^Case Management Assistant

Lutheran Community Services, Se'rvices for New Americans Program, Worcester, Ma

•  Assisted case managers with files

•  Provided Interpretation and translation services ■

•  Assisted case, managers In provldlng.core services to newly arrived refugees

5/2006- 9/2009 Software Engineer

Dahdal Trading EST-, Amman, Jordan
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>  ' , • " Impbrt/Expprt'Electronics .

'• V . ' /V •, 0' •' • - y . • •' '.Vi* li' ̂ ^ I '•

AEyaqduUew"e\^^^^
• •■• '"Jewelry iaies

■ '• pesigned.and constructed jewelry by harid

* 'f| k. • • '' '*. \ . . ;

,  • Education ,; . - .Alrna,nspur University' • .Baghdady lraq,'.,^^^

Bachelor's degree In.infprniatlon technologY and.cornputer.engineering. .
\ i (' '-■j :'- -■ -V .

, . Additional skills'

Fluent jn English and.'Arablc^ : . , < '
•V .'-DrivePs^llcense J--; .r'/.

■' • V ■n

priyet^s|lcense

Vi.''-f' ' ' 'i s -'V ;■ -ivi^ :• •.

,
,* • ■.Income Tax PreparersTralnlhg>^2d09" .-v-

■  ' .•' ■'Psychplpg^^^^ Tralnlng'(Refugee i Asylee /Irnrnlgrants) 20'i3' . \ ■
:••' . Mandated report for child abiiise and neglect E learning. . , 26i3\
•s ; Worcester Pojic'e CiyjIian^Academy May 2.pn , ' / ,v

■  Nptaiy Public^(,w6rcester,"Massach'use . ^,-

President pf the Youth Committee

! /V7o/7ddeohVlssoc/ot/o/i m yWossoc/iusetts ' Worcester, Massachusetts

•'V' '' Provide activities and events for the Mandaean committee in Massachusetts.

•  i.-
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Shirin Ashoury

,  . V ~ Professional Profile
Adult Education Program Manager, Coordinator and Professionai -teacher with 17 years of experience
delivering ESL, tutoring, and facilitation multiple classes as, a substitute teacher. Passionate to supportv..
bachers and help students succeed academically to,support opportunities for their future careers.'
•  Classroom arid program, management • Giving and receiving feedback

;  • Flexibility • Student centered teaching^
.  • Teamwork • Cmpathetic . . . .

Language: Farsi - Fluent, English - Fluent

Technology: Microsoft Office and Google Platforms

Education

SIT Graduate institute, Brattleboro, VT
Master of Arts in Teaching English to Speakers of Other Languages.
Relevant courses include:

Anticipated 2018

•  Second Language Acquisition
•  Approaches to teaching •
•  Language Analysis for Lesson Planning

Adult Education .

Group Dynamics

Teaching the. Four Skills

New Hampshire Department of Education, Concord, NH
Certification in Teaching ESOL . 2012

Rudehen Azad University, Rudehen, Iran

Bachelor of Arts: Teaching English as a Foreign/Second Language 2006

January 202,3 - present

Teaching Experience

Ascentria Care Alliance ..

Adult Education Program Manager

• .Resporislblefbr providing effective leadership tp program staff and ensuring quality services to the
individuals served. • Responsible for training prdgrarns to ensure all program staff are adequately
trained in all internally and externally required areas. • Develop program staff including supervising,
coaching and mentoring. • Interview, hire, orient, supervise and evaluate program staff. • Manage-
pr^ogram staff-remotely as required. • Perform a variety of complicated tasks that require decision-
making, judgment and confidentiality.,

Ascentria Care Alliance January 2022-present
EducationDepartment Coordinator

Responsible for creating a vibrant and innovative program to help refugees and immigrants
acquire essential skills necessary for succeeding With , daily living, erriplbyment apd ovrall
integration

Ascentria Care Alliance

ESL Teacher:

teaching ESL to refugees and immigrants

January 2019 ̂  January 2022
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SKlrIn Ashoury

'  '■ • ' • ■ ■ V-.F •.';••.;:■ ■ ••;■; a' . ' ' .,-v^vf/i-^'" ' ■ •

■  ;: !,V
sit Graduate Institute , - . , . ; 'K,. ^ '
LibrarYAssistaht^iiNu .. .-;■ . •:• • ;..F'S ,v;.: •/;; , /; January 2018-:April:2pl8

•■•'\v ;*;:'"\Asslsting colle^ finding arid checkirig book's ,in and.out of the librarY ., V v^- ': V
:l^MATESObOffice-Assista^ ' • v^f■; • ->■ ' ■■ •SepternberZOl?. December2017 .

f . rCreate materials for faculty tp;use"lri'thelr classes'': ■•^, • ' ' '• 'Ti ^

'  . keene School District; Kee • ,
■ i-tutdrj ";■- . . .K ■ ■■■■ Uuiy2018-Decernberi20i8• Working in'the sp^iareducatibri departriient'^^^^^^^ School andgiylhg a one on ohe '

.;s^Rpqrtjto,a student^and s^ ; - -F 7 ' ' V-'^
..ESLParaprof^ssional . . • ' . -'! • v • , . ' • . . i. April ^OlV-JuTy 2017 •

>' needs , 7 ;
•  . Gollabbrate'd with-th'e dassrboni teacher to elevate ridn'-hative speaker to th^^^ speaker"

leyel in Math and ESL
' ^ ..^7)"pctober^016-AF>ri|-2017'

" • Supported all thir;d-grade students, in al| subjects . 7 . ;l/-, . v .

;academically . ••.•••• • . ■ \ .r .'"i'-,-;'-: •

, . .♦, Tutored rhiddle school special educatiori Vistas program suppbrting:both in the!cla'ssfoom and in ^ T

'  '-

■ESLTeacher;:; : ' : H,' ' : '^7 ;:i '-'v' .■^; •V[-- "■ -v . .;P'ecerriber;2014;Februarv:2016 '
• ^ 7 Created lesson plaris to bring a student frorn basic to native level ; ■ ,

7 .• ,>.Ja,ught ESL'and English fpr Special Purposes for student's,addit.ional cla'ss'support),:. .• / • •;

School Administrative Uhit#29, Keene, NH
7.;Substitute,Tea^ ^ j ^ ^ 7 ,7. 7. ,7 •. November 2dlO-June 2013

•; • Manage classes in the abserice of current teacher
.  .#

"i "

Arya Educationai institute, Tehran, Iran
•• -'ESLtebcherf^';;-' •; .^'7: • 7c; •• • .• ; ■ ^. :7. ■ -> 7 • April 2005--December 2008 ■'
'  . • FacjIiTated.ESL using Let's Go intermediate and Interchange.textbooks;V '7 ' < • -

••7,*.<^jTaXigh ^uderitsTrorh'Plerneritary to adultllri all.levels, in conversation and grammar-.. >
•  ■ • . ; • • . V. ;-(:r -i:" • ;! / i;.'" . rv ••

-• ■iDanesh Language Institute,-Tehran, Ir^ .7 .. 7 t .-.w,- , ;7.7.:. 7,, . .
•  ESLTeacher : . v : • June20b3-May2005 •

•;.(TajU|ht;alVgir^^ > , 7, . .7,7;

-Page'2

•/- j.v "■ ^
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.[-iuniayun §arabi .

,  ' ^ Key Qualifications ,
^Results-onented^-executi^^ with a proven track record in strategic management and progiam
leadership, specializing - ln fundraising strategy, major gifts development, and corporate and
foundaf/on/g/u/hg/Donor Cuitivatiori/Event. Planning, Relationship Management. Adept at
building and leading teams to achieve fundraising.goals: • ; . r.. . ;

— OtherSkjilsi—
skilled In grant and portfolio rnanagerhent, entrepreneurship, and business developrnent. Strong
people and operations managemisht skjlls with a focus on prograrn monitoring and evaluation.
Expert in scaling and managing startups/. ■

Professional Experience

Led-the successful resettlement of Afghan refugees in Massachusetts by collaborating with
federal and.state agencies.

Nurtured and managed-partnerships with over 32 POWIR sites, fostering strong relationships
between the sites and Afghan families.

Spearheaded successful fundraising campaigns resulting In a 20% increase in financial support
for refugee resettlement programs through community sponsorship.
Developed and executed strategies to engage private donors, securing significant contributions..

Developed and implemented .strategies for the efficient allocation of resources and budget,

resulting in the seamless operation of resettlement programs.
Led and.supervised teams responsible for resettlement and case management, ensuring smooth

' dayrto-day activities and government benejfit programs.

•  Assisted the.CEO in setting and driving the organization's vision, operational strategy, and hifing
needs.

• . Negotiated and secured funding from U.S. donors, surpassing annual fundraising targets by

:  '25%. . .

•V. Developed and implemented innovative fundraising initiatives, including successful partnerships
with international organizations.,' .

• , Successfully /negotiated with stakeholders to, implement journalism trairiing programs in

Afghanistan, prorhoting human rights through media advocacy.
•  Acted as the main point of contact for U.S. donors, fostering strong relationships to secure

.  fuWdihg for the. organization. • . '
•  Developed actionable business strategies and plans to align with short-term arid long-term

objectives.



•.'' • ' -■ ■ I - • • ■'. >< .. -. .' • ' . ■, -I A ■, ■ ' -• : • '.• .- ■ '• •• • - ...".

V, ■

•■ Proyidei^str^tegic^ support ■to, contributihg^tb". the
;  ' ' ■::-;:"deyejopmentr^o,fi,i;ei' 2022/r'ihclud^ 'and:>lhstitutional;

' ■"• ;Jmprovbm¥n^^^

' ■ ^ drafting agendas and delivering informative : _ .•  • . -•■-'-brjefsrorrimpprt^^ - • ;• ,
•  Pfodubed key/policy pdpefs-on topics such of free trade.fbr Gentral Asian'

■: ■ ■■■■; "cbuhtnes; ■■■■■ ■: , ■■ , ' ■ ■■ ^ ; ■. ■ ■ . ' ■ .'

• v.-;, ■.

•  Successfiilly^0^ pybrskw'^ excellent prdject plahriing
,anfljmplembHtatibnjskite^'- :^^V'^':r^'-^'"'3P.'''' '■?''-^'^':r; '^'- . /■

•  ' Integrated data fcpm^Jmuftlpte^ annual and multi-annuar plans, ensuring
■  effectiveprgahjzatiop^wfe , v-.,'. ;.; '
•  ■■ ppmp^ financ]sj::;itewafds^^^ .by .oyerseeihg'; budget ^deye

' managlng^fin^cj^Jv«';;/^(5V>^
'lhcVeased%6'ard 'mAmhSivfrmH^ KV'l^VA'^'-rnnfnKi rt rrtoni-yaVirtn'e fir
sustairiabilijy^^^^^ "' ' ■

;• ted yinltiati;^^^^^^^^ and-partner.witli locaf ahd International o.rganizahoris,.;;resuK^ in
r^---'^ucc^^fd|gbint''prpjects-;'--f'^'"^-f^ ; v- ;■

teTi®astbMQ!seWsS!^B

•  'Conducted e^ensiyer,e.searchrpn s^^
through'|ransTatib'n\-p^

Jes withih./^fghanistan valuable ins
ptip'n;! 'V' '' '''

ights

f. ;Cp,llabpratedwi,tb;'tea^ colleptipn.effbrt^ consistently/pi.etdead^ les;

Cp,unte^>RCQg.raM'P.irectpr;/^Gtt;^ i'S®fnSfe-ieil5awa>?|R^^

•  Directed day-to-day office operations,and .playe^^^ key role In developing policies and initiatives
. forchildren'sh.ealth^educatipm ,". . ' .. 'y . • : .v

•  Managed a'$4M.budget forjield vvofk, prpject'irnplemeritation/evaluatibn, and pfodosal writlnq.
•, ■ Cultivated strong relationships, with national organizations, promoting the prganizatioh as the

third-largest South Asian nonprofit JmUiej^untfy^!?.^ :. -

■<
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•. "Conducted evaluations and reported on ;agricultural projects in Afghanistan, coordinating project
;  startrups.and ensuring tirhely cdrnpledon/ ;;,; '^
•  Researched anddniplemehted alternative livelihood projects to reduce opium poppy cultivation

In Afghanistan.. . -v.-. . /•

• \Prepared-!project proposals ;ahd r.ep,oi1s for U arid:DFID/European Union projects. ,., .

• . Provided administrative support to the department head and.finalized contracts and grants.

Educational Background ' .

Master; Public Administration, . ' ' ;
Harvard Kennedy School, Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts

.Master^ Humahitariah Action and Human Rights..
Ruhr Universitat. University College Dublin, Germany, & Ireland

" Master, La\A/& Diplorhacy and International Relations ■
Fletcher School of Law, Tufts University, Medford, Massachusetts

Bachelorj Business Administration
Preston university, Peshawar. Pakistan

Fellowships & Awards

Ash Democracy Fellow, kennedy. School, Hanrard University

Best Innovative Project Award fofjdUrrialism Tramirig Project for Women Empowered Afghanistan
at (Istanbul Summit 2015), Journalist & Writers'Foundation

,  Finalists for Fellowshios

Echoing Gre.en .Global F^ellbw, 2015

'■■"V.V" Civic AcVeiefator.Fejiow^

Detroit Challenge Fellowship, 2016

Broad Residence Fellowship, 201.7



.  education

buNYA UNIVERSITY ^ ,
:. ',. ' Masterin Business Administration candidate; GPA: 3.3

.  Kabul, Afghanistan
'- ■• /. ;2019-'2021-

Kabul,'Afghanistan•.• ^ . .. KABUL'PNiyERSITY. ;.• •/
Bachelor ofSdieri^ 'i - i !>'''^ ., , , 26l2-i20i5. '

;-; AMERjbAN:GpUl^CI&Fb^ ■ ' Leizh, Albania
y.S; English Teaching ProgVam (USET)'for Afghan Refiigws ' ' V.,' ' ^2022

•V:vKfVf'\UVKv 5 .
w6rk"experience '

SEVICES FOR NEW AMERICANS/ ASCENTRIA CARE ALLIANCE
'v ■ keselllemehlNayigalor^ - • • ' . '• ■•:{ • • -

' . ; . rO; / :VJ,;V4'.7''I.'! V ..k'-.'-';- ' • '

; BEAVER.MEAppW^ELEM^ - -Vi.' '
. Educational Assistant. ' ^ 'S

. Concord,NH. ,.-
June 2024-Present

Concord, NH .
Nov 2023-June 2024

•  allowing-th'eprim^ teacher to focus on/he class:- .3 r' -:
-  'Empowered to-mentor 20 students in various subjects and social activities, demonstrating adaptable

:Commuhicati.on;skills'foceffectrv^^^^ ^^C- i ;- "

: / vU^ICEF'A^^^ StHpJ^ 'X:' '■ ■ ■( i'Ecazh, Albania
■ . ■ V .yMqih'^eacim^^l^ssisfqnVT^ ' Feb' 2022-:May.2623

;  .•f,.vGuided 90inath students over Hvo.yeafs;'fds^^ confidence and'evaluatin'g new students foroptiidal class •
• ' , . . ^.placemehtb^ed on proficiency a^^ • '

•  suppdrted-le^iihg\^-. ' ■ ■ J' J
PRESlpENTI^PRdfECTIVE Kabul, Afghanistan

■ Depufy Manager at Deparlhient'o^^ , Nov 20i6-Aug 2021
•  . Forged uhivefsity partnerships,to.secure^schplarships^ female gpyernment 'e^^ pursuing bachelors

,  and^masller's degrees, gujdirig the^^ testing, coursework, andj^ucational needs lo empower .
, . .- •adyancement'into hjgherM^^

' dh^pi6ried;/wdmdVs'''righte'"^d'w6ricpiac^^^ salary," facilities,
•  • 'trahSpdrtation^'anddaycare;eMahcingpro'duclivi^^^ " /-

. The Asia Foundation ^ Kabul Afghanistan
Admin Stajjybr,Women'sSchqlarsh^ . . - ■ .Sept 2016-bec 2016
(• .Irnplemented USAID Women's Scholarship Program in AfgHanistari;"6vefsdeing-120 students' education and

"  V" ensuring equitable;support,'-ihcluiding^dat^ehtry,c6mmunicatiph>ah(iddiTO ,

■ : AbPITlbNAE^INFORMATlbN ■ :! -j 'J'/Vi-;- : ' 'V
'  ̂ ' *'/.?■ •, ' ' i- I

•  SkiHs:-Languages-English (advanced), Dari (native), Pashtd (fluent), Urdu (fluent),
. Technical skills-MS Office (Word, Excel, Po\yerPpint); completed UNICEF .te^^^ ,

•, Exlfaciiiricuiar; SeWe as an activist, mentor thought leader'om^ wqmeh'Vfights; tutor grade school
' stude"ntsTnpari;'math, biology, chemist^ty^^^^ ' .. k. ^ i
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FOCUS , Workforce Coordinator

EDUCATION

NORTHERN ARIZONA UNIVERSITY; Flagstaff, A2
Bachelor of Science, Hotel/Restaurant Management.
May 1995, CPA 3.6.
Minor In Spanish.

First Hotel/Restaurant Management Major.to complete University Honors
Program. v "

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE Portland, ME
Completed courses worth 9 credits'to fulfill Maine's requirements for
Spanish K-12 education.
Completed all education courses to fulfill Maine state requirements for
certification.' /

' Graduate courses for Master's degree In Literacy with an emphasis In
English as a Second Language.

UNIVERSIDAD DE SANTIAGO DE COMPO'STELA Santiago de Compostela,
Spain
Studied abroad for 3 1/2 weeks through USM. Course focus was
immersion and culture, worth 6 credits.

ENTREPRENEURIAL

Ballroom Dance Instructor ME, NH,. SC, VA v05/99 -present
❖ Instruct both Individuals and groups In a manner that combines fun

with technique. '
■ Build'rap'pprt with students to retain them for the long term and
Increase word of mouth referrals for new students. '

Attend workshop and training opportunities to increase knowledge and
f keep up,with,best practices f^ personal and Instructional purposes.

Innkeeper/Owner NH 06/06 - 11/14
❖ Operated Six Chimneys & A Dream Bed and Breakfast and Its gift

shop A prearn Within A Dream., ... . . .a...
❖  • Fulfilled or oyersaw all toles necessary to the smooth operation of a 6

guest room B&B with customer service, as a top priority.
❖ Coordinated Adult Enrichment Programs for area residents, through.
:  . the B&B, new In Fall '08. - - ;

Private Piano Instru^ AZ, NH, VA ,09/90 - 08/18,
❖ Taught students,between the ages of 3 and adulttb play the piano.



■■■v -b6cusl^.Er^l6po'lp:;42C^'C^^ '■.[ ■r. ■' ■; 4--'^ ■

t'L) .)] ;'.Vii-.!-^.,

WORK HISTbRYv inclit^ ■ :^ :
':fe;'ASCEN*i5R;IA/,.NH ,;■:'■■ ■; ■ ■ ■ ■';.■ 07/23 -'present

Workforce - l uf :• •: r:-.;.-. i;,; j: ; : ' '

^ iJ
.  , ;<v. 'PCpy'dei support especially, as '

■.•: • . v";-'--. .; o;" ''^V-; :,pefta)rtSitp^new'^^
.' . . PCTOPteb|f^prh^N^^^^^^ .. \

;■ . , ■> :.Wb^ . ..y-'.?:; - ^ . . . . , ■
❖ ■RecfuitV.scVeeh/'^^^^

'- . .♦t*. r^bmnloro •i*brSAr+c/infr«rma}-ir\n .frt'r'fi in/Hirii-i ".■ •

■ . ; :'r . Rbcrult.vblgriteers for SerVlces for . . ' . '
.  .-/;v • ❖:;.:.Ipitiatecii:pife matching

.III t

V

support to ensure the. best;outcome for the ciieht- ■-

■BIG B^OTHERS;;:B^^ ■ . - 04/22 - 05/23
rYouth Mentor Coprdm^^^ . ..h ^

:'• :r/:--f':'^.^i.?Reci|,uifed, 'sc.reehed>-'.t:rained and evai.uated volunteer mentors'.
•.?A • Mana^^H t-U .«U ! i.

'riy,i'MLui.cu:d,Lu.ye;;i.iidLLi;ieb;dnusvyorKea .w :mentees, ran;
.  ...and-cpmrn tb.^erisure theibest^outbome for the child.
' Managed the ! ;

■  . • ; . ,*> . 'Collaborated on fundraisers and.represented the pfbgram at numerous
'V'comrnU'riity'evehfe^^U^^ ^

,  ; .Initiated .and,designed;a'^pilot ^
.  ;Rundjptt'Middle.^Schbol;to.'.:s^^

.rC .iThls^prbgrarh alsbirablGaily Impfbyed'thei number of minority children
•;-bemg.iseWed;by;^theofganlzatlbn^^

• • ( : !* '

tHE;FRIENpSBR 11/20 - 03/22
Youth ̂ en^^ . • • ii-. •
'<v. Recrulted/screehed;;^ evaluated volunteer mentors.
❖ Managed Incorhlng .rnentees/whether through recruitment or referrals,

*i* Monitored active matches ahd'wbrke^ mentbrs, mentees, families
^  ■ '^(and/bbrri.munityJpartners'tbpnsure^thebest outcome for the chN
.  Manbged .the waltMs^ . •, v,.

❖ .Tra)ned:hew m.anagement team when forrner^ep^^^^^

' thatserved'over lOO kids In or.related to the.program.
❖ Initiated and designed a crbss-programmatic literacy project between

kids and foster grandparents that was going strong more than i yr.
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TALBOTS/NH. . 01/20 - 07/20
Assistant Manager .
❖. FullflHed all duties/resppnsibilities .of mgrnt; under.dlrectioh of store.'

manager and operated store In her absence.
❖ Assjsted customers by offering super customer'servlce and

suggestions to fulfill their needs." . • ■ '(
*> Oversaw all signage and^prdmotional materials and managed

sbckroom. Maintained store files.^ ' ' /
-Lead.the way for fuhdralslng for Dress for Success, a global nonprofit

.  organization that provides.professional attire for low-Income women,
to help'support.their job-search and interview process: . '

WAtERFORD/WEDGWOOp/ROYAL DOULTON (WWRD), VA, ME
PT-Keyholder ^. ,. . • 07/18 - 06/19 .
.❖ Fulfilled all duties of customer service and sales, as-well as opening

and closing the store and..belng responsible for cash count.
❖ Performed Inventory analysis regularly, helped with ordering and

rhalntalning accurate, appropriate stock levels. Took over organization
of backstock;.

❖ .Built repeat customers.

PREMIUM RETAIL SERVICES, NH, .VA " . 03/13 - 06/15, 2/19-04/19
Retail Merchandising and-Auditing, Team Lead -
❖  Performed assigned tasks as a yeneter Including merchandising,

auditing, and maintenance for companies that contracted with
Premium. Supervised teams on large projects.

❖ • Built displays and set planograms and checked them for accuracy..
❖  Stocked product and maintained displays and product flow.
»:»- Reported results back to company electronically. ,

FORK AND TABLE RESTAURANT, ME 07/16 - 09/16
Waitress/Administrative Assistant.
❖ . Fulfilled all duties.of waitress in fine dining bistro, including

communicating with the guests, bartender, and kitchen
staff/management to ensure a positive dining experience.

❖ Built repeat customers (brand new restaurant) and an online review
. presence.

Performed inventory, needs assessment^ and troubleshooting.
❖ Helped train new servers and hostesses.

BRIDGES PREPARAT9RY SCHOOL, SC 01/16 - 05/16
InterimSpanishxTeacher K-8

Taught.Spariish and Hispanic cultures to children In grades K^S
(nearly 450 students.)

❖ Designed curriculum.
❖. Performed duties as needed.

❖ Communicated with parents about children's performance.

SAU 4, NEWFOUND REG. SCHOOL DISTRICT, NH 11/06 - 06/14
Substitute Teacher, including long-term work
❖ Conducted the classroom as if the teacher were not absent.



■  ..'-^po^slgn EnveJo^^^^ '-.V' / V V^'" ';" . .'■V. . ' '• ■_,?■ "> -V'.,'-' '
■  :'<(:- , ' V^V'fV ■' tp'lpwe^l.es^ that were-pjovided^^^ lessbh;plans -V/ V,•  ̂ ' ^. ■ -.'anH ^"arrloH ^ham rt i if lr% t*K"a aOanf "iSf' arS'«ii->r\lir>naH 'Qp 6Xt0nb€id ' ' ' '

; ■ ■) • absence..

MSAb 71, KENNEBfUNK SCHOOL DISTRICt/ ME 08/03 ^ 03/06
Spanish Teacher . • '•

'in'.
-  '.grades 9,thrbugh IZ.- v, . \

• Perf6^med•:duties•^s..peeded/:;^r^ -r:',,■, ••••:• '
rents" abbutxtiiidfen'spefforr^ ^
"sJah^l cbrTimuriides-prpractice g

,  ' " Gg'rnmuriicated.witK.parents a^^^ r: ,. . . .

'  i SOUTH PdRTI^ND SCHOOL ptSTRltt'ME
,  Spanish Teache/ ' "

•OS/bp - 06/03 :

,  . Performed duties as heeded.- ' ' ■ .
.  ̂'r^ ^ Cdmmunicated with-parerits about' chi|drep's.performance.

HONORS . . ; Graduated,Ci>/ri Laude. - Awarded,rnerit'schoiarships frorri; School of
•  v-\ Hofel/Restauraht i^an "E^a Sigma D"el^a--Natlonai HospTtallty

, Honor.Society. High School--Natlonai Honor Society and "Spanish Honor
■  Society. . Achieved 5 of 5,oh Spanishy\p test. , . .

■/ '\-:-4.rAGTlViTlES .; /-- 'Freshmah"-5e^ ■
,Big.'Brot:h^^®ggister:^;i993'-:95^^^ Gpdspeii, " v

' • --sumrherVot;^994.^■Leader•of^Civli RiqhtsVGrouD atMSAD^lT^^ • .
..egiohaj^C^ambef of Gom

•  • ■ .. • f .Lakes} Region Assoc.>. H"el:^r6n;G^ -Planning epmrny>;-. -. ;
'  . i Lakes'PegiqhAssdcV,'NK Prbfessiohai '^ssp^^

.  ■";Ihnkeepersyinterpabonai;:Vplunteer Tutor at,^^^^^^^^ :} "
dS I I ^ jniu r\rsr\/^lr\r^ \ Ai i 111

' Volunteer,UsH.er at New'HampsWre;*Music,Eestiyal-2D1.9;...'Ypluri^ .
Rundiett pliddie School .October 2p23-pfeseht. }

.1'- ■ ; :• X



Refugee Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

Contractor Name

Key. Personnel

i'i^nnudi^Saraj7J^^^^ .
!(d'2imos)r;iHu

rSaiVyji^'mljjuntlBa^
febmYtiiisVCdhSSt'^

Director of Workforce Solutions
h'' ... '■ ' . ■.

Jason Matthewrs $73,944..00 ,$ . 2,703.40

Education/ ESOL Program.
Manager . • ^ .

Shirin Ash9ury. $64,8I4'.29 $  1,646.32

Employment ' Proaram Manaoer Samer Salman $67,639.00 $  4.973.28 .
Resettlement Navigator - • ' ■ •
Erhpioyrhent Coordinator •

'Juliet Pniden $51321.57 . $  .19,434.25 .

Resettlement Navigator Tahmina Azada $42,238.00 • $  20,124.00 '

Business Manager/ Ex Administrative .
Assistant, . '

.Humayun Sabari $68432.00 $  1,711.84

■" .

i7Zi"/25-^/3.072-57 T.f
LnIS . -V 'ubS: ■ .• ■' rul

|i^iTnuaI|SaIar^^^
|(il'2Sn"6's)ii:Psr' 1 ijfromttli istConfra'ctl^i'

Director of Workforce Solutions - Jason Matthews $73,944.00 . - $  1,378.65

Education / ESpL Program ' '
Mariager," •'-.•v-' yo-

. Shlrih Ashqury $64,814.29 - $  839.54

Eniployment Program Manager' Samer Salman $67,639,00 $  2,536.56

Resettlement Navigator-
Employment Coordinator' ' ' • ;

Juliet Pnaden $51321.57' $. 9,909.90

• Resettlement Navigator Tahmina Azada $42,238.00. $  10,264.80

Busjness Manager/ Ex Administrative
Assistant

Humayun Sabari $68432.00 $. 873.08
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Subject: Wilson Fish TANF CoUaboration SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-02
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857.

1.3 Contractor Name

International Institute of New England, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

1850 Elm Street Suite 6

Manchester, NH 03104

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(617)695-9990

1.6 Account Number

TED

.1.7 Completion Date

9/30/2025

1.8 Price Limitation

$160,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 StateAgencyTelephoneNumber

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
DocuSlgne<rby:

*•' FC9B47C0F978428,.. >•

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeffrey Thielman

President and CEO

1.13 State Agency Signature
^^—rSigned by;

fcul'UA- P/i?/2025
V  4FF7n7<lfl7flWA9

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Reuben-Hampton

Director, Office of Health Equity

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Adminiistration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director; On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
y—DocoSlgn«d by:

By. On: 1/16/2025
*•' 748734644e4'l460...

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sal^of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the'Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 if the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by.the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have.no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor, for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or exeeutive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5:3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by NiH. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services; the
Contractor .shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which .impose any obligation or duty upon ..the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.'
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and.will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration' or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4 Jt
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

, 8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor liotice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set oft against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the.event.of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent' nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omisswtrcof the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State., This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2^000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificale(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration''date of each
insurance policy. The certiflcate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in. writing signed by the
parties hereto and only, afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of .Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. Coritractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties, may extend the Agreement for up to one (1)
additional year from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12,-Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractuaf conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall,
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the. State of any inadequate

■  subcontractor performance.

SS-2025-OHE-05-W1LSO-02

International Institute of New England, Inc.
7,14.23

A-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work \

1.1. The Contractor must provide enhanced case management and employment
services in this agreement to Office of Refugee Resettlement {ORR)-eligible
families in New Hampshire who:

1.1.1.. Are within the first 36 months of arrival into the United States;

1.1.2. Are a two (2)-parent family (for the purpose of this Agreement
defined as "otherwise Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF)-eligible families"); and ;

1.1.3. Have a child under age 18 years old.

1.2. The Contractor must provide case management and customized economic
support services that support families' access to resources to obtain life skills
needed to become self-sufficient and achieve sustained social and economic

wellbeing, including, but not limited to:

1.2.1. Strengths-based assessments and personal wellness plans directed
toward achieving self-sufficiency goals.

1.2.2. Referrals to services for support and barrier removal.

1.2.3. Goal deWlopment, coaching and other in-person and tele
conference case management services that increase household
efficacy, persistence and success.

1.2.4. Monitoring of progress toward goal achievement.

1.2.5. Coaching sessions that are scheduled and conducted two (2) times
-per month.

1.3. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to develop a culturally
and linguistically integrated program model. The Contractor must:

1.3.1. Develop partnerships with state and local, agencies to share
culturally and linguistically appropriate services (CLAS) best
practices; and

1.3.2. Develop a minimum often (10) new employer relationships and three
(3) career pathways for advancement, or as othenwise .determined
by the Department, in coordination with NH state workforce
development agencies and their partners and providers. The
Contractor must:

1.3.2.1. Conduct ongoing labor trend research to identify in
demand employment opportunities to focus outreach
efforts to potential employers;

1.3.2.2. Establish new employer contacts, annually,

SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-02 B-2.1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

EXHIBIT B

outreach and education which must include making
direct phone calls and coordinating meetings with
perspective employers;

1.3.2.3. Maintain ongoing relationships with existing
employers;

1.3.2.4. Develop partnerships with career pathway training
institutes that may include, but are not limited to
schools, Colleges and universities; and vocational
training organizations/agencies

1.3.2.5. Convene individual and/or group information sessions
between potential employers and target population

.which include site visits and informational sessions

conducted at the employer's facility or Contractor's
site,.

1.4. The Contractor must recruit, screen, enroll and maintain a minimum often (10)
"otherwise TANF-eligible families" during the life of the contract, in services that
include, but are not limited to, goal development, coaching and other wrap
around services that combine daily responsibilities with employment goals to
increase self-sufficiency. The Contractor must:

1.4.1. Utilize evidence-based assessment tools, approved by the
Department, to prepare service plans for all participants to reach
employment goals and self-sufficiency;

1.4.2. Schedule and conduct two (2) coaching sessions per month, with all
participants;

1.4.3. Refer participants to appropriate supportive services including, but not
limited to:

1.4.3.1. English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL)
services.

1.4.3.2. Vocational ESOL classes.

1.4.3.3. Mental health services.;

1.4.3.4. Social services.

1.4.3.5. Legalservices.

1.4.3.6. Digital Literacy Training

1.4.4. Facilitate participant career exploration; pursuit of specific careers;
and advancement within chosen career paths by:

1.4.4.1. Conducting a minimum of one (1) career assessment
and exploration meeting with all participants. /—os

hr .
SS-2025-OHE-05-W1LSO-02 B-2.1 ' Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

EXHIBIT B

1.4.4.2. Developing career development plans with
participants;

1.4.4.3. Providing facilitation and guidance on the various
pathways to career advancement including transitions
to postsecondary education and or vocational training,
as applicable through referrals, opportunity
identification and informal connections ;

1.4.4.4. Providing guidance on pursing specific careers and
advancement within chosen career paths; and

1:4.4.5. Providing ongoing employment services to participants
including, but not limited to:

1.4.4.5.1. ^American workplace orientation including
information on completing required . Internal
Revenue .Service tax payer forms, federal
employment law ' workplace culture and
employer benefits

1.4.4.5.2. Resume writing assistance.

1.4.4.5.3. Interviewing skills training.

1.4.4.5.4. Transportation assistance including, but not
limited to, transport to job training opportunities,
connecting with potential employers and to job
interviews.

1.4.5. Schedule and facilitate job interviews, and

1.4.6. Develop and deliver in-person and tele-conference job readiness
trainings.

1.5. The Contractor must provide financial guidance to strengthen families'
knowledge of budgeting, savings, credit management loans, and debt by:

1.5.1. Conducting financial literacy assessments for each family;

1.5.2. Delivering financial literacy trainings at times and in venues
convenient to families;

1.5.3. Establishing relationships through outreach to build partnerships with
local financial institutions in order to promote financial independence;
and

1.5.4. Developing short and long-term financial plans with each adult
participant.

1.6. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

jt
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

EXHIBIT B

1.7. Reporting

1.7.1. The Contractor must submit reports for reporting periods October 1 -
March 31 and April 1 - September 30 no later than 30 days after the

■end of each reporting period, to ensure progress toward prograrri
deliverables, which include, but are not limited to:

1.7.1.1. Total number of enrollments age eighteen or older.

1.7.1.2. Number of Case management participants.

1.7.1.3. Number of job placements, full-time (FT)and part-time (PT).
1.7.1.4. Number of adults participating in job readiness.

1.7.1.5. Number of adults participating-in English language training.

1.7.1.6. Number adults participating in digital literacy training.

1.7.1.7. Number adults participating in financial literacy training.

1.7.1.8. Number of adults participants on TANF.

1.7.1.9. Number of adults participants on Refugee Cash Assistance.

1.7.1.10. Number of employment services participants.

1.7.1.11. Average hourly wage (FT and PT).

1.7.1.12. Qualitative information in narrative form such as:

1.7.1.13.1. Individual goals established and achieved;

1.7.1.13.2. Community partnerships formed; and

1.7.1.13.3. Progress of vocational training paths.
1.8.1. The Contractor must enroll a minimum often (10) eligible families during

the contract period

1.8.2. The Contractor must share programmatic reports and case notes with
the Department for review to ensure 100% of participants receive:

1.8.1.1. Assessment and service plan.

1.8.1.2. Job readiness services.

1.8.3.1. Refer participants to English for Speakers of Other
Languages (ESOL) services.

1.8.1.4. Digital literacy training.

1.8.1.5. Financial literacy training.

1.8.1.6. Employment services

1.8.4. The Contractor shall achieve 80% successful participant job placement
^  OS

1.8.5. The Contractor must establish a minimum of ten (10) new ern0f{>yer
SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-02 " B-2.1 Contractor Initials ^
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EXHIBIT B

.  relationships and three (3) career pathways.for advancement

1.9. Background Checks

1.9.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said Individual has
undergone:
1.9.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and

has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under this
Agreement:

1.9:1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Adult and Aging
Services (BAAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161 -F:49, with
results indicating no evidence, of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement; and

1.9.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-
C:35, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could
endanger individuals served under this Agreement.

1.10. Confidential Data

1.10.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the

■Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below.

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request.

1.11. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.11.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) , or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1.11.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSa02 B-2.1 Conlractor Initials
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1.11.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.11.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system:

1.11.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked;
and

I

1.11.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.11.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
.  * either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the

collection, processing or storage of Pll.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit:

3.2.1.1. A detailed description of the language assistance
services, within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of the
Agreement, to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or services to individuals with limited
English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have
hearing loss; individuals who are blind or havtf^low

1 It
SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-02 B-2.1 Contractor tnilials
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vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.2.1.2. A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date
of the Agreement and annually thereafter, that all
personnel involved the provision of services to
individuals under.this Agreement have completed,
within the last ;12 months, the Contractor Required
Training Video on Civil Rights-related Provisions in
DHHS Procurement Processes, which is accessible on
the Department's website
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-
right-compliance-dhhs-vendors); and

3.2.1.3. The Department's Federal. Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of
the Agreement. The Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist must have been completed within the last 12
months and is accessible on the Department's website
(https://w\ww.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-
right-compliance-dhhs-vendors).

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use^

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to reports,
protocols, guidelines, brochures, posters, and resource directories.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities; Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,county and municipal authorities and with any direction of an^^lic

SS-2025-OHE-05-WILSO-02 B-2.1 Contractor Initials
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Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and,
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.5.1. The Contractor must make eligibility determinations in accordance
with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures:

3.5.2. The Contractor must ensure all applicants are permitted to fill out an
application form and must notify'each applicant of their right to request
a fair hearing in accordance with New Hampshire RSA 126-A:5 and
Department regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited^to; ^

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

I  4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
. procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time- cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment fpp-isuch

jt
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services.

4.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Departrhent, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon further review, the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by
the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the right, at its
discretion, to, deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

jt
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1! 100% Federal funds, from Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration New
Hampshire Equiped to Thrive, as awarded on August 30, 2024, by the
DHHS- Administration for Children and Fmailes of ALN 93.583, FAIN

90RW0069.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipienl, based on criteria specified in-2 CFR
200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The Indirect Cost Rate for this Agreement in the attached Budget
Sheets.

3. Payment -shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual allowable
expenditures incurred under this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice to the Department no later than the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month in which the
services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a format as provided by or othenwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment in accordance with Section 3 above.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation with each invoice, including, but not
limited to, proof of expenditures, itemized receipts for purchases, lime
sheets, and payroll records with position or staff detail, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature and is emailed to
Laura.R.Mcalashan@dhhs.nh.aov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30)
calendar days only upon receipt and approval of the submitted invoice and
required supporting documentation.

jf
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6. The final invoice and any required supporting documentation shall be due to
the Department no later than forty (40) calendar days after ,the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting direct and indirect cost amounts within the price limitation
between budget class lines, as well as adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, may be made by written agreement of
both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council,
if needed and justified.

8. Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor is subject to a Single Audit
pursuant to 2 CFR 200.501 Audit Requirements.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. ■ If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. The Contractor, regardless of the funding source and/or whether
Conditions A, B, or C exist, may be required to submit annual financial
audits performed by an independent CPA upon request by the
Department.

>  DS

Jt
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8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception, within sixty (60) days.

9. If applicable, the Contractor must request disposition instructions from the
Department for any equipment, as defined In 2 CFR 200.313, purchased
using funds provided under this Agreement, including information
technology systems.

jt
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Exhibit C-1. Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: International Institute of New England. Inc;

Budget Request for: Wilson Fish TANF Collaboration

'  Budget Period: ,Upon G&C Approval-9/30/25

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 30.50%

Line Item

Program Cost •
Funded by DHHS -

SPY 25 (Upon G&C

Approval-6/30/2S)

Program Cost - Funded

by DHHS-SFY 26

(7/01/25-9/30/25)

1. Salary &Waqes $64,244 $38,546

2. Fringe Benefits $14,776 $8,866

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per.2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Chromebooks and headphones $2,625 $1,575
5.(d) Supplies - Computers $1,219 $731
5.(e) Supplies - Phones $0 $0
6. Travel $126 $75
7. Interpretation $0 $0

8. (a)Occupancv $0 $0
8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $82,989 $49,793

Total Indirect Costs $17,011 , $10,207

Subtotals $100,000 $60,000

$160,000

•DS
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SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
• US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

, This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarrhent. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street *

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintairiing a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimina[j|lrug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sucfiqppyiction;

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date^ZZZZ^?^
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1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under '
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number{s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on.file that are not identified here.

vl 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials, ^ ^
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on l.obbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https;//omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This'certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.
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SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligiljility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
https://wvvw.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/part-513.
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. . Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS .

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding.Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

The Contractor will comply, and will require.any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200). '

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which •
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
-  financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
• discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;-

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal 'protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Ernployee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts. „

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.
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12. The Clean Water Act {33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters.

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firrns Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin; or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. . .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for iripatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute

.  the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE ^ ̂

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than 330,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) rhust report the following information for any

^ sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified'in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Seivices and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
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FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

MTMCML95GNC9
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15.U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

1/15/2025

Date:

Contractor Name: international institute of New England

•DocuSlgned by:DocuSlgned by:

Name:''^^^^^rey Thielman
Title: President and CEO

>  DS
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A. Definitions
/

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information." Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as ̂all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information. • „ '

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for

the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc..

>

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. . ' .

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed

j  or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Contractor Initials

Jt

V5. Last update 10/09/18 1/15/202 5
Page 2 of 9 Date



Docusign Envelope ID: 565AC35C-9681-44C6-A9E3-5A422D9F9DCF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

DHHS Information Security Requirements

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

*

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.,

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable, in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S..and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.
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8. Open Wireless- Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. VVireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever forrn it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will hot store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location'requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will, obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Harripshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has

, been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard, copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

-OS
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to isign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alterniate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the sun/ey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the

. Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or

■  suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
,  connect to the State of New Hampshire networi^.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

jr
Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses.of persons authorized to receive such
information..

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards,' as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

5. Determine vi^hether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security.Officer;.

DHHSInformationSecufityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Contractor Initials
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity," the Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties."

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,

Subtitle D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2,42 CFR Part
2. (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.
'  . ' I •

(1) Definitions

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach," "Designated Record Set." "Data Aggregation," Designated Record
Set," "Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act." "Individual," "Privacy Rule,"
"Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

■ c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
Information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient
Identifying Information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) . Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including byt-rt©t

Exhibit F
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect.any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:

I. For the proper management and administration of the BusinessAssociate;

II. As required bylaw, according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health Information.

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected priv^torpnvaey-Eor

ntExhibit F
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The.nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and^
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to

Exhibit F . UI
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. In the event any individual requests access-to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all

. PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate In connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platform.

VI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity '

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website;

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaa/publications.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure.of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

a. In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The

■ Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous
DS

uia. Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. All laws and regulations
Exhibit F
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b. Change in law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity In the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such inyalidlty shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f. Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and'
(3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Slijned by:

^  .<rcw7<c7gig4Aa..j
Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

International institute of New Engl

FC8C»60gC784a<

and

Name of the Contractor

'DocuSigntd by:Docusigntd by:

Reuben Hampton Jeffrey Thielman

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative {

Director, office of Health Equity President and CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

1/15/2025 1/15/2025

Date Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Secrclar>' of State of the Stale of New llampshirc. do hereby certify that INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE

OF NEW ENGLAND, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

Fcbruar>' 12, 2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctar)' of State's office have been received and

is in good standing as- far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739194

Certificate Number: 0006772891

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of September A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctarj' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Sam Epee-Bounva hereby certify
that: (Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of International Institute of New England, Inc .
(Corporation/LLC Name).

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1 , 2015 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeffrev Thielman. President and CEO .(may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of International Institute of New England. Inc to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State (Name of Corporation/. LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

^  ̂ 1/28/2025 I 1:54 PM PST ' r ^ ^
Dated:

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Sam Epee-Bounya
Title: Board Secretary (

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pa9* 1 of 1

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

01/16/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate dods not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement($). i

PRODUCER

Willis Towsrs Nstson Worthssst, Inc.

c/o 26 Csntury Blvd

P.O. Box 30S191

Wsahvills, TN 372305191 USA

NAME*^^ WTW Certificate Center
TaJc.'no.FxiI; 1-B''''-945-7378 1-888-467-2378
e^MAlU ...
ADDRFRSr certificatesiwtwco.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Con^any. 18058

INSURED

Intsrnstional InstituCs of Nsw Englsnd, Inc.

2 Bolyston Stssst

3rd Floor

Boston, KA 02116

INSURERB Technology Insurance Cong>any Inc 42376

INSURER C

INSURER 0 •

INSURER E

INSURER F .

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: W37482179 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSD
SUBH

YYVD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

/MM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

)E [ X 1 OCCUR

Y PHPR2684307 05/05/2024 05/05/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES /Ea oeairmnftal $  100,000

MEO EXP (Any one person) s  5,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $  1,000,000

GE

X

rL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 1 I 1 LOG
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $  3,000,000

PRODUCTS • CX>MP/OP AGG $  3,000,000

s

AU1OMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa aorJdnni) s

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Per acddentl s

i

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH CXXURRENCE i

AGGREGATE s

DEO 1 RETENTION S s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANYPROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTtVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yea, deat^ba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A TWC4548880 01/01/2025 01/01/2026

V 1 PER 1 OTH-
^ 1 STATUTE 1 ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT J  1,000,000

E,L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE J  1,000,000

E,L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT J  1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Rsmarfcs Schsduli, may ba attachad If mora tpaca is raquirad)

Part One of the Workers Con^ policy applies to the States of: Connecticut, Florida, Massachusetts, Maine, New

Haopshire, New Jersey, New York, Rhode Island £ Virginia.

State of New Hangishire is included as an Additional Insured as respects to General Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of New Kaa^ahire

Department of Health £ Human Services

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
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independent Auditor's Report

' To the Board of Directors of
International Institute of New England, Inc.:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc (a
Massachusetts nonprofit corporation) {the Institute), which comprise the statements of'financial
position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities and changes in net
assets, cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, Inc. as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Institute and to meet our other)ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, effective October 1, 2022, the Institute has changed
its, method of accounting for leases due to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board's
(FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), using the optional transition
method. Our opinion,is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the Institute's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Page 1
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstaternent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgmeht and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
which raise substantial doubt about the Institute's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control reliated
matters that we identified during the audit.

My.

Boston, Massachusetts
February 28, 2024

Page lA
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Assets 2023 2022

Current^Assets:

Cash, . S 632,175 $ - 5,066,794
Current portion of government contracts and

contributions receivable 4,216,844 1,671,722

Accounts receivable 79,289 66,682

Prepaid expenses and other 308,130 225,128

Total current assets 5,236,438 7,030,326

Investments 11,403,418 7,989,204

Contributions Receivable, net 635,794 660,111

Property and Equipment, net 1,386,308 1,540,761

Right-of-Use Assets - Operating 2,190,256

Security Deposits 91,657 92,984

Total assets $ 20,943,871 $ 17,313,386

Liabilities and Net Assets ^

Current Liabilities:

Current portion of operating lease liabilities S 698,298 $
Accounts payable 508,696 201,095

Accrued expenses 630,640 475,851

Conditional advances 1,106,281 2,902,752

Current portion of lease incentive ^ 110,782

Total current liabilities 2,943,915 3,690,480

Operating Lease Liabilities, net of current portion 1,968,540

Deferred Rent and Lease Incentive, net of current portion - 502,404

Total liabilities 4,912,455 4,192,884

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Operating ' 13,060,586 9,902,624
Property and equipment 909,726 1,116,107

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

13,970,312 11,018,731

2,061,104 2,101,771

16,031,416 13,120,502

$ 20,943,871 $ 17,313,386

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page.2
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Revenues:

Government contracts

Grants and contributions

Program service fees and contracted services

Donated goods and services

Other revenue

Net assets released from time restrictions

Net assets released from purpose restrictions

Total revenues

Expenses:

Program services

General and administrative

Fundraising

Total expenses

Changes in net assets from operations

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):

Investment return

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
• Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Changes in net assets

Net Assets:

Beginning of year

End of year

Without With Without With

Donor Donor Donor Donor-

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ 16,798,874 $ $ 16,798,874 $  9,807,401 $ $  9,807,401
4,880,244 817,098 5,697,342 4,968,989 2,292,154 7,261,143
617,545

- 617,545 398,961 - 398,961
379,202

- 379,202 731,498 - 731,498
12,910

- 12,910 6,111 - 6,111
425,000 (425,000) - - .

432,765 (432,765)
- 833,878 (833,878) -

23,546,540 (40,667) 23,505,873 16,746,838 1,458,276 18,205,114

16,185,833 16,185,833 10,994,016 10,994,016
3,422,692 - 3,422,692 2,165,323 - 2,165,323
2,009,426 - 2,009,426 1,769,692 - 1,769,692

21,617,951
- 21,617,951 14,929,031 . 14,929,031

1,928,589 (40,667) 1,887,922 1,817,807 1,458,276 3,276,083

1,070,861 1,070,861 (1,206,586) (1,206,586)
(47,869) - (47,869) - - -

1,022,992
- 1,022,992 (1,206,586) - (1,206,586)

2,951,581 (40,667) 2,910,914 611,221 1,458,276 2,069,497

11,018,731 2,101,771 13,120,502 10,407,510 643,495 11,051,005

$ 13,970,312 $ 2,061,104 $ 16,031,416 S 11,018,731 $ 2,101,771 $ 13,120,502

companying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 3
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Changes in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Investment return

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation •

Non-cash lease expense

Amortization of deferred rent and lease incentive

Donated stock

Bad debt

Change in discount on contributions receivable

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Government contracts and contributions receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other

Security deposits

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Conditional advances

Deferred rent

<

^ Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities;

Proceeds fro.m sale of investments ,

Acquisition of property and equipment
Investment purchases

Net cash used in investing activities

Net Change In Cash
i  . .

Cash:

Beginning of year

End of year
\

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions:

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments '

Property and equipment financed by accounts payable

2023 2022

$  2,910,914 $ 2,069,497

(1,070,861) 1,206,586

47,869 -

328,530 430,664

(171,283) -

- .  (110,782)
(99,509) (2,765)

2,174 93,351

(7,263) 49,889

(2,515,716) (1,173,828)
(12,607) (17,369)
(83,002) (147,966)

1,327 .  -

256,146 138,675

154,789 207,685

(1,796,471) 2,847,555

- (19,805)

(2,054,963) 5,571,387

9,728,231 ■  440,000

(135,812) (210,775)

(11,972,075) (1,413,913)

(2,379,656) (1,184,688)

(4,434,619) 4,386,699

5,066,794 680,095

$■ ■ 632,175 $ 5,066,794

$ 770,506 $ (1,394,382)

$ 73,142 $  21,687

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 4
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended September 30,2023

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2022)

2023 2022

General

' and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundraising Total Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries S  7,734,339 S 1,398,818 S 1,028,651 S 10,161,808 S  6,344,439
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 1,494,966 257,324 215,208 1,967,498 1,101,556

Purchased and contracted services 335,763 - - 335,763 431,087

Donated services 279,961 - 22,799 302,760 472,565

Staff training 8,818 44,830 1,336 ■ 54,984 28,574

Total personnel and related • 9,853,847 1,700,972 1,267,994 12,822,813 8,378,221

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 521,346 233,065 71,231 825,642 625,900

Depreciation 150,417 107,588 - 258,005 328,749

Total occupancy 671,763 340,653 71,231 1,083,647 954,549

Other:

Client assistance 4,657,484 - 4,657,484 3,612,976

Professional fees 499,503 738,497 326,038 1,564,038 747,759

Supplies and materials — 158,439 226,011 16,875 401,325 200,114

Dues and subscriptions 56,893 135,512 81,659 274,064 181,430

Travel, meetings and conferences 127,915 122,299 15,845 266,059 88,738

Special events - - 203,087 203,087 175,352

Donated goods 76,442 . 76,442 258,933

Depreciation 4i;il6 29,409 70,525 101,915

Insurance 1,714 65,748 - 67,462 55,494

Storage 8,741 25,153 709 34,603 25,286

Printing 15,484 564 14,153 30,201 21,379

Advertising 250 14,176 7,527 21,953 1,199

Miscellaneous 6,382 12,921 2,240 21,543 14,122

Postage 9,860 8,603 ,2,068 20,531 18,113

Bad debt - 2,174 - 2,174 93,351

Total other 5,660,223

s

1,381,067 670,201 7,711,491 5,596,161

Total expenses . $ 16,185,833 $ 3,422,692 $ 2,009,426 S 21,617,951 $ 14,929,031

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 5
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND/INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

General

and

Program Adminis

■- Services trative Fund raising Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries $  4,489,338 S  895,615 $  959,486 $  6,344,439
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 722,749 181,369 197,438 1,101,556
Purchased and contracted services 405,001 20,150 5,936 431,087
Donated services 416,417 2,383 53,765 472,565
Staff training 9,519 14,117 4,938 28,574

Total personnel and related 6,043,024 1,113,634 1,221,563 8,378,221

Occupancy:
Rent and utilities 498,545 65,127 62,228 625,900
Depreciation .  191,661 '  137,088 - 328,749

Total occupancy 690,206 202,215 62,228 ■ 954,649

Other:

Client assistance 3,612,976 - - 3,612,976
Professional fees 175,264 371,672 200,823 747,759
Supplies and materials 57,797 133,531 8,786 200,114
Dues and subscriptions 29,220 83,723 68,487 181,430
Travel, meetings and conferences 41,992 40,029 6,717 88,738
Special events - - 175,352 175,352
Donated goods . 258,933 -

- 258,933
Depreciation 59,416 42,499 101,915
Insurance 1,583 53,911 - 55,494
Storage 10,643 ■  14,643 - 25,286
Printing 2,646 703 18,030 21,379
Advertising 420 779 1,199
Miscellaneous 1,352 12,327 443 14,122
Postage 8,544 3,085 6,484 18,113
Bad debt

- ■93,351 - 93,351

Total other 4,260,786 849,474 485,901 5,596,161

Total expenses $ 10,994,016 , S 2,165,323 $ 1,769,692 S 14,929,031

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 6
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of New. England, Inc. {the Institute) is a nonprofit, organization that
provides assistance to the immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2023 and 2022, there were approximately 10,000 and 4,200
unduplicated people, from approximately seventy and sixty-eight countries that benefited from
the Institute's services, gaining the knowledge and skills necessary for their integration into
American life. The Institute's services include English and literacy classes, citizenship education,
job training and placement, legal aid and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal Income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. The Institute prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842),
which provides guidance on the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
leases. The new standard requires lessees to report substantially all leases on the statement of
financial position as right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities. The Institute adopted Topic
842 using the optional transition method provided in ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted
Improvements. Under this transition method, financial information related to years prior to
adoption was as originally reported under Topic 840. The Institute elected the package of
practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard which
allows the Institute to skip the reassessment of whether the contract is or contains a lease, the
treatment of initial direct costs and lease classification.

The adoption did not have a material impact-on the Institute's statement of activities and
changes in net assets. The most significant impact was the recognition of ROU assets and lease
liabilities for the Institute's operating leases. As part of the adoption, the Institute also modified
its control procedures and processes, none of which materially affected the internal control over
financial reporting. . , ■

I

The following table summarizes the cumulative effect of the changes to the statement of
financial position line items affected by adopting Topic 842 as of October 1, 2022:

As Previously Effect of
Statement of Financial Position Reported Adoption As Adjusted

ROU asset-operating . $ . $ 2,228,533 $ 2,228,533
Operating lease liabilities $ " - $ 2,841,719 $ 2,841,719
Deferred rent and lease incentive $613,186 $ (613,186) $

Page 7
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash

For the purpose of"the statements of cash flows, management considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash, except those funds that
are included in the Institute's investments (see Note 4).

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation. Property and equipment having a value of $5,000 or more are capitalized and are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of
lease or 10 years

Furniture and equipment 3-10 years

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on management's analysis of specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. It is the Institute's
policy to charge-off uncollectible government contracts and contributions receivable when
management determines the receivable will not be collected. No allowance for doubtful
accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2023 or 2022.

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in.valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Institute.
Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
financial Instrument, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the financial instrument developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use In
pricing the asset developed based on the best information available.

Page 8
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable, and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

Investments

\

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. If an investment is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists,-the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair value. Reported fair values of shares in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
Institute's interest in two limited liability partnerships is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30, 2023, and 2022, the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

The Institute also received $99,509 and $2,765 of donated stock during the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Donated stock is recorded at the fair value at the
time of donation and maintained as part of the investment portfolio (see Note 4).

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets. Non-operating revenue (expense) includes investment and
capital-related activity.

Revenue Recognition

Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions

In accordance with ASC Subtopic 958-605, Revenue Recognition, the Institute must determine
whether a contribution (or a promise) is conditional or unconditional for transactions deemed to
be a contribution. A contribution is considered to be a conditional contribution if an agreement
includes a barrier that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets or a right of
release of a promise to transfer assets exists (see Note 8). Indicators of a barrier include a
measurable performance-related barrier or other measurable barriers, a stipulation that limits
discretion by the recipient on the conduct of an activity, and stipulations that are related to the
purpose of the agreement. Topic 958 prescribes that the Institute should not consider
probability of compliance with the barrier when determining if such awards are conditional and
should be reported as conditional grant advance liabilities until such conditions are met. Assets
received before the barrier is overcome are recorded as conditional advances.

Page 9
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions (Continued)

The Institute's primary sources of revenue are derived from cost-reimbursable and unit-rate
Federal and state contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. These contracts are
considered nonreciprocal transactions because the general public receives the benefit as the
result of the assets transferred. Amounts are recognized as revenue when the Institute has
incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions.

Grants and contributions and United Way allocations are recorded as revenue and net assets
without donor restrictions when unconditionally committed. Grants andrcontributions with
donor restrictions are recorded as revenues and net assets with donor restrictions when
unconditionally received or pledged. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in statements of activities and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions as costs are incurred, time or program restrictioTis
have lapsed, or capital improvements have been placed into service.

Special events revenue, included in grants and contributions in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets, is from the Institute's ability to host fundratsing events.
Special event income consists of both contributions and sales. The contribution portion of the
special event income is recognized as revenue when unconditionally committed or received in
accordance with Topic 958. Special event contributions are considered donor restricted if the
proceeds of the event are restricted for specific purposes or time periods at the time of the
event. (

The sales portion of the special event income is recognized in accordance with Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and is derived from various components, including ticket
sales from fundraising events held in which the transaction price is determined annually.
Registration fees for these events are set by the Institute and have not been allocated as the
events are each considered to be separate performance obligations. The fee portion for these
events is immaterial and has not been recognized separately from the contribution portion.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Topic 606

The Institute generally measures revenue from exchange transactions based on the amount of
consideration the Institute expects to be entitled for the transfer of goods or services to a
customer, then recognizes this revenue when or as the Institute satisfies its performance
obligations under a contract.

The Institute recognized program service fees for legal and translation services provided for
clients, in which the' clients either pay for the- services themselves or are sponsored by
corporations, depending on the service provided. Program service fees generally consist of a
single performance obligation to provide services, and agreements with clients do not contain
variable consideration. Accordingly, program service fees are recognized at a point In time,
which is also when the performance pbligation is satisfied. The transaction price is a fixed fee
based upon the service provided, which is established by management based on hourly rates
and expected number of hours to complete the service. (

Page 10
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Topic 606 (Continued)

Contracted services revenue consists of various training and education service programs
provided to Immigrants and refugees that span over several months based on the nature of the
program or course. There is a single performance obligation for all programs, v/hich consists of
the completion of the training and education program or course and related events. Revenue is
recognized ratably over the period of the program or course, and the transaction price Is based
on fixed quoted prices. The contract amount may vary based upon the number of participants
in the program and the rate per participant. Generally, a fixed-fee contract is signed by either
an indlvidual participant in the program or an organization sponsoring the individuals. The
transaction price is determined based upon hourly rates established by management and the
number of hours estimated to complete a contract.

Accounts receivable related to revenue from contracts with customers was $49,313 on October
1, 2021.

Other

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses.
Interest income Is recorded as earned and dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are recorded based on the average cost
method. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded based on changes in fair value. All other
revenue is recognized as earned.

RIght-of-Use Asset - Operating Leases and Operating Lease Liabilities

The Institute determines if an arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception of a
contract. A contract is determined to be a lease or contain a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of identified property, plant or equipment (an identified asset) in
exchange for consideration. The Institute determines such, assets are leased because the
Institute has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from and the right to
direct the use of the identified asset. Assets in which the supplier or lessor has the practical
ability and right to substitute alternative assets for the identified asset and would benefit
economically from the exercise of its right to substitute the asset are not considered to be or
contain a lease because the Institute determines it does not have the right to control and direct
the use of the identified asset. The Institute's lease agreements do not contain any material
residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

In evaluating its contracts, the Institute separately identifies lease and non-lease components,
such as common area and other maintenance costs, in calculating the ROU assets and lease
liabilities for its office space. The Institute has elected the practical expedient to not separate
lease and non-lease components and classifies the contract as a lease if consideration in the
contract allocated to the lease component is greater than the consideration allocated to the
non-lease component.

Leases result in the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the statements of financial
position. ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease
liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease, measured on
a discounted basis. The Institute determines lease classification as operating or finance at the
lease commencement date.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

RIght-of-Use Asset • Operating Leases and Operating Lease Liabilities (Continued)

• At lease inception, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term. The ROU asset equals the.lease liability adjusted for any initial direct costs,
prepaid or deferred rent, and lease incentives. The Institute uses the implicit rate when readily
determinable. As most leases do not provide an Implicit rate, to determine the present value of
lease payments, management uses the risk-free rate at lease commencement or date of
adoption.

In determining lease terms, lease agreements which Include options to extend the lease are
considered in the determination of the ROU asset and lease liability when it Is reasonably
certain that the Institute will exercise that option. Lease expense is generally recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Institute has elected not to record leases with an initial term of twelve months or less on
the statements of financial position. Lease expense on such leases is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program. Expenses
related directly to a program or supporting function are charged to that function, while all other
expenses are allocated based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to
each function.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated are salaries, payroll taxes and fringe benefits, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square
footage basis; and indirect other operating expenses, which are allocated based on
management's estimate of usage.

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when incurred and
are reflected as advertising in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

Donated Goods and Services

In-kind contributions are reflected as contributions at their fair value of the services and goods
received, at date of donation, and are reported as unrestricted support unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. The Institute is the recipient of
donated services and goods. All donated goods and services were unrestricted in fiscal years
2023 and 2022. These amounts have been reported as both donated services and goods In the
accompanying statements of activities and changes in net assets and statements of functional
expenses. The Institute recognizes the fair value of contributed services received if such
services: a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or b) require specialized skills that are
provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
contributed. Donated services are valued at the standard hourly rates charged for those
services. Donated goods are valued at the wholesale prices that would be received for selling
similar products.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

Donated services and goods consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

2023 2022

Donated services $ 302,760 $ 472,565
Donated goods 76.442 258.933

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
its goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

Income Taxes

The Institute accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertain tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements at September 30, 2023 or 2022. The Institute's information returns are subject to
examination by the Federal and state jurisdictions.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 28, 2024, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no events that met the criteria for recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements.

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions

and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute has grouped its net assets
without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating - represents funds available to carry on the operations of the Institute.

Property and equipment - reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute's
property and equipment and ROU assets - operating, net of related liabilities.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time periods. These contributions are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions: (Continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following at September 30:

2023 2022

Purpose restricted $ 937,010 $ 1,271,660
Time restricted 1.124.094 830.111

3. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering all eligible employees over the
age of twenty-one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within one of their
first two years of employment. Employee contributions are vested immediately into the plan
upon eligibility. The Institute made $143,087 and $95,213 of matching contributions to the plan
during the years ended September 30, 2023- and 2022, respectively, which are included in
payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are stated at fair value in the accompanying statements of financial position,
are as follows:

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds - $ 793,935 $ - $ - $ 793,935
Mutual funds:

Equities 6,093,663 - - 6,093,663
Fixed income 2.504.413 2.504.413

$ g,392,011 ^ ^ ^ L 9,392,011

Limited liability partnerships
(see page 15) 2.011.407

Total investments S 11.403.418

2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds $ 1,245,785 $ - $ - $ 1,245,785
Mutual funds:

Equities 4,634,759 - - 4,634,759
Fixed income 690,562 - - 690,562
Common stock 1.534 ' 1.534

6,572,640

Limited liability partnership
(see page 15) 1.416.564

Total investments
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

In accordance with ASU No. 2015-07, the Institute's Investments in two limited liability
partnerships are valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical
expedient and have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts
presented- in the tables on page 14 are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value
hierarchy to the amounts presented in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Investments are reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as long-term
assets based on management's intent with respect to the use of the Investments.

The Investments are not Insured and are subject to market fluctuation.

5. CONCENTRATIONS

The Institute maintains Its cash balances in one Massachusetts bank. The Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain
times during the year, cash balances exceeded the insured amounts. The Institute has
supplemental coverage at one bank, which Insures the portion of deposits in excess of the
FDIC's limit. The Institute has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management

-believes the Institute is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the Institute's operating revenue and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or government contracts, contributions and accounts
receivables as of and for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

Government

Contracts,
Operating Contributions

Revenue and and Accounts

Funder Support % Receivables %
2023 2022 2023 2022

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 34% 38% 29% 20%
U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants 29% 28% 32% 26%

6. FUNDING

The Institute receives a significant portion of its funding from government agencies. These
contracts are subject to audit by these government agencies. In the opinion of management,
the results of such audits, if any, will not have a material effect on the financial position of the
Institute as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, or on the changes in its net assets for the years
then ended.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

Nature of Leases

The Institute leases its main office space'ln Boston, Massachusetts under an agreement that
runs through July 2026. The lease Included an initial three-month rent-free period. Monthly
lease payments for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 were approximately $45,000 and $44,000,
respectively, and increase throughout the term of the lease. The lease agreement also includes
a tenant improvement allowance of $1,107,822 in the form of a reimbursement for construction
and related costs Incurred by the Institute for leasehold improvements.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Nature of Leases (Continued)

The Institute leases other program and administrative space under various operating lease
agreements. Monthly lease payments under these agreements range from $4,221 to $6 884
These leases expire at various dates through January 2033. The leases require the Institute to
maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate share of real estate taxes and
operating expenses.

The Institute also has printer and copier leases with monthly payments ranging from $192 to
$1,041. These leases expire at various dates through July 2026.

ASC Topic 840

Facility rent expense under all leases was approximately $572,000 for the year ended
September 30, 2022, which is included in rent and utilities in the accompanying fiscal year 2022
statement of functional expenses.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements are as follows:

2023 $ 768,815
2024 ^ 785,990

756,869 .
2026 622,109
2027 146,307
Thereafter 374.117

S 3.454.207

ASC Topic 842

.The following summarizes the line items In the accompanying statement of functional expenses,
which include the components of lease expense for the year ended September 30, 2023:

Operating lease costs included in rent and utilities $ 616,978
Operating lease costs included in supplies and materials 14'795
Variable lease costs included in rent and utilities 208,664
Short-term lease cost included in supplies and materials 27.720

Total operating lease expense^ $ '868.157

The maturities of lease liabilities as of September 30,2023, are as follows:

2025 ^
2026 619,201
?°27 139,222
2028 ^ , 139,792

/  Thereafter 477.391

Total future undiscounted lease payments 2,916,833
Less - present value discount (249*995)

Present value of lease liability S 2.666.838
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued)

ASC Topic 842 (Continued)

The weighted-average discount rate associated with operating leases for the year ended
September 30, 2023, is 3.89%. The Institute's weighted-average lease term is 4.81 years for the
year ended September 30, 2023.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, cash paid for amounts included in the measurement
of operating lease liabilities was $770,490 and there were $482,978 of ROU assets obtained in
exchange for lease liabilities.

As of September 30, 2023, there were no material leases that have been executed but not yet
commenced.

8. CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

During fiscal years 2023 and 2022, the Institute received grants and contributions (including
government contracts) that contained donor-imposed conditions that represent a barrier that
must be overcome, as well as a right of return of assets or release from obligations. The
Institute recognizes these grants and contributions, including government contracts, when
donor-imposed conditions are substantially met.

Conditional promises to give consist of the following at September 30:

9.

2023 2022

Incurring qualifying expenses $ 2,258,842 $ 3,887,800
Subject to measurable performance barriers 188.240 2.907.015

Total cqnditid^nal promises to give $ 6.794.815

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute's financial assets available within one year from the statements of financial
position date for general operating expenses are as follows at September 30:

-■

2023 2022

Cash $  632,175 $ 5,066,794
Current portion of government contracts and

contributions receivable 4,216,844 1,671,722
Accounts receivable 79.289 66.682

4,928,308 • 6,805,198
Less - donor restricted cash and contributions

.  receivable 937.010 1.241.660

Total financial assets and liquidity resources
available within one year

The Institute is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and government contracts. As part of the Institute's liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and
other obligations come due. The Institute has $9,392,011 and $6,572,640 of readily available
investments as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, should there be an-unanticipated
cash flow need.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2023 and 2022

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment consist of the following as of September 30:

2023 2022

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment

Less - accumulated depreciation

' $ 2,751,142
539.795

3,290,937
1.904.629

$ 2,586,602
642.631

3,229,233
1.688.472

Net property and equipment S 1.386.308 S 1.540.761

Depreciation expense was $328,530 and $430,664 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

11. GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Government contracts and contributions receivable are expected to be collected as follows at
September 30:

_2023 2022

Due in one year
Due in two years
Due in three years
Due in four years

Less - discount

Less - current portion

$ 4,216,844 $ 1,671,722
412,000 710,000
236,000 -

30.000 -

4,894,844 2,381,722
42,206 49,889

4.216.844 1.671.722

S  635.794 S ' 660.111

The discount recorded on amounts to be collected in future years was calculated using a rate of
4.60% and 3.71% for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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IINE Board •

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATION .

Name Professional Affiliation

Sam ̂ pee-Bounya* Managing Director, Wellington Management

Zoltan Csimma** Retired Chief Human Resources Officer and SVP at Genzyme

Richard Goiob CEO of Quantori

Scott FitzGerald Retired Managing Partner of Fragomen

Tuan Ha-Ngoc** Retired Pharma Executive

Belinda Juran Retired Partner, WilmerHale

Avak Kahvejian* Partner, Flagship Pioneering

Libby May
Senior Vice President, External Relations and Communications, Southern

New Hampshire University

Theo Melas-Kyriazi* , Executive Partner, Flagship Pioneering

AnnMerrifieid Retired President & CEO of PathoGenetix

A. Carolina San Martin Retired Managing Director of Wellington, Director of ESG •

Wade Rubinstein Founder and President of the Bike Connector

Jeffrey Thielman IINE President & CEO (Ex-Officio)

, Fereshtah Thornberg**.' State Street Bank Senior Vice President
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ANDREW CULLEN

EDUCATION

University .of Massachusetts, Lowell, MA (UMass Lowell)

"  Master of Arts • Peace & Conflict Studies, with Professional Option In Policy Analysis;

CPA: 3.87 5/2018

■  Treasurer, Peace and Conflict Studies Club UMass Lowell, 10/2016-12/2017

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, MA (UMass Lowell)
■  Bachelor of Liberal Arts - Focus in History and Cultural Studies; 12/2012

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS: Policy Analyst, with experience in data analysis and of year managerial

experience, along with excellent research skills, strong verbal, and written communication skills, and

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Career Service Manager, International Institute of New England (IINE), Manchester, NH 7/2022 -

Present

•  Manage a team of Employment Specialists to ensure services are provided to clients in

accordance with grant and programming requirements

•  Ensure Career Service team provides meaningful and equitable services to clients

regardless of background

•  Collaborate with other departments and offices to ensure-seamless continuation of

services

•  Provide proper training to new staff to ensure successful onboarding

Employment Case Specialist, International Institute of New England (IINE), Manchester, NH 6/2021 -
Present

•  Offer clients education on workplace culture in the U.S.

•  Assist with creating resumes, submitting job applications, preparing for interviews, and

more

•  Maintain positive relationship with both clients and employers

•  Provide both entry-level and career development training

Program Monitor, Community Resources for Justice (CRJ), Manchester, NH 10/2020 - 6/2021
•  Perform scheduled house rounds/safety checks

•  Perform administrative duties: answering phone calls, monitoring resident daily details

and entering documentation via SecurManage

•  Attend training and meetings as required by supervisor

•  Administer alco-sensor tests, and take urine samples

•  Respond effectively to resident needs, complaints, and concerns

Volunteer, African Community Center of Lowell, Lowell, MA 8/2018-Present

•  Coordinate with head of Summer School program

•  Assist with community outreach during annual African Cultural Festival

Research Data & Analyst Intern, International Institute of New England, Lowell, MA 1/2019-S/2019

■  Analyzed financial savings program
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■  Assisted with historical research

■  Provided assistance with planning llNE's 100'^' Anniversary Celebration

Data Analyst Intern, Center for Terrorism and Security Studies (CTSS), Lowell, MA 9/2017- 12/2017
■  Coded data on extremist videos

•  Cleaned data for analysis using SPSS

■  Coordinated research with site leaders and fellow interns

■  Reviewed data analysis with supervisor regularly
■  Participated in regular training sessions on how to better improve data collection and
analysis

Client Relations Specialist, Countryside Veterinary Hospital, Chelm'sford, MA 3/2011-4/2013
■  Filed medical documents and filled prescriptions
■  Answered phone calls, and took down detailed notes

■  Scheduled appointments for clients

■  Handled client's medical emergencies
■  Provided friendly and efficient service to customers

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

Operations Associate, Sparx Hockey, Acton, MA 2/2018-3/2020
■  Inspect equipment to see that it meets specification requirements - .

■  Complete orders accurately and within specified service standards

Manager, Flagship Cinemas, \A/ells, ME 8/2014-5/2015

■  Supervised team members

■  Oversaw sales of tickets and overall customer experience and satisfaction
■  Inspected equipment and surrounding to make sure everything was in order
■  Dealt with issues that arose between customers or team members calmly and
efficiently
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SOCIAL SERVICES PROFESSIONAL

OBJECTIVE
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SKILLS & ABILITIES
'^n2ujUl-lui^iaL6Qdal6eAiuc^
pAja§ehUa/iaL miOv eacpe/iiencA

pfuuudbig, 6eAuiceS' to- cUenih- ui a,

teanvbaliecL awiAotviie/xL

^  '^nia/ia^enieitt a/ut te/idehlJup.
e/xfie/uj£fice> uv ciuiiiofv cuicLmUiia/uj,
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WORK EXPERIENCE

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGUND,
MANCHESTER, NH

02.14.2022-CONTINUES.

Employment Case Specialist.
Secure employment and transportation for clients.

Monitoring Labor Market, Building Community Parter

reiationships with employers, Providing Post-Empioyment
supports to clients. Support of workforce development interns

and volunteers, maintaining weekly case records on all services

provided, and providing work orientation to clients ECT.

BLUE OCEAN TRAVEL AND TOURS, KABUL,
AFGHANISTAN

2013-2017
\

Customer service representative,

Assisting customers with tickets and travel arrangements,
coordinating office management and finances.

JAMES NASSEH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, KABUL,
AFGHANISTAN

2011- 2013

Responsible for armored vehicle.

Customer service, scheduling, and operations, including delivery,
parts purchase, and service for DSCI.inc at Camp Phoenix.

Managed service workshop team. Communications as

interpreter for US Army.
I

APEX GLOBAL SERVICES, KABUL, AFGHANISTAN

2010-2011

Supervisor and purchasing officer.

Fabricating modular housing for international security assistance
forces. Customer service, operations, project management,
cartography, procurement, office management, logistics and
safety officer.

VITALS
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2

FARHADNOORI

SOCIAL SERVICES PROFESSIONAL

NEWI SAHAR IT & MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE, KABUL,

AFGHANISTAN

.2009-2010

Head of English department.

Designed training modules, prepared course materials and other

documents to meet the needs of learners and coordinated

course delivery. •

RANA IT INSTITUTE, KABUL, AFGHANISTAN

2005 - 2008

Instructor In English.

EDUCATION

SLOVAK FLIGHT TRAINING ACADEMY, KOCiSE,

SLOVAKIA

Military helicopter pilot training, Afghan Air Force.
2020-2021

HABIBIA HIGH SCHOOL, KABUL, AFGHANISTAN

High School Diploma.

LANGUAGES

Darl, Pashto, English, Urdu, Panjabi, Parsian, and Basic Arabic.

COMPUTER PROFICIENCY

MS Windows, Word, Excel, Power Point, Access, Outlook, Social

Media, and emails

REFERENCES
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Joanna Moody Adikwu

Objective
•  To be part of an organization with the goal of servicing, educating, and making meaningful contribution to

the overall company goal.

Education

MASTERS I AUGUST 2019 | GRAND CANYON UNIVERSITY

•  Sociology emphasis on Education

BACHELORS | DECEMBER 1999 | STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK AT CORTLAND

•  International Studies concentration Asian Studies

Experience

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES CASE SPECIALIST | INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND | APRIL
29, 2024 TO PRESENT

•  Assist refugees, and Immigrants to prepare for employment in the US. Work assessment, orientation,
preparation and placement of new jobs, ongoing coaching with all work-related steps.

•  Development and maintenance of agency's relationship with local businesses with short & long-term data
tracking.

CLIENT/NUTRITION COUNSELOR I SUNFARE LLC | MARCH 2021 TO APRIL 2024

•  Client/Nutrition Counselor for a high-end meal delivery service

•  Daily email and phone calls handled different types of situations, emotions and conversations towards
weight-loss goals.

•  Excellent in communication between the departments of delivery, food and administration.

ACHIEVEMENT COACH | YMCA | NOVEMBER 2020 TO MARCH 2021

•  Taught Social and Emotional well-being classes in first grade classrooms.

•  Organized lunch and recess

•  Trained new monitors for lunch and recess, giving them language and tools to use working with
elementary school students.

LUNCH/RECESS MONITOR | HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT ( OCTOBER 2019 TO NOVEMBER 2020

• Worked as the lunch and recess monitor in Dr. H.O. Smith school.

CENSUS FIELD SUPERVISOR | UNITED STATES CENSUS BUREAU ) JULY 2020-SEPTEMBER 2020

•  Oversaw a group of enumerators. Trouble-shoot problems on the field with each enumerator.

•  Processes time-sheets and schedules of enumerators.
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CLIENT/NUTRITION COUNSELOR | SUNFARE LLC | NOVEMBER 2004-JUNE 2019

•  Client/Nutrition counselor for a high-end daily meal delivery service. Wearing the many hats of a small
business. Customer service team leader.

•  Fielded escalated calls, interviewing and training of new employees.

•  Daily email, and phone calls handled different types of situations, emotions and conversations towards .
weight-loss goals

•  Excellent in communication between the departments of delivery, food and administration.

TEAMS COORDINATOR | FORWARD EDGE INTERNATIONAL | JANUARY 2000 TO OCTOBER 2004

•  Teams coordinator and Teams facilitator.

•  Taking teens and college students on 1-2 week missions trips around the world.

•  Coordinated logistics, travel, menu, vvork and outreach activities, and nightly debriefings.

•  Being the facilitator between the hosts and the visiting teams.

•  Help team members adjust to new culture, customs.'and countries.

Volunteer

•  2006-Current -Beta Sigma Phi woman's association. Roles include: President, Vice President, Recording
Secretary and Corresponding Secretary

•  2006-2007 - Arizona Women's Refugee Center - Tutor ESL, Citizenship Class

Personal and Professional Skills

Critical Thinking, Problem solving. Oral and Written Communication

Leadership and Time management

Presentation Competency

Computer literate

Microsoft Word and other Microsoft Office Products

Research Expertise
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Hansen Leroy

Profile

1 am dedicated, organized and melhodica! individual. 1 have good interpersonal skills, am an excellent
team worker and am keen and very willing to learn and develop new skills. I am reliable and
dependable and often seek responsibilities within a wide range of employment areas.

Experience

MRT Tech Assistant | Catholic Medical Center | Dec 20, 2022 - Aiig 10, 2023, Full-time

Schedules appointments for patients with consideration to the type of exam to assure continuity.

Verifies and documents pertinent exam information and assists with preparation and education of

the patient for procedure and expectations.

Utilizes hospital and departmental information, technology systems and equipment operation.

Performs a wide range of departmental duties including fielding phone calls, scheduling, filing,

record keeping, greeting patients.

Performs all required clerical/secretarial functions mandated by the department.

Screens and refers all incoming calls and department visitors to ensure that accurate and timely

departmental communication is facilitated, and that the department is presented in a positive

manner.

Patient Representative | SolutioNHealth | March 2022- August 23, 2024, Full-time

• Greets and registers patients; notifies medical staff of their arrival.

• Verifies current address and insurance status.

•  Uses appropriate company procedures, refeiring doctors and correct protocols for writing referrals.

Schedules referral appointments with specialists, hospital testing and lab work.

•  Completes prior authorization of testing according to insurance requirements.

• Maintains providers schedules, optimizing effective scheduling of appointments. Confirms

appointments for daily schedule.

•  Assists in developing and implementing systems to support effective and accurate registration of

patients. Makes recommendations to increase efficiency of patient care or administrative

functioning of area.

Employment Specialist | International Institute of New England | August 26, 2024- current; Full-

Timc

• Understand the needs of clients relating to credentialing, re-credentialing, training, and further
education; maintain resources and resource materials.

•  Support clients to identify, apply, inteiview for and secure employment.

•  Coordinate with Community Services Case Specialists to access financial resources to support
individuals seeking employment.

•  Coordinate closely with other Institute programs and services, including support of internal
referrals. v
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Monitor the local and regional labor market, solicit employers through telephone, mail and
personal contact, maintain knowledge of the needs and requirements of employers, educate
employers to the needs and abilities of client population, and screen worksites for safe, non-
exploitative work conditions.

Interest in international, refugee, and asylee issues

A command of Microsoft Word, Excel, Outlook, and PowerPoint

Excellent organizational, verbal, written, and interpersonal skills.

Access to reliable transportation

Extremely well organized, detail oriented, flexible, and able to manage multiple tasks
simultaneously. -

High levels of discretion and professionalism in dealing with confidential information

Education

B.S. IN HEALTH SCIENCE | MAY 2023 [ RIVIER COLLEGE, NASHUA, NH 03060

Master's Business Administration | Current enrollment | Southern New Hampshire University
Online

Skills & Abilities

•  Professionalism-and compassion

• Ethical integrity

• Excellent interpersonal and communication

skills

Attention to detail. In any medical settings,

it's essential to be detailed oriented.

Dependability and organization

Fun and energetic

Certificates

•  Time Management tips for time crunch professional
•  Critical thinking skills

•  Emotional Intelligence
•  Leading vs Managing
•  Coaching vs Mentoring

Activities and Interests

Disney, environmental conservation, ait, hiking, soccer, ti-avel

Language

English, Haitian Creole, French, Spanish

Page 2
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Caroline Edwards

Education

• LL.M. in Commercial Law, University of Birmingham, England (U.K.)
• LL.D., University of Malta (E.U.)
o Diploma Notary Public (equivalent to LL.B.), University of Malta (E.U:)

Professional Experience

International Institute of New England, Manchester June 2021-current
o  ESOL Instructor Jan. 2022-current
•  Substitute ESOL instructor June 2021-Dec. 2022

Stay-at-Home Parent, Community Volunteer 2006-2021
Took on numerous leadership roles in the community while I was at home raising my young
family. Experiences include, but not limited to:

• Webmaster, Londonderry High School, Friends of Music (2020-current)
Content editor; managed a revamp from GoDaddy WordPress site to complete overhaul to
new website via Google Sites.

• Website Chair, Matthew Thornton Elementaiy School PTA, (2011-2019)
Content editor, managed a revamp from outdated GoDaddy Drupal site to eventual complete
overhaul, creating a new website via Weebly.

•  School Newsletter Editor, Matthew Thornton Elementary School PTA, (2010-2019)
• Destination Imagination (D.I.) Team Co-Manager: Londonderry Elementary Schools

(2017-2019)
Conducted and evaluated instant challenge practice sessions, supervising practice session

Estates Manager, Lloyds Private Banking, Birmingham, U.K. 2003-2006
• Managed large caseload of estate management, handling diverse ranges of complex cases
• Held 2004 record for exceeding office fee income target; managed cases having a capital

value in excess of 10 million GBP in one calendar year
•  2005 champion for speed of estate administration, maintaining a high degree of accuracy,

dedication, and confidentiality. Lloyds Private Banking is the offshoot of Lloyds Bank pic, a
top-three bank in the U.K., handling private wealth clients

Legal Executive & In-House Attorney, Corporate Services Limited, Malta 1996-2000
• Tax and legal consultancy
•  Formation and registration ofoffshore companies and trusts
o Management and Administration 90 offshore companies and 16 Trusts

Self Employed Civil Law Notary, Malta 1996-2000
• Drafted and executed all types of public and private contracts, deeds, wills, and

agreements between private, non-contentious parties
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Early Career Part-Time Roles • / 1991-1996
•  Legal/Secretarial Administrative Assistant. Dr. Henri Vassallo, Malta
o  Bank Clerk [Advances and Foreign Departments), Lombard Bank (Malta) Ltd., Malta
•  Teacher of English as a Foreign Language, European Center for English Language Studies,

Malta

Critical Skills/Authorizations
•  Foreign languages (fluent in English, Italian, and Maltese; working knowledge of French

and Spanish)
•  Extensive range in Microsoft, Google suites, iOS.word-processing/spreadsheets/

presentations/Cloud/websites; experience with managing/creating websites (GoDaddy,
Drupal, Weebly, WordPress) Google sites)

•  U.S. citizen; full NH Driver's License

Training & Certifications
•  , StAR, Department of Education (NH) - certified, 2022-2023
• Active Shooter Training, 11NE, Manchester, February 2023
• Antisocial Language Teaching, IINE, Manchester, january 2023
• Burlington English, Training - online, December 2022.
o TABE, Certificate of Training - online, 2022
•  Canvas, Getting Started with Canvas - online, 2022
•  Coursera, "Diversity and Inclusion in the Workplace" - online, 2021
o  S.T.E.P. (Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners) - certified, 2004
• Estate Administration Seminar, Tunbridge Wells, England - participant, 2004
o  Introduction to Estates, Abington, England - participant, 2002
• Offshore Companies and Tax Havens, Monte Carlo, Monaco - participant, 1999

Appointments
•  People Development Champion (2004) at Lloyds Private Banking
•  Charity Champion (2003 & 2004) for the local Estates office at Lloyds TSB Private

^  Banking
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International Institute Of New England
Key Personnel

Budget Period Upon G&C - 6/30/25 (SFY25)

Name Job Title Salary

% Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this Contract

Andrew Culien Career Services Manager $ 30.109.58 10% $  3,094.29
Farhad Noori Employment Case Specialist $ 23,811.25 40% $  - 9,524.50
Joanna Adikwu Employment Case Specialist $ 22,375.83 40% $  8,950.33
Hansen Leroy Employment Case Specialist $ 22.375.83 20% $  - 4.475.17

TBH Career Navigator $ 22,375.83 100% $  22,375.83
To be hired Part-Time ESOL Instructor $ 12,621.67 .  100% $  12,621.67
ESOL Instructor Caroline Edwards $ 26,862.92 12% $  3,201.95
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International institute Of New England.

Key Personnel
Budget Period 7/1/25 -9/30/25 (SFY26)

Name Job Title Salary

% Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this Contract

Andrew Cullen Career Services Manager $ 18,065.75 10% $  1,856.58
Farhad Noori Employment Case Specialist ■ $ 14,286.75 40% $  5,714.70
Joanna Adikwu Employment Case Specialist $ 13,425.50 40% $  5,370.20
Hansen Leroy Employment Case Specialist $ 13,425.50 20% $  2,685.10
TBH Career Navigator $ 13,425.50 100% .$ 13,425.50
To be hired Part-Time ESOL Instructor $. 7,573.00 100% $  7,572.90
ESOL Instructor Caroline Edwards $ 16,009.75 12% $  1,921.17


